
LEAVENWORTH COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

AMENDED AGENDA 

Agenda for the Regular Meeting of 5:30 P.M., Thursday, August 5, 2021 

County Courthouse - 300 Walnut Street - Leavenworth, Kansas 66048 

www.leavenworthcounty.gov 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  

3.  Oath of Office – New Members 

4.  Election of Chairman and Vice Chairman 

5.  Roll Call 
 

6. Approval of Minutes  
 

7. Secretary’s Report 
 

8. Approval of Agenda 
 

9. Declarations: (if necessary) 

A. Declarations of receipt of communications by Planning Commissioners 

B. Disclosure of ex-parte communications for each hearing item 

C. Declarations of abstention from specific agenda items by a Commissioner 

 

10.  Consent Agenda 

 

A. Case DEV-21-059 & 060 Brockert Hill – Continued from the June Meeting 

Consideration of a Preliminary and Final Plat for Brockert Hill, a 2-Lot plat located on a 

tract of land in the Northeast quarter of Section 27, Township 8 South, Range 21 East of 

the 6th P.M., in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

Also known as 00000 207th Street (PID 068-27-0-00-00-002.00) 

 

B. Case DEV-21-079 & 080 Bretz Farms  

Consideration of a Preliminary and Final Plat for Bretz Farms, a 4-Lot Plat, located on a 

tract of land located in the Southeast Quarter of Section 20, Township 9 South, Range 22 

East of the 6th P.M., in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

Also known as 00000 Tonganoxie Drive (PID: 104-20-0-00-00-009.00) 

 

C. Case DEV-21-081 & 082 Carbaugh Estates  

Consideration of a Preliminary and Final Plat for Carbaugh Estates, a 3-lot plat, located 

on a tract of land in the Southeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 15, 

Township 11 South, Range 20 East of the 6th P.M., In Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

Also known as 00000 254th Street (PID: 205-15-0-00-00-014.00) 

 

 

11.  Regular Agenda  

 

A. Case DEV-21-085 Emerald Estates – Continued to the August Meeting 

Consideration of a Preliminary Plat for Emerald Estates, a 13-lot plat, on a tract of land in 

the Southwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 32, Township 9 South, Range 

22 East of the 6th P.M., in Leavenworth County, Kansas.   

Also known as 00000 Seymour Road (109-32-0-00-00-004.02) 

http://www.leavenworthcounty.gov/


 

 

B. Case DEV-21-062 (Westland Construction)  

Consideration of an application for a Special Use Permit for a Contractor’s Yard for 

Westland Construction, Inc, on a tract of land located in the Southwest ¼ of Section 27, 

Township 10 South, Range 22 East of the 6th P.M., in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

Also known as 20510 163rd Street (PID:  158-27-0-00-00-006.03) 

***Public Hearing Required*** 

***Public Comment limited to three minutes per person*** 

 

C. Case DEV-21-063 (Schuetz Construction) 

Consideration of an application for a Special Use Permit for a Contractor’s Yard for 

Schuetz Construction located on a tract of land in the Southeast Quarter of Section 36, 

Township 11 South, Range 22 East of the 6th P.M., in Leavenworth County, Kansas.   

Also known as 14833 142nd Street (PID:  187-36-0-00-00-021.01) 

***Public Hearing Required*** 

***Public Comment limited to three minutes per person*** 

 

D. Case DEV-21-071 (Dave’s Construction) 

Consideration of an application for a Special Use Permit for a Contractor’s Laydown 

Yard for Dave’s Plus Construction, LLC, on a tract of land in the East Half of Section 9, 

Township 11 South, Range 22 East of the 6th P.M., Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

Also known as 18429 166th Street (PID: 182-09-0-00-00-018.01) 

***Public Hearing Required*** 

***Public Comment limited to three minutes per person*** 

 

E. Case DEV-21-086 (RV & Boat Storage) 

Consideration of an application for a Special Use Permit for a RV and Boat Storage Unit 

on a tract of land located in the Northeast Quarter of Section 3, Township 9, Range 21 

East of the 6th P.M. in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

Also known as 00000 Springdale Road (PID:  112-03-0-00-00-007.01) 

***Public Hearing Required*** 

***Public Comment limited to three minutes per person*** 

 

F. Case DEV-21-046 (Rezoning Request RR-5 to RR-2.5) 

Consideration of a rezoning request from RR-5 Zoning district to the RR-2.5 Zoning 

district on a tract of land in the south ½ of the southwest ¼ of Section 33, Township 9 

South, Range 22 East, more fully described as follows: Beginning at the southwest corner 

of said southwest ¼, thence north 00 degrees 00’00” east for a distance of 330.74 feet 

along the west line of said southwest 1/4 , thence north 89 degrees 14’ 43” east for a 

distance of 662.76, then south 00 degree 00’ 57” west for a distance of 331.02 feet to the 

south line of said southwest ¼, thence south 89 degrees 16’ 10” west for a distance of 

662.67 feet along said south line to the point of beginning, in Leavenworth County, 

Kansas.  

Also known as 24450 171st Street (PID: 108-33-0-00-00-016.09) 

***Public Hearing Required*** 

***Public Comment limited to three minutes per person*** 

 

  



 

G. Case DEV-21-067 (Rezoning Request RR-5 to RR-2.5) 

Consideration of a rezoning request from RR-5 Zoning district to the RR-2.5 Zoning 

district on a tract of land in the Fractional Southwest Quarter of Section 1, Township 8 

South, Range 20 East of the 6th P.M., Leavenworth County, Kansas, as written by Joseph 

A. Herring PS-1296 on June 16, 2021, and more fully described as follows: Beginning at 

the Northwest corner of said Southwest Quarter; thence North 88 degrees 15'50" East for 

a distance of 253.37 feet along the North line of said Southwest Quarter; thence South 00 

degrees 48'57" East for a distance of 502.62 feet; thence South 88 degrees 15'50" West 

for a distance of 253.37 feet; thence North 00 degrees 48'57" West for a distance of 

502.62 feet to the point of beginning. 

Also known as 24257 Millwood Road (PID: 051-01-0-00-00-006.04) 

***Public Hearing Required*** 

***Public Comment limited to three minutes per person*** 

 

H. Case DEV-21-100 (Text Amendment – Table of Uses) 

Consideration of Amendments to the 2006 Leavenworth County Zoning and Subdivision 

Regulations: 

Article 19 – Table of Uses 

 
 

Adjournment of Planning Commission 

 

11.  Board of Zoning Appeals 

 

1.  Roll Call 

 

A. Case DEV-21-070 (Variance Request) 

Consideration of a request of a Variance from the Leavenworth County Zoning and 

Subdivision Regulation sunder Article 5, Section 4 which requires minimum road 

frontage of 200’, on a tract of land in the Northwest Quarter of Section 15, Township 11 

South, of Range 21 East of the 6th P.M. in Leavenworth County, Kansas.   

Also known as 21187 Evans Road (PID: 195-15-0-00-00-005.01) 

***Public Hearing Required*** 

***Public Comment limited to three minutes per person*** 

 

Adjournment of Planning Commission 

 

Next meeting date:   

Wednesday, August 11, 2021 6:00 PM – Regularly Scheduled Meeting 

 

 
For More Information 

If you have any questions or need to make special arrangements for a meeting,  

please call or stop by the Planning and Zoning Department. 

Contact Stephanie Sloop – 913-684-0465 

 

 

 

***Public Hearing Required*** 

***Public Comment limited to three minutes per person*** 



 

Planning Commission Seating Chart 2021 

 

 

 

 

Jeff  

Spink 

Vacant 
Position 

Tom 

Dials 

A.W. 

“Rocky” 

Himpel 

Wolf  

Schmidt 

Chairman 

Steve 
Rosenthal  Amy  

Baker Allan  

Stork 
Mark 

Denney 
Vacant  
Position 



 

 1 

LEAVENWORTH COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

June 9, 2021 

 
The full recorded meeting can be found on the County’s YouTube channel. 

 
Meeting called to order at 6:00 pm 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Members present:  Steve Rosenthal, Mark Denney, A.W. Himpel, Jeff Spink, John Matthews, Terry Barkoski, 
Tom Dials and Wolf Schmidt  
 
Members absent: Alex DeMoro  
 
Staff present:  Krystal Voth-Director, Stephanie Sloop-Planning Coordinator, Joshua Gentzler-Planner, David 
Van Parys-Senior County Counselor 
 
Approval of Minutes: 
 
Commissioner Himpel made a motion to approve the minutes from the previous Planning Commission.  
Commissioner Matthews seconded the motion.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE - Motion to approve passed, 7/0 (1 abstain, 1 absent)  
 
Secretary’s Report:  
 
Krystal Voth gave the secretary’s report, letting the commission know that there were two cases on the consent 
agenda, approval of the agenda would approve those cases.  Ms. Voth thanked Mr. Matthews for his years of 
service as a Planning Commissioner. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Matthews to approve the agenda. Commissioner Schmidt seconded the 
motion.   
 
ROLL CALL VOTE - Motion to approve passed, 8/0 (1 absent) 
 
Declarations:  No declarations  
 
Case DEV-21-030 & 031  
Consideration of an application for a Preliminary and Final Plat for Sunny Side Estates, located on all of 
Lot 1A, Heartland Estates, in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 
Also known as 00000 Evans Road  
 
Ms. Voth presented the facts and findings for the above request bringing it to the Planning Commission 
attention that the proposed development does not meet the current Access Management Policy.   
 
Chairman Rosenthal asked the applicant if they would like to address the commission.  Mr. Joe Herring came 
forward.   
 
Commissioner Bartkoski made a motion to deny Case DEV-21-030 & 031, Commissioner Himpel 
seconded the motion.    
 
ROLL CALL VOTE - Motion to deny passed, 8/0 (1 absent) 
 
The Board of County Commissioners will consider this item on June 23, 2021 at 9:00 A.M in the Leavenworth 
County Courthouse. 
 



 

 2 

Any person wishing to file a protest petition must contact the Planning & Zoning Office.  Protest 
petitions must be fined with Leavenworth County within two weeks of this meeting.  To be valid, the 
protest petition must be signed by owners of 20 % of the land area in the notification area. 
 
Case DEV-21-022 
Consideration of an application for a Special Use Permit for an Athletic Training Facility, located on a 
tract of land in the Northwest Quarter of Section 32, Township 10 South, Range 22 East of the 6th P.M., 
in Leavenworth County, Kansas.   
Request submitted by Mr. and Mrs. Trent West 
Also known as 19897 178th Street 
 
Mr. Gentzler presented the facts and findings for the above request, stating that staff recommended denial of 
this request.   
 
Chairman Rosenthal opened the public hearing portion of the hearing and asked if the applicant wished to 
speak.  Mr. West came forward and explained the nature of this request. 
 
Chairman Rosenthal asked if there was anyone that wished to speak in support of the request.  Several people 
came forward in person and via phone to speak in support of this request.  Chairman Rosenthal asked if there 
was anyone wishing to speak in opposition.  Chairman Rosenthal closed the public portion of the hearing and 
asked if there was further discussion.   
 
Commissioner Bartkoski made a motion to approve DEV-21-022, stating that he believed that it did not 
change the nature of the neighborhood and that it would be a benefit to the community.  Commissioner 
Himpel seconded the motion.  Commissioner Bartkoski stated the conditions that he wanted adopted 
with this request. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE - Motion to approve passed, 5/3 (1 absent) 
 
(Commissioner Matthews voted no to approve based on his belief that this was not the right area.  
Commissioner Denney voted to approve, stating his determining factor was that it was deemed that Public 
Works determined with the amount of traffic generated that a traffic study was not needed.  Commissioner 
Himpel and Chairman Rosenthal voted no because it did not follow the Comprehensive Plan. Chairman 
Rosenthal also voted no because of the road type.) 
 
The Board of County Commissioners will consider this item on June 30, 2021 at 9:00 A.M in the Leavenworth 
County Courthouse. 
 
Any person wishing to file a protest petition must contact the Planning & Zoning Office.  Protest 
petitions must be fined with Leavenworth County within two weeks of this meeting.  To be valid, the 
protest petition must be signed by owners of 20 % of the land area in the notification area. 
 
Case DEV-21-055 
Consideration of an application for a Special Use Permit for a Target Range for archery lessons and pro 
shop for bow maintenance, on Lots 15, Lots 43-46, and parts of Lots 47 and 48 in Northwoods at Timber 
Lakes AND a tract of land in the Southeast quarter of Section 24, Township 11 South, Range 22 East of 
the 6th P.M. in Leavenworth County, Kansas.   
Request submitted by Mr. SilversteIn 
Also known as 14702 Timber Lane 
 
Mr. Gentzler presented the facts and findings for the above request, stating that staff recommended denial of 
this request.   
 
Chairman Rosenthal opened the public hearing portion of the hearing and asked if the applicant wished to 
speak.  The applicant came forward and explained the nature of this request. 
 
Chairman Rosenthal asked if there was anyone that wished to speak in support of the request.  Chairman 
Rosenthal asked if there was anyone wishing to speak in opposition.  Chairman Rosenthal closed the public 
portion of the hearing and asked if there was further discussion.   



 

 3 

 
Commissioner Himpel made a motion to approve DEV-21-055, stating that it met all the Golden Factors.  
Commissioner Himpel also edited the condition about hours of operation to read, “as lighting 
conditions permit.”  Ms. Voth asked Commissioner Himpel to include his specific reasons for 
recommending approval as it goes against staff recommendation.  Commissioner Himpel withdrew his 
motion.  Commissioner Denney made a motion to approve Case DEV-21-055 with staff 
recommendations, changing condition two with verbiage laid out by County Counselor.  Commissioner 
Denney stated that the applicant owned property all around where the activity was going to take place.  
He also stated that the HOA has given their support of this request, he stated that the increase in traffic 
didn’t seem to be a concern, there is a gain to economic development by providing a service to the 
County.  This use is allowed with a Special Use Permit in residential zoning.  Commissioner Barkoski 
seconded the motion.   
 
ROLL CALL VOTE - Motion to approve passed, 8/0 (1 absent) 
 
The Board of County Commissioners will consider this item on June 30, 2021 at 9:00 A.M in the Leavenworth 
County Courthouse. 
 
Any person wishing to file a protest petition must contact the Planning & Zoning Office.  Protest 
petitions must be fined with Leavenworth County within two weeks of this meeting.  To be valid, the 
protest petition must be signed by owners of 20 % of the land area in the notification area. 
 
Case DEV-21-019 
Consideration of an application for a rezoning request from RR-5 zoning districts to RR-2.5 zoning 
district on a tract of land in the Southeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 15, Township 11 
South, Range 20 East of the6th P.M., Leavenworth County.   
Request submitted by David Lutgen 
Also known as 00000 254th Street  
 
Ms. Voth presented the facts and findings for the above request.   
 
Chairman Rosenthal opened the public hearing portion of the hearing and asked if the applicant wished to 
speak.  Mr. Joe Herring came forward and explained his request and stated that this followed the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Chairman Rosenthal asked if there was anyone that wished to speak in support of the request.  Chairman 
Rosenthal asked if there was anyone wishing to speak in opposition.  Neighboring residents came forward to 
speak in opposition.  Chairman Rosenthal closed the public portion of the hearing and asked if there was further 
discussion. 
 
Commissioner Himpel made a motion to approve DEV-21-019, going through the golden factors and 
stating that it met the Comprehensive Plan.  Commissioner Matthews seconded the motion. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE - Motion to approve passed, 8/0 (1 absent) 
 
The Board of County Commissioners will consider this item on June 30, 2021 at 9:00 A.M in the Leavenworth 
County Courthouse. 
 
Any person wishing to file a protest petition must contact the Planning & Zoning Office.  Protest 
petitions must be fined with Leavenworth County within two weeks of this meeting.  To be valid, the 
protest petition must be signed by owners of 20 % of the land area in the notification area. 
 
Case DEV-21-051 
Consideration of an application for a rezoning request from RR-2.5 zoning district to the B-3 zoning 
district on a tract of land in the Northwest quarter of the Northeast quarter of Section 12, Township 11 
South, Range 21 East of the 6th P.M. in Leavenworth County. 
Request submitted by Red Fuel Repair 
Also known as 19393 State Ave  
 



 

 4 

Mr. Gentzler presented the facts and findings for the above request.   
 
Chairman Rosenthal opened the public hearing portion of the hearing and asked if the applicant wished to 
speak.  Mr. Joe Herring came forward and explained his request and stated that this followed the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Chairman Rosenthal asked if there was anyone that wished to speak in support of the request.  Chairman 
Rosenthal asked if there was anyone wishing to speak in opposition.  Neighboring residents came forward to 
speak in opposition.  Chairman Rosenthal closed the public portion of the hearing and asked if there was further 
discussion. 
 
Commissioner Himpel made a motion to approve DEV-21-051, going through the golden factors and 
stating that it met the Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map.  Commissioner Schmidt 
seconded the motion. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE - Motion to approve passed, 8/0 (1 absent) 
 
The Board of County Commissioners will consider this item on June 30, 2021 at 9:00 A.M in the Leavenworth 
County Courthouse. 
 
Any person wishing to file a protest petition must contact the Planning & Zoning Office.  Protest 
petitions must be fined with Leavenworth County within two weeks of this meeting.  To be valid, the 
protest petition must be signed by owners of 20 % of the land area in the notification area. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 8:40 p.m. 
 



 

 

 

 

 

Leavenworth County 
Planning Commission 

August 5, 2021 

DEV-21-071 
Special Use Permit 
Dave’s Construction 

 

DEV-21-059 & 060 
Prelim & Final Plat 
Brockert Hill 

DEV-21-046 
Rezoning 
RR-5 to RR-2.5  

 

DEV-21-086 
Special Use Permit 
RV & Boat Storage 

 

DEV-21-062 
Special Use Permit 
Westland Construction 

 

DEV-21-055 
Special Use Permit 
Schuetz Construction 

 

DEV-21-079 & 080  
Prelim & Final Plat 
Bretz Farms 

 

DEV-21-067 
Rezoning 
RR-5 to RR-2.5  

 

DEV-21-070 
Variance 
Minimum Road 
Frontage  

 



August 5, 2021 Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

***Consent Agenda*** 
Case No. DEV-21-059/060 

Brockert Hill 
Preliminary and Final Plat 

 
Staff Report – Planning Commission      August 5, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/                   Lonnie and Dorothy Phillips 
Property Owner: 30578 207th Street 

Easton, KS 66020 
 
Agent: Larry Hahn  

Hahn Surveying 
 P.O. Box 41 
 Lansing, KS 66043 
 
Legal Description:      A tract of land in the Northeast Quarter of Section 27, Township 8 South, 

Range 221 East of the 6th P.M, in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 
 

Parcel Size: ± 10 acres 
 
Zoning/Land Use: RR-2.5, Rural Residential 2.5-acre minimum size parcels 
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential land use category.   
 
Parcel ID No.:   068-27-0-00-00-002.00 

 
Planner:  Joshua Gentzler 
 

REPORT: 
 

Request   
The applicant is requesting a Preliminary and Final Plat for a two-lot subdivision.  
 
Adjacent Land Use 
The surrounding properties are residences and farms on varying sized parcels ranging from three (3) acres 
to 138 acres in size.   
 
Flood Plain   
There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C0125G July 16, 2015.  
 
Utilities/Services 
Sewer: Private septic system  
Fire: Kickapoo 
Water: Rural Water District 5 
Electric: Freestate 
 
Access/Streets  
The property is accessed by 207th Street. This road is a County Arterial with a paved surface ± 24’ wide. 
 
Agency Comments 
See attached comments – Email – Lauren Anderson – Public Works, June 25, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Lauren Anderson – County Surveyor, June 4, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Tim Goetz – Rural Water District 5, April 28, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Amanda Tarwater – Freestate Electric, April 27, 2021 
 

 
 
 



August 5, 2021 Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

Findings 
1. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the zoning district of RR 2.5; Rural Residential Zoning 

2.5-acre minimum size parcels and meets the lot-depth to lot-width ratio of 3.5:1, have the minimum 
frontage of 200’, and minimum lot size of 2.5 acres.  

2. The property is not within a sewer district boundary or is within 660 feet of the incorporated limits of a 
municipality; therefore, a waiver to the requirement of allowing private septic systems is supported by 
staff. A private sewage disposal permit may be issued per Leavenworth County Sanitary Code 
requirements. 

3. At time of development, fire hydrants shall be required if necessary infrastructure is available. 
4. The proposed subdivision is in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

Subdivision Classification 
 

This is classified as a Class “C” Subdivision. According to the Leavenworth County Zoning & Subdivision 
regulations, a Class “C” Subdivision is any subdivision in which all the lots lie within the Rural Growth Area of 
Leavenworth County. 
 
Staff is supportive of a waiver of the requirement to connect to a sanitary sewer system as sanitary sewers 
are not located within 660’ of the subdivision. (See condition 3.) 
 
Staff Comments   
 
The plat, as submitted, is a two-lot subdivision located on 207th Street, which is a County Arterial roadway. 
Lot 1 is proposed at 4.8 acres, while Lot 2 is approximately 6.2 acres in size. Lot 2 also has an existing barn 
on the property. The lots are in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. The applicant has addressed all 
comments and concerns raised by Planning and Zoning and Public Works. Staff recommends approval of 
the subdivision.  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The staff recommends approval of Case No. DEV-21-059 & 060, Preliminary and Final Plat for Brockert Hill 
with the following conditions: 
 

1. Building permits shall be required for any new construction. 
 

2. Erosion control shall be used when designing and constructing driveways.  A form of sediment control 
shall be installed before work begins and maintained throughout the time that the land disturbing 
activities are taking place.  Re-vegetation of all disturbed sites shall be completed within 45 days after 
completion of final grading weather permitting. 
 

3. A waiver for the use of private septic systems within this subdivision is granted with this approval. 
 

4. At time of development, fire hydrants shall be required if necessary infrastructure is available. 
 
5. After approval of this subdivision by the Board of County Commission, all conditions listed shall be 

adhered to and copies shall be provided to the Planning and Zoning Department within 30 days. 
 

  



August 5, 2021 Leavenworth County Planning Commission 3 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-21-059 & 060, Preliminary and Final Plat for Brockert Hill, to 
the Board of County Commission, with or without conditions; or 
 

2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-21-059 & 060, Preliminary and Final Plat for Brockert Hill, to the 
Board of County Commission for the following reasons; or  

 
3. Continue the hearing to another date, time, and place. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Aerial Map 
Memorandums  
Preliminary and Final Plat 
 

 



Traverse PC

Joshua Gentzler
Line



From:                                         Gentzler, Joshua
Sent:                                           Monday, May 17, 2021 4:42 PM
To:                                               Larry Hahn (hahnsurvey@gmail.com)
Subject:                                     DEV-21-059/060 Brockert Hill Comments
 

Larry,
 
Public Works has the following ques�ons/comments about the Brockert Hill plat:
 
The property being split has a driveway that not only extends to the barn on the property but
extends further south to the adjacent property for access to a barn on 30578 207th. They have
granted a private access easement through lot 1 to lot 2 for maintained access to the exis�ng
barn.
• Is the inten�on to remove the rest of the exis�ng drive that extends further south? Or will they
be maintaining this drive to extend through all 3 proper�es? If the drive is to con�nue to service
the southern unpla�ed property (30578 207th) then it now services 3 proper�es which a private
drive cannot do.
• If they intend to remove the exis�ng access, I want to make sure that it is understood that they
do not have the required spacing along 207th (arterial) to acquire a second entrance to the barn
behind 30578 and will have to access off their exis�ng driveway.
 
Planning and Zoning has no addi�onal comments.
 
Please revise and send an updated plat and response to these comments by, Monday, May 24th.
 
Thank you,
 
Joshua Gentzler
Planner II
Planning & Zoning
Leavenworth County
913.684.0464
 

mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:hahnsurvey@gmail.com
https://www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php


Add distance & Bearing to R/W Line

Add distance & Bearing to R/W Line

Add R/W Dimension

Add R/W Dimension

Add R/W Dimension

Monument Corner

Monument Corner

Monument Corner

Revise to Read:
I hereby certify this plat meets the
requirements of K.S.A. 58-2005. The face of
this plat was reviewed for compliance with
Kansas Minimum Standards for Boundary
Surveys. No field verification is implied. This
review is for survey information only.

Revise to Read:
Michael J. Bogina KS PS-1655
Leavenworth County Survey Reviewer

Does this easement need to be dedicated
hereon, or will it be dedicated separately?

Show described dimension
Show described dimension

Show described dimension

Show described dimension

Show described dimension

Clarify Basis of Bearing
Statement. What line was held?

Show Road Record
or Recording Info

1 2
3

4
5

6

7
8

9 1011

12

13
1415

16

17 18



Summary of Comments on 2021.04.23 DEV-21-060 
Final.pdf
Page: 1

Number: 1 Author: mjbogina Subject: Callout Date: 5/13/2021 11:12:47 AM 
Show described dimension
Number: 2 Author: mjbogina Subject: Callout Date: 5/13/2021 11:12:58 AM 
Show described dimension
Number: 3 Author: mjbogina Subject: Callout Date: 5/13/2021 11:07:21 AM 
Monument Corner
Number: 4 Author: mjbogina Subject: Callout Date: 5/13/2021 11:06:42 AM 
Add R/W Dimension
Number: 5 Author: mjbogina Subject: Callout Date: 5/13/2021 11:14:44 AM 
Clarify Basis of Bearing Statement. What line was held?
Number: 6 Author: mjbogina Subject: Callout Date: 5/13/2021 11:06:03 AM 
Add distance & Bearing to R/W Line
Number: 7 Author: mjbogina Subject: Callout Date: 5/13/2021 11:12:04 AM 
Does this easement need to be dedicated hereon, or will it be dedicated separately?
Number: 8 Author: mjbogina Subject: Callout Date: 5/13/2021 11:06:31 AM 
Add R/W Dimension
Number: 9 Author: mjbogina Subject: Callout Date: 5/13/2021 11:07:31 AM 
Monument Corner
Number: 10 Author: mjbogina Subject: Callout Date: 5/13/2021 11:13:12 AM 
Show described dimension
Number: 11 Author: mjbogina Subject: Callout Date: 5/13/2021 11:28:15 AM 
Show Road Record or Recording Info
Number: 12 Author: mjbogina Subject: Callout Date: 5/13/2021 11:13:29 AM 
Show described dimension
Number: 13 Author: mjbogina Subject: Callout Date: 5/13/2021 11:05:53 AM 
Add distance & Bearing to R/W Line
Number: 14 Author: mjbogina Subject: Callout Date: 5/13/2021 11:10:48 AM 
Revise to Read:
I hereby certify this plat meets the requirements of K.S.A. 58-2005. The face of this plat was reviewed for compliance
with Kansas Minimum Standards for Boundary Surveys. No field verification is implied. This review is for survey
information only.
Number: 15 Author: mjbogina Subject: Callout Date: 5/13/2021 11:11:26 AM 
Revise to Read:
Michael J. Bogina KS PS-1655
Leavenworth County Survey Reviewer
Number: 16 Author: mjbogina Subject: Callout Date: 5/13/2021 11:06:51 AM 
Add R/W Dimension
Number: 17 Author: mjbogina Subject: Callout Date: 5/13/2021 11:07:42 AM 
Monument Corner
Number: 18 Author: mjbogina Subject: Callout Date: 5/13/2021 11:13:20 AM 
Show described dimension



From:                                         Anderson, Lauren
Sent:                                           Friday, June 4, 2021 8:35 AM
To:                                               Gentzler, Joshua
Subject:                                     FW: DEV-21-059/060 Brockert Hill Revision
A�achments:                          Brockert Hill Comments 2021.06.04.pdf

 
Joshua,
 
Survey review is complete. Engineering has not conducted any review, as discussed yesterday. I
have not provided these comments to Larry Hahn, please do so when you send the other
comments out.
 
Lauren
 
From: Michael Bogina <mjbogina@olsson.com> 
Sent: Friday, June 4, 2021 8:32 AM
To: Anderson, Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: RE: DEV-21-059/060 Brockert Hill Revision
 
No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Review complete. No comments.
 

From: Anderson, Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Sent: Friday, June 4, 2021 8:12 AM
To: Michael Bogina <mjbogina@olsson.com>
Subject: FW: DEV-21-059/060 Brockert Hill Revision
 
Mike,
 
Please see the a�ached Brockert Hill revision.
 
Lauren
 
From: Gentzler, Joshua 
Sent: Thursday, June 3, 2021 3:30 PM
To: Anderson, Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Mitch Pleak <MPleak@olsson.com>
Subject: DEV-21-059/060 Brockert Hill Revision
 
Here’s the revision to the Brockert Hill Final Plat.
 
Joshua Gentzler
Planning & Zoning
 
From: larry hahn <hahnsurvey@gmail.com> 
Sent: Friday, May 28, 2021 12:20 PM
To: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: Re: DEV-21-059/060 Brockert Hill Comments
 
No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 

mailto:LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:mjbogina@olsson.com
mailto:LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:MPleak@olsson.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php__;!!OlGkjAV-rZfRNzw!ZxF32M3Yhy1HwR2MjdqPPdOIgteuk77H08FdRW_El0075NCiuAFJMB7HNpqN9QA$
mailto:hahnsurvey@gmail.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov


Joshua -
A�ached is the revised Brockert Hill.

Larry Hahn, LS
Hahn Surveying
PO Box 41
Lansing, Ks. 66043
(913) 547-3405
 
 
On Fri, May 28, 2021 at 8:18 AM Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov> wrote:

Larry, I’ve not seen a revised plat for Brockert Hill. Have you sent over an updated plat to Bill?
Thanks,
Joshua Gentzler
Planning & Zoning
From: Gentzler, Joshua 
Sent: Monday, May 17, 2021 4:42 PM
To: Larry Hahn (hahnsurvey@gmail.com) <hahnsurvey@gmail.com>
Subject: DEV-21-059/060 Brockert Hill Comments
Larry,
Public Works has the following ques�ons/comments about the Brockert Hill plat:
The property being split has a driveway that not only extends to the barn on the property but
extends further south to the adjacent property for access to a barn on 30578 207th. They have
granted a private access easement through lot 1 to lot 2 for maintained access to the exis�ng
barn.
• Is the inten�on to remove the rest of the exis�ng drive that extends further south? Or will
they be maintaining this drive to extend through all 3 proper�es? If the drive is to con�nue to
service the southern unpla�ed property (30578 207th) then it now services 3 proper�es which
a private drive cannot do.
• If they intend to remove the exis�ng access, I want to make sure that it is understood that
they do not have the required spacing along 207th (arterial) to acquire a second entrance to
the barn behind 30578 and will have to access off their exis�ng driveway.
Planning and Zoning has no addi�onal comments.
Please revise and send an updated plat and response to these comments by, Monday, May
24th.
Thank you,
Joshua Gentzler
Planner II
Planning & Zoning
Leavenworth County
913.684.0464

mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php__;!!OlGkjAV-rZfRNzw!ZxF32M3Yhy1HwR2MjdqPPdOIgteuk77H08FdRW_El0075NCiuAFJMB7HNpqN9QA$
mailto:hahnsurvey@gmail.com
mailto:hahnsurvey@gmail.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php__;!!OlGkjAV-rZfRNzw!ZxF32M3Yhy1HwR2MjdqPPdOIgteuk77H08FdRW_El0075NCiuAFJMB7HNpqN9QA$


Traverse PC

06-08-2021 

OLSSON REVIEW

Provide Location
Map

Per revised FP,
Easement has been
removed.  Provide
note that Lot #2 will
need to construct a
new entrance off of
207th Street.

Per Subdivision
Regulations, provide
the zoning
classification and
existing use and the
proposed use of the
area being platted. 
Revise statement to
"RR-2.5 - Current and
Proposed" or like on
future PPs.

Revise Property #.



Traverse PC

06-08-2021 

OLSSON REVIEW

Revise Property #.



dlutgen72@gmail.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Brockert Hill 

Leavenworth County Kansas 

Drainage Report 

 Prepared April 23, 2021 

Revised June 20, 2021 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



dlutgen72@gmail.com 

 

Parcel Information - The 11-acre (+/-) parcel is located north of K-92 on the east side 207th Street in 

Leavenworth County KS.  The parcel is zoned RR 2.5.  There is a barn on the property.  The ground 

appears to be used as pasture.   

Existing Conditions – The site can be divided into three drainage areas, see exhibit #1.  A composite c 

value was calculated for each drainage area as shown in the table below.  The c value is based on the 

soil type, slopes, and existing land use, see Exhibits #2, #2A, and #3.   

 

Existing   Acres in each Drainage Area 

  c value DA #1 DA #2 DA #3    

Pasture 0.36/0.42 2.1 4.1 4.57   

Grass 0.30 0.00 0.00  0.00   

Impervious 0.90 0.00 0.00 0.05   

Gravel Road 0.50 0.00 0.00 0.18  

Composite c   0.36 0.42 0.37    

 

 

composite c = 

(Pasture Acres * c value + Grass Acres * c value + Impervious * c 

value + Gravel Acres * c values) 

Total Acres 

 

 

Developed Conditions – The proposed development will create 2 residential building lots.  The 

developed storm water runoff calculations include 10,000 sq ft of impervious area for each lot.  This 

impervious area will account for the driveway, house footprint, and outbuilding.  It was assumed that 

one acre around each home would be maintained as a grass lawn while the remainder of the lot will be 

maintained as pasture.  A composite c value for each drainage area was calculated as shown below. 

Developed   Acres in each Drainage Area 

  c value DA #1 DA #2 DA #3    

Pasture 0.36/0.42 0.87 2.97  4.67   

Grass 0.30 1.00 1.00  0.00   

Impervious 0.90 0.23 0.13 0.05   

Gravel Road 0.50 0.00 0.00 0.10  

Composite c   0.39 0.41 0.37    

 

Notes – Assume that the existing driveway crossing lots 1 and 2 will be removed. 

 Impervious area for DA #2 was decreased from the standard 10,000 sq ft due to the majority of  

              Driveway being in DA #3. 



dlutgen72@gmail.com 

 

composite c = 

(Pasture Acres * c value + Grass Acres * c value + Impervious * c 

value + Gravel Acres * C value) 

Total Acres 

 

The storm water runoff for existing and developed conditions is summarized in the following tables.  

Calculations for the storm water runoff are included with the report. 

 DA #1  

  Q10 (cfs) Q100 (cfs) 

Existing 4.2 7.5 

Developed 4.7 8.2 

Change 10% 10% 

 

 DA #2  

  Q10 (cfs) Q100 (cfs) 

Existing 10.3 18.2 

Developed 9.9 17.5 

Change -4% -4% 

 

 DA #3  

  Q10 (cfs) Q100 (cfs) 

Existing 9.9 17.6 

Developed 9.9 17.6 

Change 0% 0% 

 

 

The increase in storm water runoff in DA #1 results in a 0.02-ft rise at the property line in a 10-yr storm 

and a 0.01-ft rise in a 100-yr storm, see exhibits #4 – #7.  This assumes a 4-ft flat bottom ditch with 4:1 

side slopes. 

 

Conclusion – The development of this property results in a minimal increase in runoff from drainage 

area #1 and no change in drainage area #2 or drainage area #3. 

 



Traverse PC

Assumed Home
Location (TYP)

Drainage Area #1
2.1 Acres

Drainage Area #2
4.1 Acres

Drainage Area #3
4.8 Acres

EXHIBIT #1

8%
 Slope

10% Slope

91.97 ft

101.02 ft

11%
 Slope

130.26 ft

144.08 ft7% Slope

Assumed that
Existing Driveway
Will Be Removed

Assumed Driveway Location



Generated by a Trial Version of NetCentric Technologies’ CommonLook® Acrobat® Plug-in. www.net-centric.com

TABLE 1 Values of Runoff Coefficient C 
URBAN AREAS: 

Type of drainage area Runoff coefficient C 
 

Lawns: 
Sandy soil, flat 2%  
Sandy soil, average, 2 - 7%  
Sandy soil, steep, 7%  
Heavy soil, flat, 2%  
Heavy soil, average, 2 - 7%  
Heavy soil, steep, 7% 

 0.05 - 0.10 
 
 0.10 - 0.15 
 0.15 - 0.20 
 0.13-0.17  
 
 0.18 - 0.22  
 0.25 - 0.35 

Business: 
Downtown areas Neighborhood areas 

0.70 - 0.95  
0.50.0.70 

Residential: 
Single-family areas  
Multi units, detached Multi units,  
attached Suburban  
Apartment dwelling areas 

0.30 - 0.50  
0.40 - 0.60 
0.60 - 0.75 
0.25 - 0.40 
0.50 - 0.70 

Industrial: 
Light areas 
Heavy areas 

 
0.50 - 0.80 
0.60 - 0.90  

Parks, cemeteries 0.10 - 0.25 
Playgrounds  0.20 - 0.35 
Railroad yard areas 0.20 - 0.40 
Unimproved areas 0.10 - 0.30 
Streets: 
Asphaltic  
Concrete  
Brick  

0.70 - 0.95 
0.80 - 0.95 
0.70 - 0.85 

Drives and walks 
Roofs  

0.75 - 0.85 
0.75 - 0.95 

 
 
AGRICULTURAL AREAS: 

Topography 
 and  

Vegetation 

Runoff Coefficient C Soil Texture 
Soil Texture 

Open Sandy Loam Clay and Silt Loam Tight Clay 
Woodland 
Flat 0 - 5% Slope  
Rolling 5 - 10% Slope 
Hilly 10 - 30% Slope 

 
0.10 
0.25 
0.30 
 

 
0.30 
0.35 
0.50 
 

 
0.40 
0.50 
0.60 
 

Pasture 
Flat 
Rolling 
Hilly 

0.10 
0.16 
0.22 

0.30 
0.36 
0.42 
 

0.40 
0.55 
0.60 

 

Cultivated 
Flat 
Rolling 
Hilly 

 

 
0.30 
0.40 
0.52 
 

 
0.50 
0.60 
0.72 
 

 
0.60 
0.70 
0.82 

 
                    
           
 
 

Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)  US Department of Agriculture (USDA) Peak Discharge Course 

https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/stelprdb1083019.pdf 

 

Source -

EXHIBIT #2



 

Referenced from MDOT Drainage Manual, www.michigan.gov  
 
Storm Water Management  CF – 1          2015 
Shiawassee County 
 
 

 
Table 3-1 Runoff Coefficients for Rational Formula 

 

Type of Drainage Area Runoff Coefficient, C* 

Concrete or Asphalt Pavement  0.8 – 0.9 
Commercial and Industrial  0.7 – 0.9 
Gravel Roadways and Shoulders  0.5 – 0.7 
Residential – Urban  0.5 – 0.7 
Residential – Suburban 0.3 – 0.5 
Undeveloped  0.1 – 0.3 
Berms  0.1 – 0.3 
Agricultural – Cultivated Fields  0.15 – 0.4 
Agricultural – Pastures  0.1 – 0.4 
Agricultural – Forested Areas  0.1 – 0.4 

 
For flat slopes or permeable soil, lower values shall be used. For steep slopes 
or impermeable soil, higher values shall be used. Steep slopes are 2:1 or 
steeper.  
 
From Michigan State Administrative Rules R 280.9.  
 

 
  
 

EXHIBIT #2A



���������� !��"� 
#!$ ��%��&!$�'��%&"�

(
)����������
�
*������������
�����
����������
�

;

>?@7@ABCDEFGBHI7=DJ7>DAE?FBA777KBAHDA7EBBALGH?FDMI7=NOP<
. /.. -.. +.. Q..

RDDF
. 3. Q. /-. /S.

>DFDAM
>?@7OE?TDI78IUV8WX7GY7@AGHFDL7BH7Z7T?HLME?@D7[88\7]7P̂:\_7M̀DDF̂

����������	
	��

�������������� ������������	

���� � !"##$%& '$&( )*$+$,($-$
.#/%#",$0&(.#0*$#/(1#1

��+3 56 /.078/9$0:&,'$%& '$&( )*$+$
,($-$.#/%#",$0&(.#0*$#/(1#1

�<�� =/)0,#/$%& '$&( )*$-$,($�3$
.#/%#",$0&(.#0*$#/(1#1

EXHIBIT #3



Channel Report
Project Name: New Project

Studio Express by Hydrology Studio v 1.0.0.9 06-20-2021

Exist 10-yr DA #1 Channel 1

TRAPEZOIDAL

Bottom Width = 4.00 ft

Side Slope Left, z:1 = 4.00

Side Slope Right, z:1 = 4.00

Total Depth = 2.00 ft

Invert Elevation = 1118.00 ft

Channel Slope = 7.000 %

Manning's n = 0.030

DISCHARGE

Method = Known Q

Known Q = 4.20 cfs

CALCULATION SAMPLE

Flow Depth Area Velocity WP n-value Crit Depth HGL EGL Max Shear Top Width

(cfs) (ft) (sqft) (ft/s) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (lb/sqft) (ft)

4.20 0.21 1.02 4.13 5.73 0.030 0.30 1118.21 1118.48 0.92 5.68

EXHIBIT #4



Channel Report
Project Name: New Project

Studio Express by Hydrology Studio v 1.0.0.9 06-20-2021

Dev 10-yr DA #1 Channel 2

TRAPEZOIDAL

Bottom Width = 4.00 ft

Side Slope Left, z:1 = 4.00

Side Slope Right, z:1 = 4.00

Total Depth = 2.00 ft

Invert Elevation = 1118.00 ft

Channel Slope = 7.000 %

Manning's n = 0.030

DISCHARGE

Method = Known Q

Known Q = 4.70 cfs

CALCULATION SAMPLE

Flow Depth Area Velocity WP n-value Crit Depth HGL EGL Max Shear Top Width

(cfs) (ft) (sqft) (ft/s) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (lb/sqft) (ft)

4.70 0.23 1.13 4.15 5.90 0.030 0.32 1118.23 1118.50 1.00 5.84

EXHIBIT #5



Channel Report
Project Name: New Project

Studio Express by Hydrology Studio v 1.0.0.9 06-20-2021

Exist 100-yr DA #1 Channel 3

TRAPEZOIDAL

Bottom Width = 4.00 ft

Side Slope Left, z:1 = 4.00

Side Slope Right, z:1 = 4.00

Total Depth = 2.00 ft

Invert Elevation = 1118.00 ft

Channel Slope = 7.000 %

Manning's n = 0.030

DISCHARGE

Method = Known Q

Known Q = 7.50 cfs

CALCULATION SAMPLE

Flow Depth Area Velocity WP n-value Crit Depth HGL EGL Max Shear Top Width

(cfs) (ft) (sqft) (ft/s) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (lb/sqft) (ft)

7.50 0.30 1.56 4.81 6.47 0.030 0.42 1118.30 1118.66 1.31 6.40

EXHIBIT #6



Channel Report
Project Name: New Project

Studio Express by Hydrology Studio v 1.0.0.9 06-20-2021

Dev 100-yr DA #1 Channel 4

TRAPEZOIDAL

Bottom Width = 4.00 ft

Side Slope Left, z:1 = 4.00

Side Slope Right, z:1 = 4.00

Total Depth = 2.00 ft

Invert Elevation = 1118.00 ft

Channel Slope = 7.000 %

Manning's n = 0.030

DISCHARGE

Method = Known Q

Known Q = 8.20 cfs

CALCULATION SAMPLE

Flow Depth Area Velocity WP n-value Crit Depth HGL EGL Max Shear Top Width

(cfs) (ft) (sqft) (ft/s) (ft) (ft) (ft) (ft) (lb/sqft) (ft)

8.20 0.31 1.62 5.05 6.56 0.030 0.44 1118.31 1118.71 1.35 6.48

EXHIBIT #7



Drainage Area #1- 10 year

Existing Conditions Area = 2.1 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i10 = 175/(Tc +18.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.36

L= 300 Ti = 12.1 i10 = 214/(Tc +26.7) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 7.0

K= 1 Tt = 0.50

Tc = 12.6

i10 = 5.58

Q=KCiA

Q= 4.2 cfs

Developed Conditions Area = 2.1 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i10 = 175/(Tc +18.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.39

L= 300 Ti = 11.6 i10 = 214/(Tc +26.7) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 7.0

K= 1 Tt = 0.50

Tc = 12.1

i10 = 5.67

Q=KCiA

Q= 4.7 cfs



Drainage Area #1 - 100 year

Existing Conditions Area = 2.1 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i100 = 256/(Tc +19.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.36

L= 300 Ti = 12.1 i100 = 331/(Tc +30) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 7.0

K= 1.25 Tt = 0.50

Tc = 12.6

i100 = 7.91

Q=KCiA

Q= 7.5 cfs

Developed Conditions Area = 2.1 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i100 = 256/(Tc +19.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.39

L= 300 Ti = 11.6 i100 = 331/(Tc +30) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 7.0

K= 1.25 Tt = 0.50

Tc = 12.1

i100 = 8.03

Q=KCiA

Q= 8.2 cfs



Drainage Area #2- 10 year

Existing Conditions Area = 4.1 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i10 = 175/(Tc +18.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.42

L= 400 Ti = 9.8 i10 = 214/(Tc +26.7) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 10.0

K= 1 Tt = 0.67

Tc = 10.5

i10 = 5.97

Q=KCiA

Q= 10.3 cfs

Developed Conditions Area = 4.1 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i10 = 175/(Tc +18.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.41

L= 400 Ti = 10.0 i10 = 214/(Tc +26.7) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 10.0

K= 1 Tt = 0.67

Tc = 10.7

i10 = 5.93

Q=KCiA

Q= 9.9 cfs



Drainage Area #2 - 100 year

Existing Conditions Area = 4.1 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i100 = 256/(Tc +19.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.42

L= 400 Ti = 9.8 i100 = 331/(Tc +30) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 10.0

K= 1.25 Tt = 0.67

Tc = 10.5

i100 = 8.45

Q=KCiA

Q= 18.2 cfs

Developed Conditions Area = 4.1 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i100 = 256/(Tc +19.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.41

L= 400 Ti = 10.0 i100 = 331/(Tc +30) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 10.0

K= 1.25 Tt = 0.67

Tc = 10.7

i100 = 8.39

Q=KCiA

Q= 17.5 cfs



Drainage Area #3- 10 year

Existing Conditions Area = 4.8 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i10 = 175/(Tc +18.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.37

L= 400 Ti = 11.4 i10 = 214/(Tc +26.7) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 8.0

K= 1 Tt = 0.67

Tc = 12.1

i10 = 5.66

Q=KCiA

Q= 9.9 cfs

Developed Conditions Area = 4.8 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i10 = 175/(Tc +18.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.37

L= 400 Ti = 11.4 i10 = 214/(Tc +26.7) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 8.0

K= 1 Tt = 0.67

Tc = 12.1

i10 = 5.66

Q=KCiA

Q= 9.9 cfs



Drainage Area #3 - 100 year

Existing Conditions Area = 4.8 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i100 = 256/(Tc +19.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.37

L= 400 Ti = 11.4 i100 = 331/(Tc +30) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 8.0

K= 1.25 Tt = 0.67

Tc = 12.1

i100 = 8.02

Q=KCiA

Q= 17.6 cfs

Developed Conditions Area = 4.8 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i100 = 256/(Tc +19.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.37

L= 400 Ti = 11.4 i100 = 331/(Tc +30) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 8.0

K= 1.25 Tt = 0.67

Tc = 12.1

i100 = 8.02

Q=KCiA

Q= 17.6 cfs



From:                                         Amanda Tarwater
Sent:                                           Tuesday, April 27, 2021 8:14 AM
To:                                               Gentzler, Joshua
Subject:                                     Re: Review Requested - Case DEV-21-059/060 - Preliminary/Final Plat

for Brockert Hill
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
FreeState Electric has no objec�on to this request.
 
 
Thank you,
 

Amanda Tarwater
Member Account Coordinator

1-800-794-1989 | www.freestate.coop

From: "Gentzler, Joshua" <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Date: Monday, April 26, 2021 at 10:02 AM
To: "Magaha, Chuck" <CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>, "Miller, Jamie"
<JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>, "Patzwald, Joshua"
<jpatzwald@leavenworthcounty.gov>, "Van Parys, David"
<DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>, "'butchbollin@yahoo.com'"
<butchbollin@yahoo.com>, "'tmgoetz@stjoewireless.com'"
<tmgoetz@stjoewireless.com>, Amanda Tarwater <amanda.holloway@freestate.coop>
Subject: Review Requested - Case DEV-21-059/060 - Preliminary/Final Plat for Brockert
Hill
 
 

Warning: This message originated outside of the FEC organiza�on. Do not click links or open
a�achments unless you have validated the sender and know the content is safe. <=""
span="">

The Leavenworth County Department of Planning and Zoning has received a request for a
Preliminary and Final Plat for Brockert Hill.
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by End of Business on
Tuesday, May 4th.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0464 or
at JGentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov.
 
Thank you,
 

mailto:amanda.holloway@freestate.coop
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JGentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov


From:                                         Tim Goetz

Sent:                                           Wednesday, April 28, 2021 8:54 AM

To:                                               Gentzler, Joshua

Subject:                                     Re: Review Requested - Case DEV-21-059/060 - Preliminary/Final  
Plat for Brockert Hill

 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.

 

Leavenworth Water District #5 has no issues.

 

 

mailto:tmgoetz@stjoewireless.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov


From:                                         Mitch Pleak
Sent:                                           Friday, June 25, 2021 11:49 AM
To:                                               Gentzler, Joshua
Cc:                                               Anderson, Lauren; Noll, Bill; 019-2831
Subject:                                     RE: DEV-21-059/060 Brockert Hill Revision
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Joshua,
There is no further comments on the PP, FP, and Drainage Report.
 
Thanks,
 
Mitch Pleak
 
From: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Sent: Monday, June 21, 2021 11:18 AM
To: Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com>
Cc: Anderson, Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: RE: DEV-21-059/060 Brockert Hill Revision
 
Mitch,
 
Here are the revisions to the Drainage Report and the Plats.
 
Joshua Gentzler
Planning & Zoning
 

From: Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, June 8, 2021 4:58 PM
To: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Cc: Anderson, Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Voth, Krystal
<KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Noll, Bill <BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 019-2831 <019-
2831@olsson.com>
Subject: RE: DEV-21-059/060 Brockert Hill Revision
 
No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Joshua,
Lauren and I have reviewed the PP, FP, and drainage report. PP and FP comments are in the link
below.
 
Drainage Report Comments:

In general, revise per the recent Final Plat change to remove the shared access easement
including exhibit #1.
Page 2, the exis�ng condi�on narra�ve and table doesn’t include the exis�ng driveway or
building. Provide a table a table of c values, drainage areas, and composite c results with
formula.
Page 2, in the developed condi�on table further split up the pasture c values in the table.
Note, 0.42 c value is associated with 10-30% slopes. Iden�fy the different sloped areas in
Exhibit #1.

mailto:mpleak@olsson.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:019-2831@olsson.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php__;!!OlGkjAV-rZfRNzw!cOWZqzzuI-k9jI_no7EQEU5G-SBAMH53QDEmMPG0JPb_1DCDWWN7VVtM9F_Pmg$
mailto:mpleak@olsson.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:019-2831@olsson.com


Page 2, a por�on of the proposed impervious area should be included in Lot # 2 in drainage
area #3.
Page 2, add language defining the Q units in the table.
Page 3, provide a narra�ve and assump�ons in how the depth was calculated for the
increase in storm runoff.

 

Citrix A�achments Expires December 5, 2021

2021.04.23 DEV-21-059 Prelim.pdf 914.7 KB

rev1-brockert.pdf 1.2 MB

Download A�achments

Mitchell Pleak uses Citrix Files to share documents securely.

 
 
Thanks,
 
Mitch Pleak
 
 
From: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, June 3, 2021 3:30 PM
To: Anderson, Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com>
Subject: DEV-21-059/060 Brockert Hill Revision
 
Here’s the revision to the Brockert Hill Final Plat.
 
Joshua Gentzler
Planning & Zoning
 

From: larry hahn <hahnsurvey@gmail.com> 
Sent: Friday, May 28, 2021 12:20 PM
To: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: Re: DEV-21-059/060 Brockert Hill Comments
 
No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Joshua -
A�ached is the revised Brockert Hill.

Larry Hahn, LS
Hahn Surveying
PO Box 41
Lansing, Ks. 66043
(913) 547-3405
 
 
On Fri, May 28, 2021 at 8:18 AM Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov> wrote:

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/olsson.sharefile.com/d-s2f0e1219a82a4464b193ef437466c728__;!!OlGkjAV-rZfRNzw!cOWZqzzuI-k9jI_no7EQEU5G-SBAMH53QDEmMPG0JPb_1DCDWWN7VVtAaUCCSA$
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:mpleak@olsson.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php__;!!OlGkjAV-rZfRNzw!avPDBMWV7FaESBwl58ZgWtdOsZOExRn9AFOOMthstX6N4lvGFfOdHE72v7ZTpA$
mailto:hahnsurvey@gmail.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov


Larry, I’ve not seen a revised plat for Brockert Hill. Have you sent over an updated plat to Bill?
Thanks,
Joshua Gentzler
Planning & Zoning
From: Gentzler, Joshua 
Sent: Monday, May 17, 2021 4:42 PM
To: Larry Hahn (hahnsurvey@gmail.com) <hahnsurvey@gmail.com>
Subject: DEV-21-059/060 Brockert Hill Comments
Larry,
Public Works has the following ques�ons/comments about the Brockert Hill plat:
The property being split has a driveway that not only extends to the barn on the property but
extends further south to the adjacent property for access to a barn on 30578 207th. They have
granted a private access easement through lot 1 to lot 2 for maintained access to the exis�ng
barn.
• Is the inten�on to remove the rest of the exis�ng drive that extends further south? Or will
they be maintaining this drive to extend through all 3 proper�es? If the drive is to con�nue to
service the southern unpla�ed property (30578 207th) then it now services 3 proper�es which
a private drive cannot do.
• If they intend to remove the exis�ng access, I want to make sure that it is understood that
they do not have the required spacing along 207th (arterial) to acquire a second entrance to
the barn behind 30578 and will have to access off their exis�ng driveway.
Planning and Zoning has no addi�onal comments.
Please revise and send an updated plat and response to these comments by, Monday, May
24th.
Thank you,
Joshua Gentzler
Planner II
Planning & Zoning
Leavenworth County
913.684.0464

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php__;!!OlGkjAV-rZfRNzw!avPDBMWV7FaESBwl58ZgWtdOsZOExRn9AFOOMthstX6N4lvGFfOdHE72v7ZTpA$
mailto:hahnsurvey@gmail.com
mailto:hahnsurvey@gmail.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php__;!!OlGkjAV-rZfRNzw!avPDBMWV7FaESBwl58ZgWtdOsZOExRn9AFOOMthstX6N4lvGFfOdHE72v7ZTpA$


DEV-21-059 & 060 Brockert Hill

400.0

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Feet400.00

Notes

Legend

200.00

1 in. = 200ft.

This Cadastral Map is for informational purposes only.  It does not purport to
represent a property boundary survey of the parcels shown and shall not be

used for conveyances or the establishment of property boundaries.

Address Point

Parcel Number

Lot Line

Parcel

City Limit Line

Major Road

<all other values>

70

Road

Railroad

Section

Section Boundaries

County Boundary



Traverse PC



Traverse PC



 

August 11, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

***Consent Agenda*** 
Case No. DEV-21-079/080 

Bretz Farm 
Preliminary and Final Plat 

 
Staff Report – Planning Commission      August 11, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/                   Kenneth & David Shoemaker 
Property Owner: 22565 207th Street 

Tonganoxie, KS 66086 
 
Agent: Joe Herring   
 
Legal Description:      A tract of land in the southeast ¼ of Section 20, Township 9 South, Range 

22 East of the 6th P.M, in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 
 

Parcel Size: ± 45 acres 
 
Zoning/Land Use: RR-5, Rural Residential 5-acre minimum size parcels 
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential land use category.   
 
Parcel ID No.:   104-20-0-00-00-009.00 

 
Planner:  Krystal A. Voth 
 

REPORT: 
 

Request   
The applicant is requesting a Preliminary and Final Plat for a four-lot subdivision.  
 
Adjacent Land Use 
The surrounding properties are residences and farms on varying sized parcels ranging from 1 acre to over 
140 acres in size.   
 
Flood Plain   
There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C0225G July 16, 2015.  
 
Utilities/Services 
Sewer: Private septic system  
Fire: Fire District 1 
Water: RWD 8  
Electric: FreeState 
 
Access/Streets  
Lot 1 and Lot 2 are accessed by Stranger Road, a County Local Road with a gravel surface. Lot 3 and Lot 4 
area accessed by Tonganoxie Drive, a County Arterial with a paved surface.  
 
Agency Comments 
See attached comments – Email – Lauren Anderson – Public Works, June 8, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Mike Bogina – County Survey Reviewer, June 8, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Michael Stackhouse –Township Fire Department, June 9, 2021 
See attached comments – Email –Becky Fousek – Rural Water District 8, June 2, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Amanda Tarwater – Electric utility, June 3, 2021 
 
 
 
 



 

August 11, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

 
 
Findings 

1. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the RR-5 Zoning District. Each lot meets the minimum 
requirement for road frontage and lot area.  

 
2. The proposer is not within a sewer district not is within 660’ feet of the incorporated limits of a 

municipality. Therefore, an onsite wastewater system is permitted per the Leavenworth County 
Sanitary Code.  

 
3. At time of development, fire hydrants shall be required if water facilities are available.  

 
4. The proposed subdivision is in alignment with the Comprehensive Plan.  

 
 

Subdivision Classification 
This is classified as a Class “” Subdivision. According to the Leavenworth County Zoning & Subdivision 
regulations, a Class “” Subdivision is any subdivision in which all the lots lie within the Rural Growth Area of 
Leavenworth County. Staff is supportive of a waiver of the requirement to connect to a sanitary sewer system 
as sanitary sewers are not located within 660’ of the subdivision. (See condition 4.) 
 
Staff Comments   
The applicants are proposing a four-lot subdivision. Each of the lost exceeds the minimum requirements for 
the Zoning District. Lot 1 and Lot 2 front on Stranger Road and are each approximately 15 acres in size. Lot 
3 and Lot 4 Tonganoxie Drive. Lot 3 is approximately seven acres while lot 4 is approximately eight acres. In 
order to run rural water to the lots road bores are required. According to regulation, lots greater than five 
acres are permitted a well. Therefore, there are multiple water sources available to this development. he 
subdivision meets the zoning regulations and Staff supports the request.   
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of Case No.DEV-21-079/080, Preliminary and Final Plat for Bretz Farm, with the 
following conditions: 
 

1. Building permits shall be required for any new construction. 
 

2. Erosion control shall be used when designing and constructing driveways.  A form of sediment control 
shall be installed before work begins and maintained throughout the time that the land disturbing 
activities are taking place.  Re-vegetation of all disturbed sites shall be completed within 45 days after 
completion of final grading weather permitting. 
 

3. The applicant shall adhere to the following memorandums:  
a. See attached comments – Email – Lauren Anderson – Public Works, June 8, 2021 
b. See attached comments – Email – Mike Bogina – County Survey Reviewer, June 8, 2021 
 

4.  A waiver for the use of private septic systems within this subdivision is granted with this approval. 
 

5. At time of development, fire hydrants shall be required if necessary infrastructure is available. 
 

6. After approval of this subdivision by the Board of County Commission, all conditions listed shall be 
adhered to and copies shall be provided to the Planning and Zoning Department within 30 days. 
 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No.DEV-21-079/080, Preliminary and Final Plat for Bretz Farm, to the 
Board of County Commission, with or without conditions; or 
 

2. Recommend denial of Case No.DEV-21-079/080, Preliminary and Final Plat for Bretz Farm, to the 
Board of County Commission for the following reasons; or  

 
3. Continue the hearing to another date, time, and place. 



 

August 11, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 3 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Aerial Map 
Memorandums  
Preliminary and Final Plat 
 

 





1

Sloop, Stephanie

From: Mike Stackhouse <firedistrict1@fd1lv.org>

Sent: Wednesday, June 9, 2021 11:41 AM

To: Sloop, Stephanie

Subject: RE: DEV-21-079 & 080 Preliminary and Final Plat for Bretz Farms

Attachments: Appendix C and D for subdivisions.pdf

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Stephanie, 
 
  Since this is being sold as a subdivision it will need to utilize the attached Appendix C and D for hydrant spacing and 
access road requirements taken from the 2006 International Fire Code.  If all access will be from the two primary roads 
for each lot, then appendix D would not be utilized.  The prints show one area marked as an entrance which suggests 
internal roads.  This scenario will need to utilize Appendix D.  I realize these are preliminary plans and at some point, 
more in depth plans providing hydrant spacing and fire department access roads will be required. Thank you. 
 
B/R, 
 
Michael L. Stackhouse 
Fire Chief 
Fire District #1 of Leavenworth County 
111 E. Kansas Avenue 
Lansing, KS. 66043 
Office: 913-727-5844 
Cell: 913-683-3223 

 
 

From: Sloop, Stephanie <SSloop@leavenworthcounty.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 4:23 PM 
To: cmagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov; jmiller@leavenworthcounty.gov; Patzwald, Joshua 
<jpatzwald@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Van Parys, David <DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Mike Stackhouse 
<firedistrict1@fd1lv.org>; 'amanda.holloway@freestate.coop' <amanda.holloway@freestate.coop>; 
'rwd8lv@gmail.com' <rwd8lv@gmail.com> 
Cc: Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: DEV-21-079 & 080 Preliminary and Final Plat for Bretz Farms 
 
The Leavenworth County Department of Planning and Zoning has received a request for a Preliminary and Final Plat for 
Bretz Farms. 
 











1

Sloop, Stephanie

From: Rural Water <rwd8lv@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 4:59 PM

To: Sloop, Stephanie

Subject: Re: DEV-21-079 & 080 Preliminary and Final Plat for Bretz Farms

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Stephanie Sloop,  
 
RWD#8 will be able to provide water service to the Bretz Farm Subdivision, when proper application is made to RWD#8 
Board of Directors. 
RWD#8 has a 4" water line on the South side of Stranger Road, therefore a road bore is necessary to get service to the 
North side of the road.   
The plat has Lot 3 along Tonganoxie Drive therefore a road bore is necessary to get service to this Lot, RWD#8 has a 4" 
line and a 6" line on the East side of  
Tonganoxie Dr.  
Meters purchased on or after July 1, 2021 will be $5,000.00. 
 
If you have any questions please call me: 913-796-2164. 
Becky-RWD#8 
 
On Wed, Jun 2, 2021 at 4:23 PM Sloop, Stephanie <SSloop@leavenworthcounty.gov> wrote: 

The Leavenworth County Department of Planning and Zoning has received a request for a Preliminary and Final Plat for 
Bretz Farms. 

  

The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request. Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by June 9, 2021.  

  

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact our office. 

  

Thank you, 

  

  

Stephanie Sloop 

  







August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

***Consent Agenda*** 
Case No. DEV-21-081/082 

Carbaugh Estates 
Preliminary and Final Plat 

 
Staff Report – Planning Commission      August 5, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/                   David & Shannon Lutgen 
Property Owner: 15554 Elm Street 

Tonganoxie, KS 66086 
 
Agent:  Herring Surveying Company 

  315 N. 5th Street 
 Leavenworth, KS 66048   
 
Legal Description:      A tract of land in the Southeast Quarter of Section 15, Township 11 South, 

Range 20 East of the 6th P.M, in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 
 

Parcel Size: ± 11.9 acres 
 
Zoning/Land Use: RR-2.5, Rural Residential 2.5-acre minimum size parcels 
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential land use category.   
 
Parcel ID No.:   205-15-0-00-00-014.00 

 
Planner:  Joshua Gentzler 
 

REPORT: 
 

Request   
The applicant is requesting a Preliminary and Final Plat for a three (3) lot subdivision.  
 
Adjacent Land Use 
The surrounding properties are residences and farms on varying sized parcels ranging from 2.5 acres to 27 
acres in size.   
 
Flood Plain   
There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C300G July 16, 2015.  
 
Utilities/Services 
Sewer: Private septic system  
Fire: Tonganoxie Fire Department 
Water: RWD 13 
Electric: Freestate 
 
Access/Streets  
The property is accessed by 254th Street. This road is a local County road with a paved surface ± 25’ wide. 
 
Agency Comments 
See attached comments – Email – Kyle Anderson – Planning and Zoning, Month day, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Mitch Pleak – Public Works, June 25, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Mitch Pleak – Public Works, July 6, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Lauren Anderson – County Surveyor, June 24, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Joe Osborn – Rural Water District 13, June 14, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Amanda Tarwater – FreeState, June 3, 2021 
 
 

 



August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

Findings 
1. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the zoning district of RR 2.5; Rural Residential Zoning 2.5-

acre minimum size parcels and meets the lot-depth to lot-width ratio of 3.5:1 or 4:1, have the minimum 
frontage of 200’, and minimum lot size of 2.5 acres.  

2. The property is not within a sewer district boundary or is within 660 feet of the incorporated limits of a 
municipality; therefore, a waiver to the requirement of allowing private septic systems is supported by 
staff. A private sewage disposal permit may be issued per Leavenworth County Sanitary Code 
requirements.     

3. At time of development, fire hydrants shall be required if necessary infrastructure is available. 
4. The proposed subdivision is in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Subdivision Classification 

 
This is classified as a Class “C” Subdivision. According to the Leavenworth County Zoning & Subdivision 
regulations, a Class “C” Subdivision is any subdivision in which all the lots lie within the Rural Growth Area of 
Leavenworth County. 
 
Staff is supportive of a waiver of the requirement to connect to a sanitary sewer system as sanitary sewers 
are not located within 660’ of the subdivision. (See condition 4.) 
 
Staff Comments   
 
The applicant is requesting the approval of a three (3) lot subdivision located immediately south of 17305 
254th Street. Zoning of the property and the neighborhood across 254th Street is RR-2.5. All three lots are 4 
acres in size and meet the requirements for the zoning district. 
 
The applicant has filed a deed restriction with the Register of Deeds office that will not allow any future 
subdividing of this parcel.  
 
Staff is supportive of the request as proposed and recommends approval of the development. 
  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The staff recommends approval of Case No. DEV-21-081 & 082, Preliminary and Final Plat for Carbaugh 
Estates, with the following conditions: 
 

1. Building permits shall be required for any new construction. 
 

2. The lots created by this plat shall not be further divided, as per the Deed Restriction filed with the 
Register of Deeds. 

 
3. Erosion control shall be used when designing and constructing driveways.  A form of sediment 

control shall be installed before work begins and maintained throughout the time that the land 
disturbing activities are taking place.  Re-vegetation of all disturbed sites shall be completed within 
45 days after completion of final grading weather permitting. 

 
4. The applicant shall adhere to the following memorandums: 

a. Joe Osborn – Rural Water District 13, June 14, 2021 
 
5. A waiver for the use of private septic systems within this subdivision is granted with this approval. 
 
6. At time of development, fire hydrants shall be required if necessary infrastructure is available. 
 
7. After approval of this subdivision by the Board of County Commission, all conditions listed shall be 

adhered to and copies shall be provided to the Planning and Zoning Department within 30 days. 
 

  



August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 3 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-21-081 & 082, Preliminary and Final Plat for Carbaugh 
Estates, to the Board of County Commission, with or without conditions; or 
 

2. Recommend denial of No. DEV-21-081 & 082, Preliminary and Final Plat for Carbaugh Estates, to the 
Board of County Commission for the following reasons; or  

 
3. Continue the hearing to another date, time, and place. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Aerial Map 
Memorandums  
Preliminary and Final Plat 
 

 



From:                              Anderson, Lauren
Sent:                               Thursday, June 24, 2021 3:16 PM
To:                                   'Joe Herring'; Gentzler, Joshua
Subject:                          RE: Carbaugh Estates Submi�al DEV-21-081 & 082
A�achments:                 2021.06.24 Carbaugh Rev 1 Comments.pdf

 
Joe,
 
Please see the a�ached survey comments.
 
Lauren
 
From: Joe Herring <herringsurveying@outlook.com> 
Sent: Monday, June 21, 2021 9:55 PM
To: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Anderson, Lauren
<LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: Re: Carbaugh Estates Submi�al DEV-21-081 & 082
 
Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
See a�ached revised plats and closure calcs.
 
 
Thank you - Joe Herring
__________________________________
J.Herring Inc., dba,Herring Surveying Company
315 N. 5th Street, Leavenworth, KS 66048
913-651-3858 - ROCK CHALK!
 
 
 
 

From: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Sent: Monday, June 14, 2021 2:42 PM
To: 'Joe Herring' <herringsurveying@outlook.com>
Subject: RE: Carbaugh Estates Submi�al DEV-21-081 & 082
 
Joe,
 
See a�ached PW’s review of the plats and comments on the drainage report. Planning has no
comments to add to the Surveyor & PW comments.
 
Drainage Report Comments:

Page 2, the exis�ng condi�on narra�ve and table should include the pond surface.
Page 2, the developed condi�on narra�ve and table should include the pond surface.
Page 2, the developed condi�on narra�ve should include a statement of maintained lawn
shown in the developed condi�on table.
Page 3, add language defining the Q units in the table.
Page 3, with a developed C value less there should not be a change of 0% in the Q.
In general revise the report with the above comments.

mailto:LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:herringsurveying@outlook.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:herringsurveying@outlook.com


 
Joshua Gentzler
Planning & Zoning
 
From: Joe Herring <herringsurveying@outlook.com> 
Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2021 12:40 PM
To: PZ <PZ@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: Carbaugh Estates Submi�al
 
No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Please see the a�ached applica�on and documenta�on.
Will drop off payment this a�ernoon.
Dave filled out the authoriza�on and should be in his file at your office.
 
Thank you - Joe Herring
__________________________________
J.Herring Inc., dba,Herring Surveying Company
315 N. 5th Street, Leavenworth, KS 66048
913-651-3858 - ROCK CHALK!
 
 
 

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.leavenworthcounty.gov%2Fdepartments%2Fplanning___zoning%2Findex.php&data=04%7C01%7C%7C84669470988047265ad008d92f6c9172%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637592966110967442%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=VrRj1OwtnhOD%2FO0GOKyjnusSdwFL%2FRu4rF9RK8f2Yy4%3D&reserved=0
mailto:herringsurveying@outlook.com
mailto:PZ@leavenworthcounty.gov


Provide LSRRs

1



Summary of Comments on Carbaugh Estates FINAL 
24x36LS
Page: 1

Number: 1 Author: mjbogina Subject: Typewritten Text Date: 6/24/2021 1:49:12 PM 
Provide LSRRs



From:                                         Mitch Pleak
Sent:                                           Tuesday, July 6, 2021 10:24 AM
To:                                               Gentzler, Joshua; Anderson, Lauren
Cc:                                               Voth, Krystal; Noll, Bill; 019-2831
Subject:                                     RE: Fw: Carbaugh Estates Submi�al DEV-21-081 & 082
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Joshua,
The drainage report was reviewed with no further comments.
 
Thanks,
 
Mitch Pleak
 
From: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Sent: Monday, June 28, 2021 10:56 AM
To: Anderson, Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com>
Subject: FW: Fw: Carbaugh Estates Submi�al DEV-21-081 & 082
 
Here is the revised Drainage Report.
 
Joshua Gentzler
Planning & Zoning
 

From: David Lutgen <dlutgen72@gmail.com> 
Sent: Monday, June 28, 2021 6:41 AM
To: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Cc: Joe Herring <herringsurveying@outlook.com>
Subject: Re: Fw: Carbaugh Estates Submi�al DEV-21-081 & 082
 
No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Joshua,
 
An updated drainage report is a�ached. Let me know if any addi�onal informa�on is needed.
 
Thanks
 
David Lutgen
 
On Fri, Jun 25, 2021 at 1:51 PM Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov> wrote:

David,
 
Here is the response from Public Works:
 

You do not need to add the exis�ng pond into the exis�ng or developed composite “C”
calcula�on. The exis�ng pond is men�oned in the exis�ng condi�on paragraph. Page 2,

mailto:mpleak@olsson.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:019-2831@olsson.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php__;!!OlGkjAV-rZfRNzw!ac637IDObUyJemR_Rs0JoRLgvqavZaqk77vym-7U4BUYgJ-XKFpsKTFxGmSb4A$
mailto:dlutgen72@gmail.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:herringsurveying@outlook.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov


provide a statement in the developed condi�on paragraph to include “Exis�ng pond to
remain unchanged as part of the developed condi�on”.
Page 2, the developed condi�on narra�ve should include a statement of maintained
lawn shown in the developed condi�on table.
Page 3, add language defining the Q units in the table.
Page 3, with a developed C value less, there would not be a change of 0% in the Q.
In general revise the report with the above comments.

 
Thank you,
 
Joshua Gentzler
Planning & Zoning
 
From: David Lutgen <dlutgen72@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, June 22, 2021 6:43 AM
To: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Cc: Joe Herring <herringsurveying@outlook.com>
Subject: Re: Fw: Carbaugh Estates Submi�al DEV-21-081 & 082
 
No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you
trust the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Joshua,
 
In general, when doing a storm water report if a pond is not being used for deten�on then I
include it in the acreage of the surrounding land. I am assuming this is a new reviewer at Olsson
since these comments have not come up previously. I have done a lot of reports in LV County
with ponds on the project sites and I have never been asked to include the pond in the report. I
have a�ached one report as an example.
 
If the reviewer is going to insist on the pond being included, what c value do they want used?
 
Thanks
 
David Lutgen, P.E.
 
On Mon, Jun 21, 2021 at 9:21 PM Joe Herring <herringsurveying@outlook.com> wrote:

Did you see these yet?
 
Thank you - Joe Herring
__________________________________
J.Herring Inc., dba,Herring Surveying Company
315 N. 5th Street, Leavenworth, KS 66048
913-651-3858 - ROCK CHALK!
 
 
 

From: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Sent: Monday, June 14, 2021 2:42 PM
To: 'Joe Herring' <herringsurveying@outlook.com>
Subject: RE: Carbaugh Estates Submi�al DEV-21-081 & 082
Joe,

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php__;!!OlGkjAV-rZfRNzw!ac637IDObUyJemR_Rs0JoRLgvqavZaqk77vym-7U4BUYgJ-XKFpsKTFxGmSb4A$
mailto:dlutgen72@gmail.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:herringsurveying@outlook.com
mailto:herringsurveying@outlook.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:herringsurveying@outlook.com


See a�ached PW’s review of the plats and comments on the drainage report. Planning has no
comments to add to the Surveyor & PW comments.
Drainage Report Comments:

Page 2, the exis�ng condi�on narra�ve and table should include the pond surface.
Page 2, the developed condi�on narra�ve and table should include the pond surface.
Page 2, the developed condi�on narra�ve should include a statement of maintained
lawn shown in the developed condi�on table.
Page 3, add language defining the Q units in the table.
Page 3, with a developed C value less there should not be a change of 0% in the Q.
In general revise the report with the above comments.

Joshua Gentzler
Planning & Zoning
From: Joe Herring <herringsurveying@outlook.com> 
Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2021 12:40 PM
To: PZ <PZ@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: Carbaugh Estates Submi�al
No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you
trust the sender and know the content is safe.
Please see the a�ached applica�on and documenta�on.
Will drop off payment this a�ernoon.
Dave filled out the authoriza�on and should be in his file at your office.
Thank you - Joe Herring
__________________________________
J.Herring Inc., dba,Herring Surveying Company
315 N. 5th Street, Leavenworth, KS 66048
913-651-3858 - ROCK CHALK!

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Fwww.leavenworthcounty.gov*2Fdepartments*2Fplanning___zoning*2Findex.php&data=04*7C01*7C*7C84669470988047265ad008d92f6c9172*7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa*7C1*7C0*7C637592966110967442*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C1000&sdata=VrRj1OwtnhOD*2FO0GOKyjnusSdwFL*2FRu4rF9RK8f2Yy4*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSU!!OlGkjAV-rZfRNzw!ac637IDObUyJemR_Rs0JoRLgvqavZaqk77vym-7U4BUYgJ-XKFpsKTHIhKy7-Q$
mailto:herringsurveying@outlook.com
mailto:PZ@leavenworthcounty.gov


From:                                         Mitch Pleak
Sent:                                           Friday, June 25, 2021 11:45 AM
To:                                               Gentzler, Joshua
Cc:                                               Anderson, Lauren; Noll, Bill; 019-2831
Subject:                                     RE: DEV-21-081 & 082 Review of Preliminary & Final Plat for

Carbaugh Estates
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Joshua,
There is no further comments for the PP and FP.
 
Drainage Report Comments:

Mr. Lutgen does not need to add the exis�ng pond into the exis�ng or developed
composite “C” calcula�on. The exis�ng pond is men�oned in the exis�ng condi�on
paragraph. Page 2, provide a statement in the developed condi�on paragraph to include
“Exis�ng pond to remain unchanged as part of the developed condi�on”.
Page 2, the developed condi�on narra�ve should include a statement of maintained lawn
shown in the developed condi�on table.
Page 3, add language defining the Q units in the table.
Page 3, with a developed C value less, there would not be a change of 0% in the Q.
In general revise the report with the above comments.

 
Sincerely,
 
Mitch Pleak
 
From: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, June 22, 2021 8:17 AM
To: Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com>; Anderson, Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: RE: DEV-21-081 & 082 Review of Preliminary & Final Plat for Carbaugh Estates
 
Mitch and Lauren,
 
I’ve a�ached the revisions to the Carbaugh Estates documents.
 
Got this response from David Lutgen in regards to the Drainage report:
 
In general, when doing a storm water report if a pond is not being used for deten�on then I include
it in the acreage of the surrounding land. I am assuming this is a new reviewer at Olsson since
these comments have not come up previously. I have done a lot of reports in LV County with ponds
on the project sites and I have never been asked to include the pond in the report. I have a�ached
one report as an example.
 
If the reviewer is going to insist on the pond being included, what c value do they want used?
 
Thanks,
 
Joshua Gentzler
Planning & Zoning
 

mailto:mpleak@olsson.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:019-2831@olsson.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php__;!!OlGkjAV-rZfRNzw!baJsHgGtXmANldJwRbFmECY8U4e9jfx-RghIJLb8_QclRl30Rv8TUjLTBcDi7w$


From: Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, June 8, 2021 4:30 PM
To: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Cc: Anderson, Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Noll, Bill
<BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 019-2831
<019-2831@olsson.com>
Subject: RE: DEV-21-081 & 082 Review of Preliminary & Final Plat for Carbaugh Estates
 
No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Joshua,
Lauren and I have reviewed the PP, FP, and drainage report. PP and FP comments are in the link
below.
 
Drainage Report Comments:

Page 2, the exis�ng condi�on narra�ve and table should include the pond surface.
Page 2, the developed condi�on narra�ve and table should include the pond surace.
Page 2, the developed condi�on narra�ve should include a statement of maintained lawn
shown in the developed condi�on table.
Page 3, add language defining the Q units in the table.
Page 3, with a developed C value less there should not be a change of 0% in the Q.
In general revise the report with the above comments.

 

Citrix A�achments Expires December 5, 2021

2021.05.27 DEV-21-081 PRELIM.pdf 1.5 MB

2021.05.27 DEV-21-082 FINAL.pdf 1.9 MB

Download A�achments

Mitchell Pleak uses Citrix Files to share documents securely.

 
Thanks,
 
Mitch Pleak

 

From: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 2:17 PM
To: Anderson, Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com>;
Noll, Bill <BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: DEV-21-081 & 082 Review of Preliminary & Final Plat for Carbaugh Estates
 
The Leavenworth County Department of Planning and Zoning has received a request for a
Preliminary and Final Plat for Carbaugh Estates.
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by End of Business on
Wednesday, June 9th, 2021.

mailto:mpleak@olsson.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:019-2831@olsson.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/olsson.sharefile.com/d-s34045604e15b401ea7c9c176e6ec2c38__;!!OlGkjAV-rZfRNzw!baJsHgGtXmANldJwRbFmECY8U4e9jfx-RghIJLb8_QclRl30Rv8TUjJPY2JUXg$
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:mpleak@olsson.com
mailto:BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov


dlutgen72@gmail.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Carbaugh Estates 

Leavenworth County Kansas 

Drainage Report 

 May 17, 2021 

Revised June 27, 2021 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



dlutgen72@gmail.com 

Parcel Information - The 12.1-acre (+/-) parcel is located at the south west corner of 254th Street and 

Conley Road in Leavenworth County KS.  An application has been submitted to rezone the property from 

RR 5.0 to RR 2.5.   

Existing Conditions - The majority of the parcel is hay ground.  There are wooded areas and a small 

pond on the property.  The entire property drains to the north west corner of the parcel, see exhibit #1.  

 

A composite c value was calculated for the drainage area as shown in the table below.  The composite c 

value is based on the soil type, slopes, and existing land use, see Exhibits #2 and #3. 

 

Existing   Acres in each Drainage Area 

  c value DA #1       

Wooded 0.35 2.40       

Pasture 0.36 9.70       

Composite c   0.36       

 

composite c = 

 
(Wooded Acres * 0.35 + Pasture Acres * 0.36) 

 
Total Acres 

 

Developed Conditions – The proposed development will create three new residential building lots.  The 

new homes are assumed to be located as shown on exhibit #1.  A composite c value was calculated for 

the drainage area as shown in the table below.  The composite c value is based on the soil type, slopes, 

and land use, see Exhibits #2 and #3.  The developed storm water runoff calculations include 10,000 sq 

ft of impervious area for each new building lot.  This impervious area will account for the driveway, 

house footprint, and outbuilding.  A composite c value for the drainage area was calculated as shown 

below.  It was assumed that the existing pond and wooded areas will remain.  In the developed 

condition the open areas will be maintained as a grass lawn. 

Developed   Acres in each Drainage Area 

  c value DA #1       

Wooded 0.35 2.40       

Impervious 0.90 0.69       

Grass 0.30 9.01       

Composite c   0.34       

 

composite c = 
(Wooded Acres * 0.35 + Impervious Acres * 0.90 + Grass Acres * 0.30) 

Total Acres 

 



dlutgen72@gmail.com 

The storm water runoff for existing and developed conditions is summarized in the following table.  

Calculations for the storm water runoff are included with the report. 

 DA #1  

  Q10 (cfs) Q100 (cfs) 

Existing 23.4 41.5 

Developed 22.3 39.6 

Change -5% -5% 

 

 

Conclusion – The change in land use for this parcel of ground results in a decrease in storm water runoff 

from the site. 



NORTH

  NTS

Assumed Home
Location (TYP)

Exhibit #1



Generated by a Trial Version of NetCentric Technologies’ CommonLook® Acrobat® Plug-in. www.net-centric.com

TABLE 1 Values of Runoff Coefficient C 
URBAN AREAS: 

Type of drainage area Runoff coefficient C 
 

Lawns: 
Sandy soil, flat 2%  
Sandy soil, average, 2 - 7%  
Sandy soil, steep, 7%  
Heavy soil, flat, 2%  
Heavy soil, average, 2 - 7%  
Heavy soil, steep, 7% 

 0.05 - 0.10 
 
 0.10 - 0.15 
 0.15 - 0.20 
 0.13-0.17  
 

 

Business: 
Downtown areas Neighborhood areas 

0.70 - 0.95  
0.50.0.70 

Residential: 
Single-family areas  
Multi units, detached Multi units,  
attached Suburban  
Apartment dwelling areas 

0.30 - 0.50  
0.40 - 0.60 
0.60 - 0.75 
0.25 - 0.40 
0.50 - 0.70 

Industrial: 
Light areas 
Heavy areas 

 
0.50 - 0.80 
0.60 - 0.90  

Parks, cemeteries 0.10 - 0.25 
Playgrounds  0.20 - 0.35 
Railroad yard areas 0.20 - 0.40 
Unimproved areas 0.10 - 0.30 
Streets: 
Asphaltic  
Concrete  
Brick  

0.70 - 0.95 
0.80 - 0.95 
0.70 - 0.85 

Drives and walks 
Roofs  

0.75 - 0.85 
0.75 - 0.95 

 
 
AGRICULTURAL AREAS: 

Topography 
 and  

Vegetation 

Runoff Coefficient C Soil Texture 
Soil Texture 

Open Sandy Loam Clay and Silt Loam Tight Clay 
Woodland 
Flat 0 - 5% Slope  
Rolling 5 - 10% Slope 
Hilly 10 - 30% Slope 

 
0.10 
0.25 
0.30 
 

 
0.30 
0.35 
0.50 
 

 
0.40 
0.50 
0.60 
 

Pasture 
Flat 
Rolling 
Hilly 

0.10 
0.16 
0.22 

0.30 
0.36 
0.42 
 

0.40 
0.55 
0.60 

 

Cultivated 
Flat 
Rolling 
Hilly 

 

 
0.30 
0.40 
0.52 
 

 
0.50 
0.60 
0.72 
 

 
0.60 
0.70 
0.82 

 
                    
           
 
 

Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)  US Department of Agriculture (USDA) Peak Discharge Course 

https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/stelprdb1083019.pdf 

 

Source -

Exhibit #2

 
 0.18 - 0.22 
 0.25 - 0.35 



���������� !��"� 
#!$ ��%��&!$�'��%&"�

(
)����������
�
*������������
�����
����������
�

<

@AB8BCDEFGHIDJK8?FL8@FCGAHDC888MDCJFC8GDDCNIJAHFOK8?PQRS
/ +/ 0// .// 4//

TFFH
/ .+ +/ 0// 0+/

@FHFCO
@AB8QGAUFK8=K=VR6>8IW8BCIJHFN8DJ8X8UAJNOGABF8Y==Z8[8R\9Z]8ÔFFH\

�������������� ������������	

���� �� !"#$%&'(#$)'*#$'+*,-$.$(+$/$
01�)1!($%'+01%

�25. 6%7*$%&'(#$)'*#$'+*,-$/$(+$8$
01�)1!($%'+01%-$1�+"1"

��9. :*;!11$)'*#$'+*,-$2$(+$8$
01�)1!($%'+01%-$1�+"1"

��95 :*;!11$)'*#$'+*,-$.$(+$2$
01�)1!($%'+01%-$1�+"1"

���9 <+%1!"*'1=>1!"1!*$%&'(#$)'*#$
'+*,%-$/$(+$29$01�)1!($
%'+01%

Exhibit #3



Drainage Area #1- 10 year

Existing Conditions Area = 12.1 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i10 = 175/(Tc +18.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.36

L= 1045 Ti = 11.9 i10 = 214/(Tc +26.7) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 7.4

K= 1 Tt = 1.74

Tc = 13.6

i10 = 5.40

Q=KCiA

Q= 23.4 cfs

Developed Conditions Area = 12.1 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i10 = 175/(Tc +18.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.34

L= 1045 Ti = 12.1 i10 = 214/(Tc +26.7) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 7.4

K= 1 Tt = 1.74

Tc = 13.8

i10 = 5.36

Q=KCiA

Q= 22.3 cfs



Drainage Area #1 - 100 year

Existing Conditions Area = 12.1 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i100 = 256/(Tc +19.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.36

L= 1045 Ti = 11.9 i100 = 331/(Tc +30) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 7.4

K= 1.25 Tt = 1.74

Tc = 13.6

i100 = 7.66

Q=KCiA

Q= 41.5 cfs

Developed Conditions Area = 12.1 acres Ti = 1.8(1.1-C)L^.5/S^1/3 L max = 300 i100 = 256/(Tc +19.8) 5 < Tc < 15

C= 0.34

L= 1045 Ti = 12.1 i100 = 331/(Tc +30) 15 < Tc < 60

S= 7.4

K= 1.25 Tt = 1.74

Tc = 13.8

i100 = 7.61

Q=KCiA

Q= 39.6 cfs



From:                                         Amanda Tarwater
Sent:                                           Thursday, June 3, 2021 12:07 PM
To:                                               Gentzler, Joshua
Subject:                                     Re: DEV-21-081/082 Review of Preliminary/Final Plat - Carbaugh

Estates
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
FreeState Electric has no objec�on to this request.
 
 
 

Amanda Tarwater
Member Account Coordinator

1-800-794-1989 | www.freestate.coop

From: "Gentzler, Joshua" <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Date: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 at 2:34 PM
To: "RWD 13 (linda@jfrwd13.com)" <linda@jfrwd13.com>, Amanda Tarwater
<amanda.holloway@freestate.coop>, 'Timothy Smith' <chief1860@�rfd.com>, "Magaha,
Chuck" <CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>, "Miller, Jamie"
<JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>, "Patzwald, Joshua"
<jpatzwald@leavenworthcounty.gov>, "Van Parys, David"
<DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: DEV-21-081/082 Review of Preliminary/Final Plat - Carbaugh Estates
 
 

Warning: This message originated outside of the FEC organiza�on. Do not click links or open
a�achments unless you have validated the sender and know the content is safe. <=""
span="">

The Leavenworth County Department of Planning and Zoning has received a request for a
Preliminary and Final Plat for Carbaugh Estates
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by End of Business on
Wednesday, June 9th, 2021.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0464 or
at JGentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov.
 
Thank you,
 
Joshua Gentzler
Planner II

mailto:amanda.holloway@freestate.coop
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov


From:                                         Joe Osborn
Sent:                                           Monday, June 14, 2021 4:40 PM
To:                                               Gentzler, Joshua
Cc:                                               Jefferson County RWD #13
Subject:                                     RE: DEV-21-081/082 Review of Preliminary/Final Plat - Carbaugh

Estates
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
I believe so. The problem is that we can’t say for sure un�l the customer pays to have a feasibility
study done, and they have not done that yet. But I think we’re good there.
 
Thank you,
 
Joe Osborn
District Manager
joe@jfrwd13.com
1951 Wellman Rd.
Lawrence Ks, 66044
785-813-3589
 
From: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Sent: Monday, June 14, 2021 4:36 PM
To: Joe Osborn <joe@jfrwd13.com>
Subject: RE: DEV-21-081/082 Review of Preliminary/Final Plat - Carbaugh Estates
 
Good a�ernoon Joe,
 
The county is essen�ally looking for the answer to these ques�ons:

Will you be able to provide services to these lots with the current network?
If not, will the developer need to pay for extension of water lines to provide service?

Let me know if you have any other ques�ons,
 
Joshua Gentzler
Planning & Zoning
 

From: Joe Osborn <joe@jfrwd13.com> 
Sent: Monday, June 14, 2021 3:03 PM
To: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Jefferson County RWD #13
<linda@jfrwd13.com>
Subject: RE: DEV-21-081/082 Review of Preliminary/Final Plat - Carbaugh Estates
 
No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Joshua,
I’m sorry I didn’t get back you by the 9th. Honestly, I’m not sure what the county is asking for
when they ask for a comment? Can you enlighten me?
 
Thank you,

mailto:joe@jfrwd13.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:linda@jfrwd13.com
mailto:joe@jfrwd13.com
https://www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php
mailto:joe@jfrwd13.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:linda@jfrwd13.com


 
Joe Osborn
District Manager
joe@jfrwd13.com
1951 Wellman Rd.
Lawrence Ks, 66044
785-813-3589
 
From: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Sent: Monday, June 14, 2021 2:38 PM
To: Jefferson County RWD #13 <linda@jfrwd13.com>
Cc: Joe Osborn <joe@jfrwd13.com>
Subject: RE: DEV-21-081/082 Review of Preliminary/Final Plat - Carbaugh Estates
 
Good a�ernoon Joe & Linda,
 
Do you have any comments on this applica�on for a plat across from Rocking C Estates?
 
Thank you,
 
Joshua Gentzler
Planning & Zoning
 

From: Jefferson County RWD #13 <linda@jfrwd13.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 5:06 PM
To: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Cc: Joe Osborn <joe@jfrwd13.com>
Subject: FW: DEV-21-081/082 Review of Preliminary/Final Plat - Carbaugh Estates
 
No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Joshua,
 
I am forwarding your request to Joe Osborn for review.
 
Thank you,
Linda L. Lips
linda@jfrwd13.com
Jefferson County R.W.D. #13
1951 Wellman Rd.
Lawrence, KS 66044
785-842-1502
www.jfrwd13.com
 
 
 
 
From: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 2:18 PM
To: Jefferson County RWD #13 <linda@jfrwd13.com>; Amanda Holloway
(Amanda.holloway@freestate.coop) <Amanda.holloway@freestate.coop>; 'Timothy Smith'
<chief1860@�rfd.com>; Magaha, Chuck <CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Miller, Jamie

mailto:joe@jfrwd13.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:linda@jfrwd13.com
mailto:joe@jfrwd13.com
https://www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php
mailto:linda@jfrwd13.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:joe@jfrwd13.com
mailto:linda@jfrwd13.com
http://www.jfrwd13.com/
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:linda@jfrwd13.com
mailto:Amanda.holloway@freestate.coop
mailto:Amanda.holloway@freestate.coop
mailto:chief1860@ttrfd.com
mailto:CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov


From:                                         Amanda Tarwater
Sent:                                           Thursday, June 3, 2021 12:07 PM
To:                                               Gentzler, Joshua
Subject:                                     Re: DEV-21-081/082 Review of Preliminary/Final Plat - Carbaugh

Estates
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
FreeState Electric has no objec�on to this request.
 
 
 

Amanda Tarwater
Member Account Coordinator

1-800-794-1989 | www.freestate.coop

From: "Gentzler, Joshua" <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Date: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 at 2:34 PM
To: "RWD 13 (linda@jfrwd13.com)" <linda@jfrwd13.com>, Amanda Tarwater
<amanda.holloway@freestate.coop>, 'Timothy Smith' <chief1860@�rfd.com>, "Magaha,
Chuck" <CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>, "Miller, Jamie"
<JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>, "Patzwald, Joshua"
<jpatzwald@leavenworthcounty.gov>, "Van Parys, David"
<DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: DEV-21-081/082 Review of Preliminary/Final Plat - Carbaugh Estates
 
 

Warning: This message originated outside of the FEC organiza�on. Do not click links or open
a�achments unless you have validated the sender and know the content is safe. <=""
span="">

The Leavenworth County Department of Planning and Zoning has received a request for a
Preliminary and Final Plat for Carbaugh Estates
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by End of Business on
Wednesday, June 9th, 2021.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0464 or
at JGentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov.
 
Thank you,
 
Joshua Gentzler
Planner II

mailto:amanda.holloway@freestate.coop
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov


DEV-21-081 & 082 Carbaugh Estates Plats

400.0

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Feet400.00

Notes

Legend

200.00

1 in. = 200ft.

This Cadastral Map is for informational purposes only.  It does not purport to
represent a property boundary survey of the parcels shown and shall not be

used for conveyances or the establishment of property boundaries.

Address Point

Parcel Number

Lot Line

Parcel

City Limit Line

Major Road

<all other values>

70

Road

Railroad

Section

Section Boundaries

County Boundary







August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

***Renewal without changes*** 
Case No. DEV-21-062 

Westland Construction 
Special Use Permit – Contractor’s Yard 

***Public Hearing Required*** 
 
Staff Report – Planning Commission  August 5, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/                   Charles L. Breuer 
Property Owner: 20510 163rd Street 

Basehor, KS 66007 
 

Legal Description:      A tract of land in the Southwest 1/4 of Section 27, Township 10 South, 
Range 22 East of the 6th P.M., in Leavenworth County, Kansas.  

 
Location: 20510 163rd Street, located north of the intersection of 163rd & Leavenworth Road. 

 
Parcel Size: ± 5 acres 
 
Zoning/Land Use: RR-2.5, Rural Residential 2.5-acre minimum size parcels 
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential – 3 units/acre land use category.   
 
Parcel ID No.:   158-27-0-00-00-006.03 

 
Planner:  Krystal A. Voth 
 

REPORT: 
 

Request   
The applicant is requesting the fourth renewal of a Special Use Permit for a contractor’s yard.   
 
Adjacent Land Use 
The surrounding properties are residences and farms on varying sized parcels ranging from 1 acre to over 
160 acres in size.  The City of Basehor is located less than ½ mile to the east of the property.  
 
Flood Plain   
There is a portion of the southeast portion of the property located within the Special Flood Hazard Area on 
this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C0239G July 16, 2015.  
 
Utilities/Services 
Sewer: Private septic system  
Fire: Fairmount 
Water: Suburban 
Electric: Evergy 
 
Access/Streets  
The property is accessed by 163rd a County Collector with a hard surface ± 24’ wide. 
 
Agency Comments 
See attached comments – Email – Kyle Anderson – Planning and Zoning, June 3, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Lauren Anderson – Public Works, June 10, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Chuck Magaha – Emergency Management, June 28, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Mike Lingenfelser –Township Fire Department, June 7, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Mike Fulkerson – Rural Water District 1, June 4, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Tyler Rebel – Electric utility, June 3, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Name – City of Basehor, June 8, 2021 



August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

 
Factors to be considered 
The following factors are to be considered by the Planning Commission and the Board of County 
Commission when approving or disapproving this Special Use Permit request: 
 

1. Character of the neighborhood:  The character of the neighborhood is rural; primarily rural residences, 
and agricultural uses. A contractor’s yard does not fit the character of the area. The applicant has 
stated several times in the past that he intends to move the business into the city.  
 

2. Zoning and uses of nearby property:  The unincorporated areas of the County surrounding the property 
are zoned as RR-2.5. The City of Basehor is directly to the east, approximately one-half mile from the 
property.  

 
3. Suitability of the property for the uses to which it has been restricted:  The property is within an area 

suited for rural residences and agricultural use. While the use is allowed with a Special Use Permit this 
area of the County is expected to develop residentially and has been identified in the Comprehensive 
Plan as Residential 3 units/acre. As development occurs, the contractor’s yard will be out of character.  

 
4. Extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby property:  The business has 

operated at this location for more than 10 years. To date, there has not been a known-detrimental 
impact to the area. The business does create additional truck traffic along 163rd and Leavenworth 
Road. 

 
5. Length of time the property has been vacant as zoned:  The property is not vacant. 

 
6. Relative gain to economic development, public health, safety and welfare:  The proposed use provide 

income to the applicant and provides 15 jobs. 
 

7. Conformance to the Comprehensive Plan:  The Future Land Use Map indicates this area as Residential 
3 units/acre.  

 
8. Staff recommendation is for the denial of Special Use Permit.  

 

LOCATION 
Adjacent Residences Adjacent residences are rural in nature. The majority of residences in the 

immediate vicinity are located on parcels greater than five acres. 

Adjacent Zoning/Uses Zoning in the area is RR-2.5 and are used primarily as rural residences and 
agricultural uses. 

Density The immediate area is not densely populated. The City of Basehor is to the east.  

Nearby City Limits The city of Basehor is approximately ½ mile to the east. 

Initial Growth 
Management Area 

The property is not located within an initial growth management area.  



August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 3 

 

 

SITE COMPATABILITY 
Size of Parcel The parcel is five (5) acres in size. 

Zoning of Parcel The parcel is zoned Rural Residential-2.5 

Buildings  
(Existing & Proposed) 

There are currently two buildings on the property. One is used as a shop/storage 
area and the other is used as an office.  

Setbacks Existing building meet the required setbacks. However, it appears that there may 
be some vehicles/supplies stored over the property line. Without a professional 
survey this is difficult to determine for sure.  

Screening The applicant has planted several evergreen trees around the property to provide 
screening.  

  
History 
This is the fourth request for the operation of this business at this site. In 2014 the applicants requested a 
two-year approval as they stated they intended to move to a more appropriate location. In 2016 the 
applicants requested a renewal and were granted a five-year renewal. At that time, the applicants stated they 
would not need five years because they were planning to move. The Board allowed the applicant to make 
yearly installments of the TIF. There have been no payments since the first payment in 2016.   

  
Staff Comments   
The applicants are requesting renewal of a Special Use Permit for a contractor’s yard located near the 
intersection of 163rd and Leavenworth Road. The business has been in operation for over a decade at this 
location. During each renewal, the applicant has stated they plan to move operations to a more appropriate 
location within a city.  
 
The business consists of 15 full-time employees and seven service trucks, two dump trucks and a semi. 
There are two buildings on site. One is used for strange and the other s office space. There are materials 
stored at the property which are commonly found for the installation of waterlines, sewer lines and 
watermains. Due to the nature of the work, all activity takes place off-site and the business location is used 
for storage and administration. Typical hours of operation are Monday-Friday, 8:00 until 5:00.  
 
The business is located within an area suitable for rural and agricultural uses. The business does not fit the 
character of the area. Additionally, the Future Land Use Map has identified this area as Residential three-
units/acre. The City of Basehor is ½ mile to the east. Staff recommends denial of the request for the following 
reasons: 

1. The use does not fit the character of the area; 
2. The use is not in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan or Future Land Use Map  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

IMPACT 
Noise Pollution The use does not cause significant noise pollution. Primarily, the site is used for 

storage of materials, vehicles and an office. The site does house heavy equipment 
which creates noise when the machines are loaded for transport or area 
leaving/returning to the site.  

Traffic The use will create additional traffic in the morning and evening. Up to 15 
employees may arrive during the morning. They will then leave in company 
vehicles. Company vehicles consist of service trucks, dump trucks and a semi-
truck. According to the applicant, it is typical for each vehicle to make two trips per 
day to and from the site. Employees will then depart after the work day in their 
personal vehicles.  

Lighting The applicant does not have lighting other than security lighting and is not 
requesting lighting. 

Outdoor Storage The applicant has seven service trucks, two dump trucks and a semi that are 
stored outside. Additionally, there are some materials such as pipe that are stored 
outside.  

Parking The applicant has ample parking space for employees. 

Visitors/Employees There are 15 employees who report to the site each day, load equipment and 
leave for the job site.  

Waste Waste is properly disposed of.  



August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 4 

 
Staff recommends of Case No.DEV-21-062, Special Use Permit for Westland Construction but offers the 
following conditions for approval: 
 

1. The SUP shall be limited to a period of five (5) years. 
 

2. The business shall be limited to the hours of 8:00 AM until 5:00 PM, Monday – Friday. 
 

3. The SUP shall be limited to 15 employees. 
 

4. No signage is allowed in the right-of-way.  No signage is requested with the SUP.  All signage shall 
comply with Article 25, Sign Regulations of the Leavenworth County Zoning and Subdivision 
Regulations. 

 
5.  No on-street parking shall be allowed. 
 
6.  This SUP shall be limited to the Narrative dated April 22, 2021 submitted with this application. 
 
7. This SUP shall comply with all local, state, and federal rules and regulations that may be applicable. 

After approval of this SUP by the Board of County Commission all conditions listed shall be adhered to 
and copies shall be provided to the Planning and Zoning Department within 30 days. 
 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No DEV-21-062, Special Use Permit for Westland Construction, to the 
Board of County Commission, with Findings of Fact, and with or without conditions; or 
 

2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-21-062, Special Use Permit for Westland Construction, to the 
Board of County Commission, with Findings of Fact; or  

 
3. Continue the Public hearing to another date, time, and place. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Narrative 
Location/Aerial Maps 
Memorandums  
 

 



DEV-21-062 Westland Contractor's Yard

1,039.9

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Feet1,039.90

Notes

Legend

519.97

1 in. = 520ft.

This Cadastral Map is for informational purposes only.  It does not purport to
represent a property boundary survey of the parcels shown and shall not be

used for conveyances or the establishment of property boundaries.

Parcel Number

Parcel

City Limit Line

Major Road

<all other values>

70

Road

Railroad

Section

Section Boundaries

County Boundary



1

Sloop, Stephanie

From: Tyler Rebel <Tyler.Rebel@evergy.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 3, 2021 3:58 PM

To: Sloop, Stephanie

Subject: RE: DEV-21-062 SUP Westland Construction

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Internal Use Only 

 
No comment from Evergy, thank you -  
 
Tyler Rebel 
Distribution Designer 
Evergy 
tyler.rebel@evergy.com 
O: 913.758.2727 
evergy.com 

 

From: Sloop, Stephanie <SSloop@leavenworthcounty.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, June 3, 2021 3:01 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 
Miller, Jamie <JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Van Parys, 
David <DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'Mitch Pleak' <mpleak@olsson.com>; Anderson, Lauren 
<LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org' <lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>; Tyler Rebel 
<Tyler.Rebel@evergy.com>; 'mfulkerson@crwd1.com' <mfulkerson@crwd1.com>; 'djacobson@cityofbasehor.org' 
<djacobson@cityofbasehor.org> 
Cc: Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: RE: DEV-21-062 SUP Westland Construction 
 

**CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Evergy network. Do not click links or 
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe**  

 
Here is the correct application. 
 
Thank you, 
 

From: Sloop, Stephanie  
Sent: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 4:32 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 
Miller, Jamie <JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Van Parys, 
David <DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'Mitch Pleak' <mpleak@olsson.com>; Anderson, Lauren 
<LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org' <lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>; 
'Tyler.Rebel@evergy.com' <Tyler.Rebel@evergy.com>; 'mfulkerson@crwd1.com' <mfulkerson@crwd1.com>; 
'djacobson@cityofbasehor.org' <djacobson@cityofbasehor.org> 
Cc: Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: DEV-21-062 SUP Westland Construction 
 



   onsolidated             
             

      ater             
 

        istrict #1  

          
 

P.O. Box 419 
         15520 Crestwood Dr. 

         Basehor, KS 66007 
         913-724-7000 - O 

913-724-1310 - F 
www.crwd1.com 

 
 

June 4, 2021 
 
 
 
Stephanie Sloop 
Public Relations and Planning Coordinator 
Planning and Zoning 
Leavenworth County Courthouse 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 
Leavenworth. KS 66048 
 
 
Re:  Westland Construction Special Use Permit  
 
 
Dear Ms. Sloop, 
 
 Thank you for providing the opportunity for the Water District to provide the following comments on the 
proposed Special Use Permit Application. 
 

1. The above-mentioned SUP renewal is within our service area. 
2. The Water District does NOT maintain a water main on 163rd St. in front of this property. Therefore, we 

do not currently serve water to this property.   
3. The closest fire hydrant to this property is located at 163rd St. and Leavenworth Rd. (580 +/- feet south). 
4. Fire hydrants can be added to the area IF a water main extension is constructed, which may be the 

financial responsibility of the property owner.   
 
If you have any additional questions/comments, please contact me at your convenience. 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Mike Fulkerson 
Operations Manager 
 
 
 
 
Cc; file 

http://www.crwd1.com/


1

Sloop, Stephanie

From: Mike Lingenfelser <lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>

Sent: Monday, June 7, 2021 1:52 PM

To: Sloop, Stephanie

Subject: Re: DEV-21-062 SUP Westland Construction

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Stephanie 
Fairmount Township Fire has no issues with the permit. 
Mike 
 
On Wed, Jun 2, 2021 at 4:32 PM Sloop, Stephanie <SSloop@leavenworthcounty.gov> wrote: 

Good Afternoon, 

  

The Leavenworth County Department of Planning and Zoning has received a request for a the renewal of a Special Use 
Permit for Westland Construction. 

  

The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request. Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by June 9, 2021.  

  

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact our office. 

  

Thank you, 

  

  

Stephanie Sloop 

  

Public Relations and Planning Coordinator 

Planning and Zoning 

Leavenworth County Courthouse 



                                                                          The City of Basehor 
 
 
 
 
 
       June 8, 2021 
 

 
 
 
Stephanie Sloop 
Public Relations and Planning Coordinator 
Planning and Zoning 
Leavenworth County Courthouse 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 
Leavenworth. KS 66048 
 
Re:  DEV-21-062 SUP Westland Construction 
 
Dear Ms. Sloop: 
 
Thank you for reaching out to the City of Basehor for comments related to the Special Use Permit application for 
Westland Construction.  The City has no objections or concerns related to the request. 
 
        Sincerely,  
 
        City of Basehor 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2620 N. 155th Street                               913-724-1370 
P.O. Box 406                                      FAX 913-724-3388 
Basehor, KS 66007-0406                                                     www.cityofbasehor.org 



1

Voth, Krystal

From: Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2021 2:57 PM

To: Voth, Krystal; Sloop, Stephanie

Cc: Anderson, Lauren; Noll, Bill; 019-2831

Subject: RE: DEV-21-062 SUP Westland Construction

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Krystal and Stephanie, 
Lauren and I have reviewed the application.  It is understood this is a renewal, no new traffic is being proposed, and the 
County has no records of traffic complaints from the current SUP.  Per the TIF Policy, initially, the application will be 
reviewed by the County Engineer for applicability to County Standards to determine if studies and/or assessments, based 
on sound engineer judgement, are required.  It is Olsson’s opinion a TIS and Physical Road Assessment are not 
warranted. 
 
Please let Lauren or I know of any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Mitch Pleak 
 

From: Sloop, Stephanie <SSloop@leavenworthcounty.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 4:32 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 
Miller, Jamie <JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Van Parys, 
David <DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com>; Anderson, Lauren 
<LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org' <lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>; 
'Tyler.Rebel@evergy.com' <Tyler.Rebel@evergy.com>; 'mfulkerson@crwd1.com' <mfulkerson@crwd1.com>; 
'djacobson@cityofbasehor.org' <djacobson@cityofbasehor.org> 
Cc: Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: DEV-21-062 SUP Westland Construction 
 
Good Afternoon, 
 
The Leavenworth County Department of Planning and Zoning has received a request for a the renewal of a Special Use 
Permit for Westland Construction. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request. Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by June 9, 2021.  
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact our office. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Stephanie Sloop 
 
Public Relations and Planning Coordinator 
Planning and Zoning 



1

Sloop, Stephanie

From: Anderson, Kyle

Sent: Thursday, June 3, 2021 1:07 PM

To: Sloop, Stephanie

Subject: RE: DEV-21-062 SUP Westland Construction

To date Leavenworth County has not received any complaints on this parcel. 
 
Kyle Anderson 
Environmental Technician/Code Enforcement 
Leavenworth County Planning & Zoning 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 
Leavenworth, KS 66048 
913-684-1084 
 
 

From: Sloop, Stephanie  
Sent: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 4:32 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 
Miller, Jamie <JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Van Parys, 
David <DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'Mitch Pleak' <mpleak@olsson.com>; Anderson, Lauren 
<LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org' <lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>; 
'Tyler.Rebel@evergy.com' <Tyler.Rebel@evergy.com>; 'mfulkerson@crwd1.com' <mfulkerson@crwd1.com>; 
'djacobson@cityofbasehor.org' <djacobson@cityofbasehor.org> 
Cc: Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: DEV-21-062 SUP Westland Construction 
 
Good Afternoon, 
 
The Leavenworth County Department of Planning and Zoning has received a request for a the renewal of a Special Use 
Permit for Westland Construction. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request. Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by June 9, 2021.  
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact our office. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Stephanie Sloop 
 
Public Relations and Planning Coordinator 
Planning and Zoning 
Leavenworth County Courthouse 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 
Leavenworth. KS  66048 
(913) 364-5750 ph 
 













August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

***Renewal without changes*** 
Case No. DEV-21-063 
Schuetz Construction 

Special Use Permit – Contractor’s Yard 
***Public Hearing Required*** 

 
Staff Report – Planning Commission  August 5, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/                   Tony Schuetz/Schuetz Construction 
Property Owner: 14833 142nd Street 

Bonner Springs, KS 66012 
 

Legal Description:      A tract of land in the Southeast Quarter of Section 36, Township 11 South, 
Range 22 East of the 6th P.M, in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

 
Location: 14833 142nd Street, Bonner Springs, KS 66012 

 
Parcel Size: ± 10 acres 
 
Zoning/Land Use: RR-2.5, Rural Residential 2.5-acre minimum size parcels 
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential land use category.   
 
Parcel ID No.:   187-36-0-00-00-021.01 

 
Planner:  Joshua Gentzler 
 

REPORT: 
 

Request   
The applicant is requesting a renewal of a Special Use Permit for a Contractor’s Yard.   
 
Adjacent Land Use 
The surrounding properties are residences and farms on varying sized parcels ranging from 3 acres to over 
76 acres in size.   
 
Flood Plain   
There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C0345G July 16, 2015.  
 
Utilities/Services 
Sewer: Private septic system  
Fire: Sherman 
Water: RWD 7 
Electric: Evergy 
 
Access/Streets  
The property is accessed by 142nd Street, a local road maintained by the City of Bonner Springs with a paved 
surface ± 20’ wide. 
 
Agency Comments 
See attached comments – Email – Kyle Anderson – Planning and Zoning, June 9, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Mitch Pleak – Public Works, June 9, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Jalayne Turner – Rural Water District 7, June 3, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Matt Roecker – Evergy, June 4, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Mark Lee – City of Bonner Springs, June 21, 2021 
 

Factors to be considered 
The following factors are to be considered by the Planning Commission and the Board of County 
Commission when approving or disapproving this Special Use Permit request: 



August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

1. Character of the neighborhood:  The character of the neighborhood is rural; primarily rural residences, 
and agricultural uses. 

2. Zoning and uses of nearby property:  The surrounding properties are zoned RR-2.5, Rural Residential 
2.5-acre minimum size parcels. The properties to the east of 142nd Street are located in Bonner 
Springs. These parcels are zoned Agricultural and are generally used for residential purposes. The 
uses in both Leavenworth County and Bonner Springs are rural residences and agricultural.  

3. Suitability of the property for the uses to which it has been restricted:  The property is within an area 
suited for rural residences and agricultural use. The use is allowed with approval of a Special Use 
Permit 

4. Extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby property:  The area will be 
detrimentally affected by the removal of restrictions as the traffic to the property will not match the  
types of traffic generated by the residential uses that characterize the neighborhood, traffic will 
increase, the property will be used as a storage area for heavy construction equipment which does not 
fit the neighborhood uses, and heavy construction equipment will be used on the property.  

5. Length of time the property has been vacant as zoned:  The property is not vacant. 
6. Relative gain to economic development, public health, safety and welfare:  The proposed use will 

generate tax revenue for the County and will add to the economic development in the county as the 
business will continue to be located in Leavenworth County. 

7. Conformance to the Comprehensive Plan:  The Future Land Use Map indicates this area as 
Residential. 

8. Staff recommendation is for the denial of Special Use Permit. 
 

LOCATION 
Adjacent Residences Adjacent residences are rural-suburban uses. The property to the north is 10 

acres in size, to the west is 20 acres, and properties to the south are 77 and 3 
acres in size.   

Adjacent Zoning/Uses Zoning in the area is RR-2.5 and are used primarily as rural residences and 
agricultural uses. 

Density The area is not densely populated. 

Nearby City Limits The property is located immediately adjacent to Bonner Springs.  

Initial Growth 
Management Area 

The property is not located within an Urban Growth Management Area. 

 

 

SITE COMPATABILITY 
Size of Parcel The parcel is ten (10) acres in size. 

Zoning of Parcel The parcel is zoned Rural Residential-2.5 

Buildings  
(Existing & Proposed) 

The applicant has a shop on the property that is approximately 5,000 sq. ft. in 
size. The building is used as an office space and storage for the business. 

Setbacks Existing building meet the required setbacks. 

Screening The storage is bordered on all sides by a privacy fence. Additionally, there is 
landscaping providing additional screening. 

  
  

IMPACT 
Noise Pollution This use will cause noise pollution as the vehicle travel to and from the 

property. 

Traffic The use will create additional traffic in the morning (7:00 - 7:30 AM) and 
afternoon (3:00 – 4:00 PM). The company owns four (4) commercial vehicles 
and use three (3) that may make a round trip to the property, for a maximum of 
3 one-way trips. The company employs six (6) people who will travel to the 
property each day, for a total of 12 one-way trips. 142nd Street is maintained by 
Bonner Springs. 

Lighting The applicant does not have lighting other than security lighting and is not 
requesting lighting. 

Outdoor Storage The applicant stores a number of trucks and equipment outside near an existing 
shop. 

Parking The applicant has ample parking space for employees. 

Visitors/Employees Typically, six (6) employees report to the site each day of the work week.  

Waste The business generates waste consistent with a contractor’s yard.  



August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 3 

History 
The applicant is asking for the third renewal of a Special Use Permit originally approved in 1991. 
 
Staff Comments   
Schuetz Construction is seeking the 3rd renewal of the company’s Special Use Permit. The company is 
petitioning for a 20-year extension of their permit. The last permit was approved for 15 years. 
 
The company utilizes the property as their headquarters and storage yard for equipment and supplies (see 
Figure 1).  

 
Figure 1 Aerial of Property 

The company’s footprint has evolved as the business has expanded and developed (see Figures 2-6 for 
aerials 1991-2016). 
 

 
Figure 2 1991 Aerial 

 
Figure 3 1999 Aerial 

 
Figure 4 2009 Aerial 

 
Figure 5 2016 Aerial 

The business has expanded the storage yard by an estimated 45 percent and the building footprint by an 
estimated 10 percent since 1991. The property is used as a storage facility for the company’s numerous 
heavy construction vehicles, commercial trucks, and materials. The property is located in a rural residential 
area, with no commercial or industrial development within ½ a mile in Leavenworth County.  The 
commercial/light industrial usage of the contractor’s yard does not meet with the current zoning or the Future 



August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 4 

Land Use Map which indicates that the property should be developed as Residential (2.5-acre minimum). 
Since the usage does not fit the character of the neighborhood or the Comprehensive Plan, the Planning 
Staff recommends denial of Case No. DEV-21-063.  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Planning staff recommends denial of Case No. DEV-21-063, Special Use Permit for Schuetz 
Construction. Should the Planning Commission vote to recommend approval of Case No. DEV-21-063 to 
Board of County Commissioners, staff recommends the following conditions: 
 

1. The SUP shall be limited to a period of ten (10) years. 
 
2. The business shall be limited to the hours of 6 am to 6 pm, Monday through Friday. 

 
3. The SUP shall be limited to eight (8) total employees. 

 
4. Submit a plan for the proper disposal of oils, antifreeze, and other similar materials to the Planning 

and Zoning Department. 
 

5. An emergency notification sign be places on the building at the entrance of the business in the event 
an emergency should occur. 
 

6. All equipment shall be stored inside a building or behind a fenced area. 
 
7. No signage is allowed in the right-of-way.  No signage is requested with the SUP. All signage shall 

comply with Article 25, Sign Regulations of the Leavenworth County Zoning and Subdivision 
Regulations. 

 
8. No on-street parking shall be allowed. 
 
9. This SUP shall be limited to the Narrative dated May 4, 2021 submitted with this application. 
 
10. This SUP shall comply with all local, state, and federal rules and regulations that may be applicable. 

After approval of this SUP by the Board of County Commission all conditions listed shall be adhered 
to and copies shall be provided to the Planning and Zoning Department within 30 days. 

 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-21-063, Special Use Permit for Schuetz Construction, to the 
Board of County Commission, with Findings of Fact, and with or without conditions; or 
 

2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-21-063, Special Use Permit for Schuetz Construction, to the 
Board of County Commission, with Findings of Fact; or  

 
3. Continue the Public hearing to another date, time, and place. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Narrative 
Location/Aerial Maps 
Memorandums  
Public Comment 
 

 



DEV-21-063 SUP Schuetz's Construction

400.0

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Feet400.00

Notes

Legend

200.00

1 in. = 200ft.

This Cadastral Map is for informational purposes only.  It does not purport to
represent a property boundary survey of the parcels shown and shall not be

used for conveyances or the establishment of property boundaries.

Address Point

Parcel Number

Parcel

City Limit Line

Major Road

<all other values>

70

Road

Railroad















 
Mark Lee
City Planner
City of Bonner Springs
p 913-667-1708 | f 913-273-9557
e mlee@bonnersprings.org | w bonnersprings.org
a 200 E. 3rd Street, P.O. Box 38, Bonner Springs, KS 66012

From:                                         Mark Lee
Sent:                                           Monday, June 21, 2021 9:52 AM
To:                                               Gentzler, Joshua
Subject:                                     RE: Schuetz Construc�on Rezoning DEV-21-063
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Joshua,
 
Sorry for the late response.
 
A�er reaching out to the Public Works Department to see if they had any concerns and
researching any informa�on Community Development had, we have come to the conclusion that
the City of Bonner Springs has no issue with either renewing the special use permit or rezoning.
 
I did not see any informa�on regarding the proposed zoning though, unless I missed it. Regardless,
we have no issues with either.
 
Respec�ully,
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
From: Gentzler, Joshua [mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov] 
Sent: Monday, June 14, 2021 2:08 PM
To: Mark Lee
Subject: Schuetz Construc�on Rezoning DEV-21-063
 
Good a�ernoon Mark,
 
Leavenworth County Planning and Zoning received an applica�on for the renewal of a Special Use
Permit for Scheutz Construc�on, a Contractor’s Yard, located at 14833 143nd Street. We are
actually taking this through as a Rezoning. Scheutz has been opera�ng at this loca�on for over 20
years. It is my understanding that Bonner Springs maintains this sec�on of 142nd Street.
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by Monday, June 21th,
2021. If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-
0464 or at Jgentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov.
 
Thanks,
 

http://www.bonnersprings.org/
mailto:mlee@bonnersprings.org
file:///C:/Users/Jgentzler/AppData/Local/temp/www.bonnersprings.org
https://www.facebook.com/BonnerSpringsKansas/
https://twitter.com/BonnerSpringsKS
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyUl-B3mt386DdFgJqYfFyg
https://www.instagram.com/cityofbonnersprings/
https://www.pinterest.com/ksbonnersprings
https://visitor.r20.constantcontact.com/manage/optin?v=001K5Igh1ON0mCcMVzhlSa7FUvOwfb3I7l_6Gis_G7wz7FLn9p1QOCwL_UIaoHZTNfRplxtLgqD3w-jVppOTXNa53xKUKwQzfs9zCQ-9xIM9aUu70NZduvwY7NusLmQY_f99kAQy90oE9tnMbbZkh-gB0gs-Ro9ZOrcwVr75QG8kI_3QzNF3odcTm18rrddkbJ_0DHPH_oYS7Q%3D
https://nextdoor.com/city/feed/
mailto:mlee@bonnersprings.org
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:Jgentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov


1

Gentzler, Joshua

From: tony schuetzconst.com <tony@schuetzconst.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 12, 2021 9:07 AM

To: Gentzler, Joshua

Subject: Re: Traffic Details on SUP Application DEV-21-063

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 

Joshua, 
 
Please find the answers below to your questions regarding traffic for our SUP application. 
 
How many one-way trips does your business generate on a daily basis (taking into consideration both 
customer and employee trips)?     
Passenger Vehicles:  12 one way trips (6 trips) (3 family members, 3 non family member employees Monday 
thru Friday) 
Commercial Vehicles:  6 one way trips (3 trips -  leaving and returning daily (Monday thru Friday) 
 
How many one-way trips do you generate on a weekly basis? 
Passenger - 60 average one-way trips per week 
Commerical - 30 average one-way trips per week 
 
When are your customers (if any) and employees travelling to your business each day? 
Our business is not one where customers come to our location.    Our employees arrive to work at 7AM and 
get off at 3:30.  Our commercial vehicles leave around 7:30AM and return around 3:30. 
 
What type of vehicles travel to the business or are used as a part of your business? (passenger vs commercial) 
Passenger vehicles for employees coming and going to/from work.  Commercial vehicles when they leave to 
go to job sites.   

o If the business causes commercial vehicles to travel to your location, how much do those weigh on 
average?  Average weight per vehicle is 40,000 

 
What route do customers/employees typically use to reach your business?  
No customers.  Our employees live in the Greater Kansas City area so they travel I-70 to K-32 to and from work.  Our 
business is located on 142nd Street which is maintained by the City of Bonner Springs.  The vast majority of our work is 
in Johnson County, Ks and for the City of Bonner Springs so we are rarely traveling on Leavenworth County maintained 
roads.   
 
Is your business a seasonal business or do you work consistently throughout the year?  

o If seasonal, which months are your peak months? 
We work consistently throughout the year. 
 
 
 Let us know if you need anything else. 
 
Thanks. 



2

 
 
 
Tony Schuetz 
Schuetz Const, LLC 
14833 142nd Street 
Bonner Springs, KS  66012 
913-422-7419 - office 
913-422-1267 - fax 
913-915-7085 - cell 
tony@schuetzconst.com 

 

From: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Sent: Friday, May 7, 2021 2:53 PM 
To: tony schuetzconst.com <tony@schuetzconst.com> 
Subject: Traffic Details on SUP Application DEV-21-063  
  
Tony, 
  
As we begin our first review of your SUP application, we do need some additional information about the traffic 
generated by your business.  
  

 How many one-way trips does your business generate on a daily basis (taking into consideration both customer 
and employee trips)? 

 How many one-way trips do you generate on a weekly basis? 
 When are your customers (if any) and employees travelling to your business each day?  
 What type of vehicles travel to the business or are used as a part of your business? (passenger vs commercial)  

o If the business causes commercial vehicles to travel to your location, how much do those weigh on 
average? 

 What route do customers/employees typically use to reach your business? 
 Is your business a seasonal business or do you work consistently throughout the year?  

o If seasonal, which months are your peak months? 
  
Thanks for your time, let me know if you have any questions on anything I’ve asked for here. Please respond with your 
answers by Friday, May 14th so we can pass this information on to our Public Works department. 
  
Thank you,  
  
Joshua Gentzler 
Planner II 
Planning & Zoning 
Leavenworth County 
913.684.0464 
  



1

Sloop, Stephanie

From: Anderson, Lauren

Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2021 11:27 AM

To: Sloop, Stephanie

Cc: Voth, Krystal; Gentzler, Joshua

Subject: RE: DEV-21-063 Special Use Permit Request - Schuetz Construction

Yes, as far as we are concerned that is a local road but it is maintained by the City (142nd South of K-32 is all city 
maintained).  
 

From: Sloop, Stephanie <SSloop@leavenworthcounty.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2021 11:19 AM 
To: Anderson, Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Cc: Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: DEV-21-063 Special Use Permit Request - Schuetz Construction 
 
Lauren, 
 
Before we send over the official request for review, can you tell me the road classification?  The road classification map 
lists this is gravel.  The applicants have stated that this section of road is maintained by Bonner Springs. 
 
14833 142nd Street, Bonner Springs, KS 66012 
 
Thank you, 
 
Stephanie Sloop 
 
Public Relations and Planning Coordinator 
Planning and Zoning 
Leavenworth County Courthouse 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 
Leavenworth. KS  66048 
(913) 364-5750 ph 
 

    
 



From:                                         Ma� Roecker
Sent:                                           Friday, June 4, 2021 8:22 AM
To:                                               Gentzler, Joshua
Subject:                                     Permits
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 

Internal Use Only
 
Joshua,
 
Regarding addresses 14833 142nd Bonner Springs, and 18429 166th Basehor, per Evergy, we have
not conflicts.
 
Thanks
 
 
Ma� Roecker
Evergy
TD Designer III
ma�.roecker@evergy.com
913-667-5116
 
 

mailto:Matt.Roecker@evergy.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:matt.roecker@evergy.com


From:                                         Anderson, Kyle
Sent:                                           Thursday, June 3, 2021 1:08 PM
To:                                               Gentzler, Joshua
Subject:                                     RE: DEV-21-063 Special Use Permit Applica�on - Schuetz

Construc�on
 

To date Leavenworth County has not received any complaints on this parcel.
 
Kyle Anderson
Environmental Technician/Code Enforcement
Leavenworth County Planning & Zoning
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212
Leavenworth, KS 66048
913-684-1084
 
 
From: Gentzler, Joshua 
Sent: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 3:53 PM
To: 'jalayne@leavenworthrwd7.com' <jalayne@leavenworthrwd7.com>; 's�rchief@yahoo.com'
<s�rchief@yahoo.com>; 'Tyler.rebel@evergy.com' <Tyler.rebel@evergy.com>; Anderson, Kyle
<KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Anderson, Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>;
Magaha, Chuck <CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Miller, Jamie
<JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Mitch Pleak <MPleak@olsson.com>; Thorne, Eric
<ethorne@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Van Parys, David <DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: DEV-21-063 Special Use Permit Applica�on - Schuetz Construc�on
 
Good a�ernoon,
 
The Department of Planning and Zoning has received an applica�on for the renewal of a Special
Use Permit for Scheutz Construc�on, a Contractor’s Yard, located at 14833 143nd Street.
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by Wednesday, June 9th,
2021.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0464 or
at Jgentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov.
 
Thank you,
 
Joshua Gentzler
Planner II
Planning & Zoning
Leavenworth County
913.684.0464
 

mailto:KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:Jgentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov
https://www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php


From:                                         Mitch Pleak
Sent:                                           Wednesday, June 9, 2021 1:15 PM
To:                                               Gentzler, Joshua
Cc:                                               Anderson, Lauren; Noll, Bill; 019-2831; Voth, Krystal
Subject:                                     RE: DEV-21-063 Special Use Permit Applica�on - Schuetz

Construc�on
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Joshua,
Lauren and I have reviewed said applica�on. The applica�on is located off 142nd Street which is
maintained by the City of Bonner Springs. Due to the SUP having direct access to a City maintained
roadway, the PW has no comments. It is recommend this applica�on be forwarded to the City for
their input.
 
Thanks,
Mitch Pleak
 
From: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 3:53 PM
To: 'jalayne@leavenworthrwd7.com' <jalayne@leavenworthrwd7.com>; 's�rchief@yahoo.com'
<s�rchief@yahoo.com>; 'Tyler.rebel@evergy.com' <Tyler.rebel@evergy.com>; Anderson, Kyle
<KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Anderson, Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>;
Magaha, Chuck <CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Miller, Jamie
<JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com>; Thorne, Eric
<ethorne@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Van Parys, David <DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: DEV-21-063 Special Use Permit Applica�on - Schuetz Construc�on
 
Good a�ernoon,
 
The Department of Planning and Zoning has received an applica�on for the renewal of a Special
Use Permit for Scheutz Construc�on, a Contractor’s Yard, located at 14833 143nd Street.
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by Wednesday, June 9th,
2021.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0464 or
at Jgentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov.
 
Thank you,
 
Joshua Gentzler
Planner II
Planning & Zoning
Leavenworth County
913.684.0464
 

mailto:mpleak@olsson.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:BNoll@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:019-2831@olsson.com
mailto:KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:Jgentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php__;!!OlGkjAV-rZfRNzw!fzd054lUhlt7U8cLq4kcS-G84jZF14s_hqNfY2ccU2ZwxwR96eKrKrr8lDK2eQ$


From:                                         jalayne leavenworthrwd7.com
Sent:                                           Thursday, June 3, 2021 10:39 AM
To:                                               Gentzler, Joshua; 's�rchief@yahoo.com'; 'Tyler.rebel@evergy.com';

Anderson, Kyle; Anderson, Lauren; Magaha, Chuck; Miller, Jamie; Mitch
Pleak; Thorne, Eric; Van Parys, David

Subject:                                     RE: DEV-21-063 Special Use Permit Applica�on - Schuetz
Construc�on

 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Leavenworth Rural Water District No. 7 is fine with the renewal of the Special use Permit.
 

Jalayne Turner
Office Manager
LVRWD#7
2451 S. 142nd St.
P O Box 257
Bonner Springs, KS 66012
913-441-1205 Office
jalayne@leavenworthrwd7.com email
www.lvrwd7.com website
 
From: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 3:53 PM
To: jalayne leavenworthrwd7.com <jalayne@leavenworthrwd7.com>; 's�rchief@yahoo.com'
<s�rchief@yahoo.com>; 'Tyler.rebel@evergy.com' <Tyler.rebel@evergy.com>; Anderson, Kyle
<KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Anderson, Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>;
Magaha, Chuck <CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Miller, Jamie
<JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Mitch Pleak <MPleak@olsson.com>; Thorne, Eric
<ethorne@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Van Parys, David <DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: DEV-21-063 Special Use Permit Applica�on - Schuetz Construc�on
 
Good a�ernoon,
 
The Department of Planning and Zoning has received an applica�on for the renewal of a Special
Use Permit for Scheutz Construc�on, a Contractor’s Yard, located at 14833 143nd Street.
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by Wednesday, June 9th,
2021.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0464 or
at Jgentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov.
 
Thank you,
 
Joshua Gentzler
Planner II
Planning & Zoning
Leavenworth County

mailto:jalayne@leavenworthrwd7.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:stfrchief@yahoo.com
mailto:Tyler.rebel@evergy.com
mailto:KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:MPleak@olsson.com
mailto:ethorne@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:jalayne@leavenworthrwd7.com
http://www.lvrwd7.com/
mailto:Jgentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov
https://www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php


1

Voth, Krystal

From: The Meyers <keymidwest@hotmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 24, 2021 7:19 PM

To: PZ

Subject: Special Use permit (Dev-21-063)

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 

Leavenworth County Planning Department  
Special use permit (Dev-21-063) 
14833 142nd St.  
we are homeowners at 14891 142nd St Bonner Springs Kansas 
Robert&Carolyn Meyer. 
We are the residential property directly to the north of Schuetz 
Construction.  
We purchased 10 acres 24 years ago to build our retirement home.    
At that time the commercial property was fairly well maintained and a 
much smaller scaled business.  
Since then- many more cargo boxes- for storage have been added to the 
property,  along with many more pieces of large equipment and vehicles; 
some broken down. The lot stores large reels of cable throughout the 
property.  
The area just directly south of our home has become a dumping sight for 
dirt, rocks, old concrete and other debris, along with water and sludge from 
their boring machines- dumped there multiple times a week. The sludge 
and mud  is tracked out on the street on 142nd st. The city of Bonner 
Springs codes  has warned them about it but as the codes guy said, you 
know Tony Schuetz….very arrogant. So he continues to track mud and 
sludge onto 142nd .  
The diesel trucks are started up early each morning which is a disturbance 
to all neighbors around.  



2

Their entire lot is overgrown and unsightly. Other neighbors have planted 
trees trying to hide the site. There has also been several cases of theft and 
vandalism after hours at this location.  
We feel the presence and condition of this lot is decreasing the value of our 
property.  
We are strongly opposed to the approval of this special use permit for this 
property.  
Thank you for your time and consideration. Pictures attached  
Robert and Carolyn Meyer 
14891 142nd St  
Bonner Springs, Kansas 66012 
913-441-4526-H 
913-617-2655-C  



  

  



 

 



 

  



 



August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

***Renewal without changes*** 
Case No. DEV-21-071 
Dave’s Construction 

Special Use Permit – Contractor’s Yard 
***Public Hearing Required*** 

 
Staff Report – Planning Commission  August 5, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/                   Curtis Witt & Shannon Witt 
Property Owner: 18429 166th Street 

Basehor, KS 66007 
 

Legal Description:      A tract of land in the East Half of Section 9, Township 11 South, Range 22 
East of the 6th P.M., Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

 
Location: 18429 166th Street, Located approximately ¼ mile south of State Avenue directly 

adjacent to the City of Basehor.  
 

Parcel Size: ± 56 acres 
 
Zoning/Land Use: RR-2.5, Rural Residential 2.5-acre minimum size parcels 
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Mixed-Residential land use category.   
 
Parcel ID No.:   182-09-0-00-00-00-018.01 

 
Planner:  Krystal A. Voth 
 

REPORT: 
 

Request   
The applicant is requesting renewal of a Special Use Permit for Dave’s Construction, a Contractor’s Yard for 
an asphalt having company that has been established since 1976.   
 
Adjacent Land Use 
The surrounding properties are residences and farms on varying sized parcels ranging from 1 acre to over 
140 acres in size.  The City of Basehor is directly to the north and east of the property.  
 
Flood Plain   
There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C0327G July 16, 2015.  
 
Utilities/Services 
Sewer: Private septic system  
Fire: Fairmount Township 
Water: Suburban 
Electric: Evergy 
 
Access/Streets  
The property is accessed by 166th a County Collector with a paved surface ± 26’ wide. 
 
Agency Comments 
See attached comments – Email – Kyle Anderson – Planning and Zoning, June 3, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Lauren Anderson – Public Works, June 15, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Mike Lingenfelser –Township Fire Department, June 7, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – City of Basehor, June 8, 2021 
 



August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

 
Factors to be considered 
The following factors are to be considered by the Planning Commission and the Board of County 
Commission when approving or disapproving this Special Use Permit request: 
 

1. Character of the neighborhood:  The surrounding area is primarily rural in nature with large parcels and 
agricultural uses. The City of Basehor is directly north and east of the property. Less than ¼ mile to the 
north is a city subdivision that is fully developed.  
 

2. Zoning and uses of nearby property:  The surrounding properties are zoned RR-2.5, Rural Residential 
2.5-acre minimum size parcels. The uses are rural residences and agricultural. The City of Basehor is 
zoned primarily as R-1, Single-Family Residential with a  maximum density of 3.5 units/acre.   

 
3. Suitability of the property for the uses to which it has been restricted:  The property is within an area 

suited for rural residences and agricultural use. The use is allowed with approval of a Special Use 
Permit. The business is not currently a nuisance as the area has not been fully-developed. As 
development occurs the use will become out of character with the neighborhood.  

 
4. Extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby property:  The area will not 

likely be detrimentally affected. The business has been in operation at this location since 1976 and has 
had no complaints.  

 
5. Length of time the property has been vacant as zoned:  The property is not vacant. 

 
6. Relative gain to economic development, public health, safety and welfare:  The proposed use provides 

approximately five full-time jobs to the area.  
 

7. Conformance to the Comprehensive Plan:  The Future Land Use Map indicates this area as Mixed-
Residential. The area directly to the west is indicated as mixed-use.  

 
8. Staff recommendation is for the denial of Special Use Permit due to the business not conforming to the 

Future Land Use Plan. 
 

LOCATION 
Adjacent Residences Adjacent residences in the County are primarily on large parcels, many of which 

are more than 20-acres in size. To the north is a subdivision located in the City of 
Basehor consisting of 10,000sf lots.  

Adjacent Zoning/Uses County zoning is RR-2.5 with most lots being significantly larger. The subdivision 
in Basehor is zoned as R-1.  

Density The immediate area is not densely populated. 

Nearby City Limits The city of Basehor directly abuts the property.  

Initial Growth 
Management Area 

The property is located within the City of Basehor’s Initial Growth Management 
Area.  

 

IMPACT 
Noise Pollution The use does not create significant noise pollution. There is noise generated in 

the morning when crews are loading equipment and, in the evening, when 
unloading. This noise is not prolonged nor is it excessive.  

Traffic The use creates minimum additional traffic. The additional traffic generated is 
likely not noticed as the business has been in operation for more than 40 years 
and the business is located on a county collector roadway.  

Lighting The applicant does not have lighting other than security lighting and is not 
requesting lighting. 

Outdoor Storage The applicant stores a number of trucks, trailers, and equipment sored on the 
property.  

Parking The applicant has ample parking space for employees. 

Visitors/Employees UP to three employees report to the site on a daily basis. There is no public 
business.  

Waste The business generates yard and lawn waste. This waste is properly disposed of 
according to KDHE standards. 



August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 3 

 

SITE COMPATABILITY 
Size of Parcel The parcel is 56 acres in size. 

Zoning of Parcel The parcel is zoned Rural Residential-2.5 

Buildings  
(Existing & Proposed) 

The applicant has a shop on the property that is approximately 75x100. Tools and 
equipment for the business are stored in the shop 

Setbacks Existing building meet the required setbacks. 

Screening There is natural screening along the property and the business is set back 660’ 
from the road.  

  
History 
The business has been in operation since 1976 and has had several SUP renewals in that time.   
 
Staff Comments   
Dave’s Construction is an asphalt-paving business that has been in operation since 1976 at this location. 
The business currently consists of three employees who are not family. The site is used to store commercial 
equipment for asphalt paving. Additionally, there is rock and dirt stored on the property. The hours of 
operation are primarily 7:00AM until 6:00PM Monday-Friday with occasional Saturdays. The business does 
not typically operate in the winter as it is too cold to lay asphalt. In the past there has been issues with the 
storage of junk and junk materials. This issue seems to have been remedied and Staff has not received 
complaints in the last several years.  
 
The business does not match the comprehensive plan or the future land use map. Therefore, the Staff 
recommendation is for denial of the application.  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends denial of Case No. DEV-21-071, Special Use Permit for Dave’s Construction, but offers 
the following conditions in the event the Planning Commission recommends approval: 
 

1. The SUP shall be limited to a period of five (5) years. 
 

2. The business shall be limited to the hours of 6 am to 7 pm, Monday through Friday and 7:00AM until 
1:00PM on Saturday.  

 
3. The SUP shall be limited to five employees, not including family members.  

 
4. The applicant shall adhere to the emergency plan on file. 

 
5. In the event that any explosives are stored on the property they must alert the Fire District and 

Emergency Management to update the emergency plan.   
 

6. No signage is allowed in the right-of-way.  No signage is requested with the SUP.  All signage shall 
comply with Article 25, Sign Regulations of the Leavenworth County Zoning and Subdivision 
Regulations. 

 
7.  No on-street parking shall be allowed. 
 
8.  This SUP shall be limited to the Narrative dated April 22, 2021 submitted with this application. 
 
9. This SUP shall comply with all local, state, and federal rules and regulations that may be applicable. 

After approval of this SUP by the Board of County Commission all conditions listed shall be adhered to 
and copies shall be provided to the Planning and Zoning Department within 30 days. 
 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-21-071, Special Use Permit for Dave’s Construction, to the 
Board of County Commission, with Findings of Fact, and with or without conditions; or 
 

2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-21-071, Special Use Permit for Dave’s Construction, to the 
Board of County Commission, with Findings of Fact; or  

 



August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 4 

3. Continue the Public hearing to another date, time, and place. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Narrative 
Location/Aerial Maps 
Memorandums  
 

 



DEV-21-071 Dave's Construction

1,958.3

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Feet1,958.30

Notes

Legend

979.16

1 in. = 979ft.

This Cadastral Map is for informational purposes only.  It does not purport to
represent a property boundary survey of the parcels shown and shall not be

used for conveyances or the establishment of property boundaries.

Parcel

City Limit Line

Major Road

<all other values>

70

Road

Railroad

Section

Section Boundaries

County Boundary



                                                                          The City of Basehor 
 
 
 
 
 
       June 8, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stephanie Sloop 
Public Relations and Planning Coordinator 
Planning and Zoning 
Leavenworth County Courthouse 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 
Leavenworth. KS 66048 
 
Re:  DEV-21-071 Special Use Permit Request Dave's Construction 
 
Dear Ms. Sloop: 
 
Thank you for reaching out to the City of Basehor for comments related to the Special Use Permit application for 
Dave’s Construction.  The City has no objections or concerns related to the request. 
 
        Sincerely,  
 
        City of Basehor 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2620 N. 155th Street                               913-724-1370 
P.O. Box 406                                      FAX 913-724-3388 
Basehor, KS 66007-0406                                                     www.cityofbasehor.org 



1

Sloop, Stephanie

From: Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com>

Sent: Tuesday, June 15, 2021 2:38 PM

To: Sloop, Stephanie; Voth, Krystal

Cc: Noll, Bill; Anderson, Lauren; 019-2831

Subject: RE: DEV-21-071 Special Use Permit Request Dave's Construction

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Krystal and Stephanie, 
Lauren and I have reviewed the application.  It is understood this is a renewal, no new traffic is being proposed, and 
routes will remain the same as-is.  The trips are below the TIF Policy’s requirements for further study.  No comments. 
 
Please let Lauren or I know of any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Mitch Pleak 
 
 

From: Sloop, Stephanie <SSloop@leavenworthcounty.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 4:38 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 
Miller, Jamie <JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Mitch Pleak 
<mpleak@olsson.com>; Anderson, Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org' 
<lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>; 'Tyler.Rebel@evergy.com' <Tyler.Rebel@evergy.com>; 
'djacobson@cityofbasehor.org' <djacobson@cityofbasehor.org>; 'travis@suburbanwaterinc.com' 
<travis@suburbanwaterinc.com>; Van Parys, David <DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Cc: Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: DEV-21-071 Special Use Permit Request Dave's Construction 
 
Good Afternoon, 
 
The Leavenworth County Department of Planning and Zoning has received a request for a the renewal of a Special Use 
Permit for Dave’s Construction. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request. Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by June 9, 2021.  
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact our office. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Stephanie Sloop 
 
Public Relations and Planning Coordinator 
Planning and Zoning 
Leavenworth County Courthouse 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 



1

Sloop, Stephanie

From: Van Parys, David

Sent: Thursday, June 3, 2021 8:43 AM

To: Sloop, Stephanie

Subject: RE: DEV-21-071 Special Use Permit Request Dave's Construction

Stephanie,  The proper storage and disposal of various materials at this site will be of concern, but should be able to be 
addressed through compliance with EPA, KDHE and local FD regulations.   
 

From: Sloop, Stephanie  
Sent: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 4:38 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 
Miller, Jamie <JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'Mitch Pleak' 
<mpleak@olsson.com>; Anderson, Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org' 
<lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>; 'Tyler.Rebel@evergy.com' <Tyler.Rebel@evergy.com>; 
'djacobson@cityofbasehor.org' <djacobson@cityofbasehor.org>; 'travis@suburbanwaterinc.com' 
<travis@suburbanwaterinc.com>; Van Parys, David <DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Cc: Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: DEV-21-071 Special Use Permit Request Dave's Construction 
 
Good Afternoon, 
 
The Leavenworth County Department of Planning and Zoning has received a request for a the renewal of a Special Use 
Permit for Dave’s Construction. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request. Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by June 9, 2021.  
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact our office. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Stephanie Sloop 
 
Public Relations and Planning Coordinator 
Planning and Zoning 
Leavenworth County Courthouse 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 
Leavenworth. KS  66048 
(913) 364-5750 ph 
 

    
 



1

Sloop, Stephanie

From: Anderson, Kyle

Sent: Thursday, June 3, 2021 1:06 PM

To: Sloop, Stephanie

Subject: RE: DEV-21-071 Special Use Permit Request Dave's Construction

To date Leavenworth County has not received any complaints on this parcel. 
 
Kyle Anderson 
Environmental Technician/Code Enforcement 
Leavenworth County Planning & Zoning 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 
Leavenworth, KS 66048 
913-684-1084 
 
 

From: Sloop, Stephanie  
Sent: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 4:38 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 
Miller, Jamie <JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'Mitch Pleak' 
<mpleak@olsson.com>; Anderson, Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org' 
<lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>; 'Tyler.Rebel@evergy.com' <Tyler.Rebel@evergy.com>; 
'djacobson@cityofbasehor.org' <djacobson@cityofbasehor.org>; 'travis@suburbanwaterinc.com' 
<travis@suburbanwaterinc.com>; Van Parys, David <DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Cc: Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: DEV-21-071 Special Use Permit Request Dave's Construction 
 
Good Afternoon, 
 
The Leavenworth County Department of Planning and Zoning has received a request for a the renewal of a Special Use 
Permit for Dave’s Construction. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request. Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by June 9, 2021.  
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact our office. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Stephanie Sloop 
 
Public Relations and Planning Coordinator 
Planning and Zoning 
Leavenworth County Courthouse 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 
Leavenworth. KS  66048 
(913) 364-5750 ph 
 



1

Sloop, Stephanie

From: Mike Lingenfelser <lingenfelserm@fairmountfd.org>

Sent: Monday, June 7, 2021 1:50 PM

To: Sloop, Stephanie

Subject: Re: DEV-21-071 Special Use Permit Request Dave's Construction

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Stephanie 
Fairmount Township Fire has no issues with the permit. 
Mike 
 
On Wed, Jun 2, 2021 at 4:38 PM Sloop, Stephanie <SSloop@leavenworthcounty.gov> wrote: 

Good Afternoon, 

  

The Leavenworth County Department of Planning and Zoning has received a request for a the renewal of a Special Use 
Permit for Dave’s Construction. 

  

The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request. Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by June 9, 2021.  

  

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact our office. 

  

Thank you, 

  

  

Stephanie Sloop 

  

Public Relations and Planning Coordinator 

Planning and Zoning 

Leavenworth County Courthouse 





















August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

 
Case No. DEV-21-086 

Ledford Boat & RV Storage 
Special Use Permit – Boat & RV Storage 

***Public Hearing Required*** 
 
Staff Report – Planning Commission  August 5, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/                   Greg Ledford 
Property Owner: 12139 Leavenworth Road 

Kansas City, KS 66109 
 

Legal Description:      A tract of land in the northeast quarter of Section 3, Township 9 South, 
Range 21 East of the 6th P.M, in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

 
Location: 28910 207th Street, Located at the northeast intersection of 20th & Springdale Road 

 
Parcel Size: ± 13 acres 
 
Zoning/Land Use: B-3 and RR-5 
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Rural Residential 2.5 land use category.   
 
Parcel ID No.:   112-03-0-00-00-007.01 

 
Planner:  Krystal A. Voth 
 

REPORT: 
 

Request   
The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for Boat and RV Storage. Originally, the applicant 
requested rezoning of the property which would allow for the use without a Special Use Permit. The request 
was denied and the Board of County Commissioners waived the one-year waiting period to apply for a 
Special Use Permit.  
 
Adjacent Land Use 
The surrounding properties are residences and farms on varying sized parcels ranging from 1 acre to over 
140 acres in size.  All four corners of the intersection are zoned as B-3.  
 
Flood Plain   
There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas, Zone X on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C125G July 16, 
2015.  
 
Utilities/Services 
Sewer: Private septic system  
Fire: Fire District 1  
Water: RWD 5  
Electric:   FreeState 
 
Access/Streets  
The property is accessed by 207th Street, a County Arterial Road with a hard surface The property also fronts 
along Springdale Road a state-maintained highway.  
 
Agency Comments 
See attached comments – Email – Kyle Anderson – Planning and Zoning, June 3, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Lauren Anderson – Public Works, June 9, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – Chuck Magaha – Emergency Management, Month day, 2021 
See attached comments – Email – David Van Parys – County Counselor, June 3, 2021 



August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

See attached comments – Email – Michael Stackhouse –Township Fire Department, July 1, 2021 
 
See attached comments – Email – Steve Taylor – KDOT, June 3, 2021 
 
Factors to be considered 
The following factors are to be considered by the Planning Commission and the Board of County 
Commission when approving or disapproving this Special Use Permit request: 
 

1. Character of the neighborhood:  The character of the neighborhood is rural; agricultural uses and rural 
residences.  
 

2. Zoning and uses of nearby property:  The surrounding properties are zoned RR-5, Rural Residential 5-
acre minimum size parcels. The four corners of the intersection are zoned as B-3, General Business 
The uses are rural residences and agricultural use.  

 
3. Suitability of the property for the uses to which it has been restricted:  The property is within an area 

which is suitable for residential uses. The property is located on a state-maintained highway, making it 
suitable for commercial business. Additionally, a portion of the property is currently zoned as B-3.  

 
4. Extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby property:  The area will not 

likely be detrimentally affected.  A portion of the property has been zoned as B-3 for several years. 
Due to the location on a State highway the additional traffic that will be created is minimal in 
comparison to daily traffic counts. The proposed use will not generate significant noise, pollution or 
traffic.   

  
5. Length of time the property has been vacant as zoned:  The property has not been developed since at 

least 1962.   
 

6. Relative gain to economic development, public health, safety and welfare:  The proposed use will allow 
the applicant to run a boat and RV storage business on the parcel.  

 
7. Conformance to the Comprehensive Plan:  The Future Land Use Map indicates this area as RR-2.5. 

However, there is existing B-3 zoning existing on the property which directly abuts the RR-2.5 zoning.  
 

8. Staff recommendation is for the approval of the Special Use Permit due to the proximity to existing B-3 
Zoning.  

 

LOCATION 
Adjacent Residences Adjacent parcels are primarily rural and agricultural in nature. The majority of 

homes are located on large parcels, most significantly over the minimum zoning 
district requirements.    

Adjacent Zoning/Uses Zoning in the area is RR-5 and are used primarily as rural residences and 
agricultural uses. 

Density The area is not densely populated. 

Nearby City Limits The property is not located near a city.  

Initial Growth 
Management Area 

The property is not located within an IGMA.  



August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 3 

 

 

SITE COMPATABILITY 
Size of Parcel The parcel is 13 acres in size. 

Zoning of Parcel The parcel is zoned Rural Residential-5 and B-3.  

Buildings  
(Existing & Proposed) 

The applicant is not proposing any buildings at this time. All storage will be 
outdoor.  

Setbacks No buildings.  

Screening The property is bordered on the south by a privacy fence. Additionally, there is 
landscaping providing additional screening. 

  
History 
The Applicant applied for a rezoning in 2020. The rezoning was denied by the Board of County 
Commissioners and the applicant was encouraged to submit a Special Use Permit request.   
 
Staff Comments   
The proposed use is outdoor boat and RV storage on a parcel located at 207th & Springdale (k-92). A portion 
of the property is currently zoned as B-3 and commercial storage of boats and RV’s is an allowed use in that 
zoning district. The applicant plans to provide enough parking for a total of 78 boats and RV’s combined. The 
hours of operation are variable, though this should not cause a nuisance since the majority of activity on the 
site will not cause noise, pollution, or other nuisances. There will be no employees other than the applicant. 
Staff recommends approval of the application.  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The staff recommends approval of Case No.DEV-21-086, Special Use Permit for Boat & RV Storage, with 
the following conditions: 
 

1. The SUP shall be limited to a period of 10 years. 
 

2. No additional exterior lighting other than security lighting. 
 

3. Any additional buildings shall require a site plan prepared in accordance with the Zoning and 
Subdivision Regulations.  

 
4. The SUP shall be limited to one employee other than the applicant.  

 
5. No signage is allowed in the right-of-way.  No signage is requested with the SUP.  All signage shall 

comply with Article 25, Sign Regulations of the Leavenworth County Zoning and Subdivision 
Regulations. 

 
6.  No on-street parking shall be allowed. 
 
7.  This SUP shall be limited to the Narrative dated May 27, 2021 submitted with this application. 
 

IMPACT 
Noise Pollution The use will not cause elevated or extended noise pollution. The business will 

consist of the storage of RV’s and boats.  

Traffic The use will create additional traffic, however given the location on a state-
maintained highway it is unlikely the small increase will be noticeable. The 
applicant anticipates one or two vehicles per day.  

Lighting The applicant does not have lighting other than security lighting and is not 
requesting lighting. 

Outdoor Storage The use will consist of outdoor storage of RV’s and Boats on approximately two 
acres of the property for a total of 78 spaces.   

Parking The applicant will have ample parking for the use.  

Visitors/Employees There will be parking for 78 RV’s boats. However, it is unlikely that all 78 spaces. 
Typically, there will be one or two customers to the site daily to pick up or drop off 
their boat or RV. These numbers may be slightly higher in the summer months.  

Waste There will be no waste generated by the business.  



August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 4 

8. This SUP shall comply with all local, state, and federal rules and regulations that may be applicable. 
After approval of this SUP by the Board of County Commission all conditions listed shall be adhered to 
and copies shall be provided to the Planning and Zoning Department within 30 days. 
 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No DEV-21-086, Special Use Permit for Boat & RV Storage, to the 
Board of County Commission, with Findings of Fact, and with or without conditions; or 
 

2. Recommend denial of Case No DEV-21-086, Special Use Permit for Boat & RV Storage, to the Board 
of County Commission, with Findings of Fact; or  

 
3. Continue the Public hearing to another date, time, and place. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Narrative 
Location/Aerial Maps 
Memorandums  
 

 



1

Voth, Krystal

From: Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com>

Sent: Wednesday, June 9, 2021 1:47 PM

To: Sloop, Stephanie; Voth, Krystal

Cc: Anderson, Lauren; Noll, Bill; 019-2831

Subject: RE: DEV-21-086 Special Use Permit Request RV & Boat Storage Facility

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Stephanie and Krystal, 
Lauren and I have reviewed the application.  Application states no buildings will be construction with said 
permit.  Estimate traffic doesn’t require a traffic impact or road assessment studies per the TIF policy.  Available frontage 
only allows 1 entrance off of 207th St.  Applicant to directly coordinate with KDOT regarding any possible improvements 
within KDOT right of way.   
 
Thanks, 
Mitch Pleak 
 

From: Sloop, Stephanie <SSloop@leavenworthcounty.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 4:44 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 
Miller, Jamie <JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Van Parys, 
David <DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Mitch Pleak <mpleak@olsson.com>; Anderson, Lauren 
<LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'Firedistrict1@fd1lv.org' <Firedistrict1@fd1lv.org>; 
'tmgoetz@stjoewireless.com' <tmgoetz@stjoewireless.com>; 'steven.taylor@ks.gov' <steven.taylor@ks.gov> 
Cc: Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: DEV-21-086 Special Use Permit Request RV & Boat Storage Facility 
 
Good Afternoon, 
 
The Leavenworth County Department of Planning and Zoning has received a request for a Special Use Permit for an RV & 
Boat Storage Facility. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request. Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by June 9, 2021.  
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact our office. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Stephanie Sloop 
 
Public Relations and Planning Coordinator 
Planning and Zoning 
Leavenworth County Courthouse 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 
Leavenworth. KS  66048 
(913) 364-5750 ph 
 



1

Sloop, Stephanie

From: Greg Ledford <greg2020llc@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, June 11, 2021 11:03 AM

To: firedistrict1@fd1lv.org

Cc: Sloop, Stephanie

Subject: DEV-21-086 Special Use Permit Request RV & Boat Storage Facility

Attachments: SUP permit layout drawing.pdf

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Mike,  
 
I've reviewed the list of information requested for my SUP application and have provided answers below and an 
attachment for layout of facility. 
 
-Dimensions 144' x 552' 
-Base-compacted subbase with 4-6 inches of 1" rock with road fabric below 
-Type of surface-rock 
-# of spaces=78 shown on drawing with dimensions 
-Fire hydrant location-is on SW corner of my property approx. 150' from entrance to storage area.  Hydrant is on my 
property and is on an 8" line per Water District #5. 
-FIre department access rd-approx 40' down center of storage area.  Access is double the requested MIN of 20'. 
 
 
Exact driveway location TBD by county, it will come in off of 207th st and will be as wide as allowed by county. 
 
Thanks, 
Greg 





DEV-21-086 SUP RV & Boat Storage

982.5

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Feet982.50

Notes

Legend

491.23

1 in. = 491ft.

This Cadastral Map is for informational purposes only.  It does not purport to
represent a property boundary survey of the parcels shown and shall not be

used for conveyances or the establishment of property boundaries.

Parcel Number

Parcel

City Limit Line

Major Road

<all other values>

70

Road

Railroad

Section

Section Boundaries

County Boundary



1

Sloop, Stephanie

From: Mike Stackhouse <firedistrict1@fd1lv.org>

Sent: Thursday, July 1, 2021 7:35 AM

To: Greg Ledford

Cc: Sloop, Stephanie; David Asmus

Subject: RE: DEV-21-086 Special Use Permit Request RV & Boat Storage Facility

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Sounds good. Thank you. 
 
Michael L. Stackhouse 
Fire Chief 
Fire District #1 of Leavenworth County 
111 E. Kansas Avenue 
Lansing, KS. 66043 
Office: 913-727-5844 
Cell: 913-683-3223 

 
 

From: Greg Ledford <greg2020llc@gmail.com>  
Sent: Thursday, July 1, 2021 7:33 AM 
To: Mike Stackhouse <firedistrict1@fd1lv.org> 
Cc: Sloop, Stephanie <SSloop@leavenworthcounty.gov>; David Asmus <dasmus@fd1lvco.org> 
Subject: Re: DEV-21-086 Special Use Permit Request RV & Boat Storage Facility 
 
Mike, 
I can easily put up signage  And I will be assigning spaces so it will remain open. The center road all throughout the 
facility and to the end turn around area will maintain approx twice your 20 ft  requirement. People need plenty of room 
to back into their spaces. I envision maintaining at least 40' down the center.  Thanks for following up with me I 
appreciate it. 
 
On Thu, Jul 1, 2021, 7:20 AM Mike Stackhouse <firedistrict1@fd1lv.org> wrote: 

Mr. Ledford, 

  

  I apologize for the length of time to review this.  Things have been very busy lately.  I think the footprint and answers 
given will satisfy the IFC requirements.  The one main issue that will have to be addressed continually is parking.  The 
end turnaround will have to always remain free of any kind of obstructions.  It would be prudent to install signage as 



2

such.  The center dead-end access road will have to maintain the minimum 20’ clearance at all times as well.  If you 
have any further issues or questions, please let me know. 

  

B/R, 

  

Michael L. Stackhouse 

Fire Chief 

Fire District #1 of Leavenworth County 

111 E. Kansas Avenue 

Lansing, KS. 66043 

Office: 913-727-5844 

Cell: 913-683-3223 

The linked image cannot be displayed.  The file may have been moved, renamed, or deleted. Verify that the link points to the correct file and location.

 

  

From: Greg Ledford <greg2020llc@gmail.com>  
Sent: Friday, June 11, 2021 11:03 AM 
To: Mike Stackhouse <firedistrict1@fd1lv.org> 
Cc: SSloop@leavenworthcounty.gov 
Subject: DEV-21-086 Special Use Permit Request RV & Boat Storage Facility 

  

Mike, 

  

I've reviewed the list of information requested for my SUP application and have provided answers below and an 
attachment for layout of facility. 

  



3

-Dimensions 144' x 552' 

-Base-compacted subbase with 4-6 inches of 1" rock with road fabric below 

-Type of surface-rock 

-# of spaces=78 shown on drawing with dimensions 

-Fire hydrant location-is on SW corner of my property approx. 150' from entrance to storage area.  Hydrant is on my 
property and is on an 8" line per Water District #5. 

-FIre department access rd-approx 40' down center of storage area.  Access is double the requested MIN of 20'. 

  

  

Exact driveway location TBD by county, it will come in off of 207th st and will be as wide as allowed by county. 

  

Thanks, 
Greg 



1

Sloop, Stephanie

From: Van Parys, David

Sent: Thursday, June 3, 2021 8:29 AM

To: Sloop, Stephanie

Cc: Patzwald, Joshua; Anderson, Kyle; Voth, Krystal

Subject: RE: DEV-21-086 Special Use Permit Request RV & Boat Storage Facility

Stephanie,  The proposed SUP would be in conformity with the B-3 zoning currently in place in the SW corner of the 
property, with the use restricted by the terms and conditions of any SUP approved.  No other legal comment at this 
time.  
 

From: Sloop, Stephanie  
Sent: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 4:44 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 
Miller, Jamie <JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Van Parys, 
David <DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'Mitch Pleak' <mpleak@olsson.com>; Anderson, Lauren 
<LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'Firedistrict1@fd1lv.org' <Firedistrict1@fd1lv.org>; 
'tmgoetz@stjoewireless.com' <tmgoetz@stjoewireless.com>; 'steven.taylor@ks.gov' <steven.taylor@ks.gov> 
Cc: Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: DEV-21-086 Special Use Permit Request RV & Boat Storage Facility 
 
Good Afternoon, 
 
The Leavenworth County Department of Planning and Zoning has received a request for a Special Use Permit for an RV & 
Boat Storage Facility. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request. Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by June 9, 2021.  
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact our office. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Stephanie Sloop 
 
Public Relations and Planning Coordinator 
Planning and Zoning 
Leavenworth County Courthouse 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 
Leavenworth. KS  66048 
(913) 364-5750 ph 
 

    
 



1

Sloop, Stephanie

From: Anderson, Kyle

Sent: Thursday, June 3, 2021 1:05 PM

To: Sloop, Stephanie

Subject: RE: DEV-21-086 Special Use Permit Request RV & Boat Storage Facility

To date Leavenworth County has not received any complaints on this parcel. 
 
Kyle Anderson 
Environmental Technician/Code Enforcement 
Leavenworth County Planning & Zoning 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 
Leavenworth, KS 66048 
913-684-1084 
 
 
 

From: Sloop, Stephanie  
Sent: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 4:44 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 
Miller, Jamie <JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Van Parys, 
David <DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'Mitch Pleak' <mpleak@olsson.com>; Anderson, Lauren 
<LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'Firedistrict1@fd1lv.org' <Firedistrict1@fd1lv.org>; 
'tmgoetz@stjoewireless.com' <tmgoetz@stjoewireless.com>; 'steven.taylor@ks.gov' <steven.taylor@ks.gov> 
Cc: Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: DEV-21-086 Special Use Permit Request RV & Boat Storage Facility 
 
Good Afternoon, 
 
The Leavenworth County Department of Planning and Zoning has received a request for a Special Use Permit for an RV & 
Boat Storage Facility. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request. Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by June 9, 2021.  
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact our office. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Stephanie Sloop 
 
Public Relations and Planning Coordinator 
Planning and Zoning 
Leavenworth County Courthouse 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 
Leavenworth. KS  66048 
(913) 364-5750 ph 
 



1

Sloop, Stephanie

From: Steven Taylor [KDOT] <Steven.Taylor@ks.gov>

Sent: Thursday, June 3, 2021 8:37 AM

To: Sloop, Stephanie

Subject: RE: DEV-21-086 Special Use Permit Request RV & Boat Storage Facility

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
We have no comments. 
 
Thanks, 
 
 
Steve Taylor 
Kansas Department of Transportation 
Utility Coordinator 
District 1 Area 3 
650 north K-7 Highway 
Bonner Springs, Ks. 
913-942-3049 
 
 
 

From: Sloop, Stephanie <SSloop@leavenworthcounty.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, June 3, 2021 8:21 AM 
To: Steven Taylor [KDOT] <Steven.Taylor@ks.gov> 
Subject: RE: DEV-21-086 Special Use Permit Request RV & Boat Storage Facility 
 

EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click any links or open any attachments unless 
you trust the sender and know the content is safe.  

Yes, that is what the applicant is proposing. 
 

From: Steven Taylor [KDOT] <Steven.Taylor@ks.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, June 3, 2021 8:14 AM 
To: Sloop, Stephanie <SSloop@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: RE: DEV-21-086 Special Use Permit Request RV & Boat Storage Facility 
 
Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Access to storage and future home to be from 207th? 
 
 
Steve Taylor 
Kansas Department of Transportation 
Utility Coordinator 



2

District 1 Area 3 
650 north K-7 Highway 
Bonner Springs, Ks. 
913-942-3049 
 
 
 

From: Sloop, Stephanie <SSloop@leavenworthcounty.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, June 2, 2021 4:44 PM 
To: Magaha, Chuck <CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 
Miller, Jamie <JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Patzwald, Joshua <jpatzwald@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Van Parys, 
David <DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'Mitch Pleak' <mpleak@olsson.com>; Anderson, Lauren 
<LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; 'Firedistrict1@fd1lv.org' <Firedistrict1@fd1lv.org>; 
'tmgoetz@stjoewireless.com' <tmgoetz@stjoewireless.com>; Steven Taylor [KDOT] <Steven.Taylor@ks.gov> 
Cc: Voth, Krystal <KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject: DEV-21-086 Special Use Permit Request RV & Boat Storage Facility 
 

EXTERNAL: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click any links or open any attachments unless 
you trust the sender and know the content is safe.  

Good Afternoon, 
 
The Leavenworth County Department of Planning and Zoning has received a request for a Special Use Permit for an RV & 
Boat Storage Facility. 
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your written input in consideration of the above request. Please review the 
attached information and forward any comments to us by June 9, 2021.  
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact our office. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Stephanie Sloop 
 
Public Relations and Planning Coordinator 
Planning and Zoning 
Leavenworth County Courthouse 
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212 
Leavenworth. KS  66048 
(913) 364-5750 ph 
 

    
 



































August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

Case No. DEV-21-046 
Rezoning from RR-5 to RR-2.5 
***Public Hearing Required*** 

 
Staff Report – Planning Commission  August 5, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/                   Ronald A Grey Jr. 
Property Owner: 24450 171st Street 

Leavenworth, KS 66048 
 

Legal Description:      A tract of land in the Southwest Quarter of Section 33, Township 09 South, 
Range 22 East of the 6th P.M, in Leavenworth County, Kansas. 

 
Location: 24450 171st Street 

 
Parcel Size: ± 5 acres 
 
Zoning/Land Use: RR-5, Rural Residential 5-acre minimum size parcels 
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential land use category.   
 
Parcel ID No.:   108-33-0-00-00-016.09 

 
Planner:  Krystal A. Voth 
 

REPORT: 
 

Request   
The applicant is requesting to rezone a parcel of land from RR-5 to RR-2.5. 
 
Adjacent Land Use 
The surrounding properties are residences and farms on varying sized parcels ranging from 5 acres to 236 
acres in size.   
 
Flood Plain   
There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C0250G July 16, 2015.  
 
Utilities/Services 
Sewer: Private septic system  
Fire: Fire District 1 
Water: RWD 8 
Electric:  FreeState 
 
Access/Streets  
The property is accessed by both 171st Street and McIntyre Road. 171st Street is a local County road with a 
paved surface, ± 22’ wide. McIntyre Road is a local County road with a paved surface ± 22’ wide. 
 
Factors to be considered 
The following factors are to be considered by the Planning Commission and the Board of County 
Commission when approving or disapproving this Rezoning request: 

1. Character of the neighborhood:  The character of the neighborhood is rural; agricultural uses and rural 
residences. 

2. Zoning and uses of nearby property:  The surrounding properties are zoned RR-5 Rural Residential 5-
acre minimum size parcels. The uses are rural residences and agricultural use.  

3. Suitability of the property for the uses to which it has been restricted:  The property is within an area 
that is supportive of a 5-acre minimum parcel size. 

4. Extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby property:  The area will not 
likely be detrimentally affected.  

5. Length of time the property has been vacant as zoned:  The property is not vacant. 



August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

6. Relative gain to economic development, public health, safety and welfare:  The proposed use will not 
experience economic gain, nor will public health or safety and welfare of Leavenworth County 
Residents be affected by this rezone. 

7. Conformance to the Comprehensive Plan: The Future Land Use Map indicates this area as Residential 
– 3 units per acre.  

8. Staff recommendation is for the approval of the rezoning request. 
  
Staff Comments   
The applicants are requesting approval of a rezoning request for the property located at 24450 171st Street. 
The applicants have indicated a desire to divide the existing five-acre parcel (five acres, including right-of-
way) into two equal 2.5 acre parcels. They intend to build a smaller home on the “vacant” lot.  While the 
request does conform to the Comprehensive Plan, Staff wishes to elaborate on the potential issues that are 
likely if the property is divided. 
 

1. The existing barn on the southern portion of the property is located where the land division will be 
required to meet frontage/lot area requirements. 

2. Due to the location of the barn it is likely the division will create two oddly-shaped parcels. 
3. While it appears that with ROW there is exactly five-acres of land, this cannot be confirmed without a 

survey. 
4. The split will result in two accessory structures being located on a parcel without a single family 

residence which is a violation of the Leavenworth County Zoning and Subdivision Regulations 
(unless the structures existed prior to 1971.) 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The staff recommends approval of Case No. DEV-21-046, Rezoning from RR-5 to RR-2.5. 

 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-21-046, Rezoning from RR-5 to RR-2.5, to the Board of 
County Commission, with Findings of Fact, or 
 

2.   Recommend denial of Case DEV-21-046, Rezoning from RR-5 to RR-2.5, to the Board of County 
Commission, with Findings of Fact; or  

 
3. Continue the Public hearing to another date, time, and place. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Narrative 
Location/Aerial Maps 
Memorandums  
Public Comment 
 

 



Grey Rezoning

1,060.0

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Feet1,060.00

Notes

Legend

529.99

1 in. = 530ft.

This Cadastral Map is for informational purposes only.  It does not purport to
represent a property boundary survey of the parcels shown and shall not be

used for conveyances or the establishment of property boundaries.

Parcel Number

Parcel

City Limit Line

Major Road

<all other values>

70

Road

Railroad

Section

Section Boundaries

County Boundary









1

Voth, Krystal

From: Anette Mitchell <anette.mitchell@yahoo.com>

Sent: Tuesday, July 27, 2021 2:47 PM

To: PZ

Subject: Rezoning Dev -21-046

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust 
the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
 
To whom it may concern, 
    I, Anette Mitchell, a home owner at 24129 172nd street. Leavenworth, Kansas 66048, who lives pretty close to the 
Grey’s that have applied for rezoning from RR-5 to RR-2.5 case number DEV-21-046 , I think that they should certainly be 
allowed to divid their property if they so wish to. 
Thank you, 
Anette Mitchell 
 
Respectfully, 
Anette 
 
 



From:                                         Diane Mosbacher

Sent:                                           Wednesday, June 30, 2021 10:45 AM

To:                                               PZ

Cc:                                               Voth, Krystal; Gentzler, Joshua; Sloop, Stephanie; Johnson, Melissa;
Anderson, Kyle

Subject:                                     Against rezoning

 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.

 

Attention Planning & Zoning Commission,

 

Larry & Diane Mosbacher are opposed to the rezoning request from and RR-5 to RR-2.5 (DEV-21-
046) submitted by Ronald & Barbel Grey. We are tired of seeing the county minimized more and
more every year. We understand the need for growth but when will this infringement stop? Taxes
do NOT go down because of this, our farms are shrinking, and the list goes on. Where is all the
business growth to help offset rising taxes? And why do we have "contracts" that support only one
developer? Competition is a good thing!

 

Please reconsider this rezoning. This isn't the first time we've had to deal with the Grey's as well as
their daughter from several years ago that wanted to rezone to multi family living so they could
have apartments in their home to rent to senior citizens. I believe their name is Mitchell. All
neighbors fought this and guess what? The Mitchell's have apartments in their home. Maybe this
family needs to reconsider moving to town and stop infringing on the county.

 

Thank you,

Larry & Diane Mosbacher

17004 Jamison Road

Leavenworth, KS 66048

913-727-2518

Reference Application: DEV-21-046

mailto:swimmerdlm@yahoo.com
mailto:/O=Leavenworth-CJC/OU=CJC/cn=Recipients/cn=PZ@leavenworthcounty.org
mailto:KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:SSloop@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov




1

Voth, Krystal

From: Loughry, Mark

Sent: Tuesday, July 6, 2021 8:29 AM

To: Voth, Krystal

Subject: FW: 

 
 

From: B k <kelloggcattlecompany@gmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, July 5, 2021 8:24 AM 
To: bocc <bocc@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject:  
 
Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Renate and Brian Kellogg formally submit our denial request regarding this 2.5 acre split and all others that come before this 
board.  There is a slide show that has been created by others near the Grey's and is accurate in its content.  This split will not 
meet the 2.5 acre minimum and will stress an already large watershed affecting other residents South of the proposed split.  As 
you know,  the roads McIntyre and 171st are already being overused,  and were not built to sustain this type of development and 
the traffic that comes with it.  There are no shoulders,  and the ditches were not designed to take on the amount of water now 
being pushed through them causing additional erosion to nearby residents.  The inability for the services in this area to keep up 
with the growth this board is wanting, is only creating issues such as water pollution into tributaries from runoff,  significant 
littering,  improper road construction,  speeding on an agriculturally used road (soon resulting in tragedy),  nose pollution, and 
crime. As we have argued multiple times to this board,  we want proper growth and not model after other counties.  5 acre 
minimums are the answer to this issue as it will allow growth at a rate the county can sustain proper services while maintaining a 
rural community that a majority of the residents in Leavenworth want.  Don't cower to developers,  and work with the 
municipalities to bring in  tax base through businesses and not roof tops.  Tonganoxie appears to understands this,  so should 
the others.  Isn't this why we built the extravagant Industrial Park expansion in Leavenworth, or was this just a way  for local 
businesses to work together to pay for a subdivisions infrastructure?   
 
Thank you,  
 
Brian Kellogg 24532 Tonganoxie Rd, Leavenworth, KS 66048 
 
Renate Kellogg 24488 Tonganoxie Rd, Leavenworth,  
KS 66048 
 
Please add our names to those supporting the denial of this request and formally add us to the minutes.  



1

Voth, Krystal

From: dkraft@sunflower.com

Sent: Tuesday, July 27, 2021 2:25 PM

To: PZ

Subject: rezoning case for Aug 5  # DEV-21-046

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 

 

To whom it may concern:  
 
I Diana Kraft a home owner at 14770 Dempsey Rd, Leavenworth Kansas lives fairly close to the 
Grey's that have applied for rezoning from RR-5 to RR-2.5 case number DEV-21-046. I think they 
should be allowed to divide their property if they so choose.  
 
Thank you  
Diana Kraft 



From:                                         Diane Mosbacher

Sent:                                           Wednesday, June 30, 2021 10:45 AM

To:                                               PZ

Cc:                                               Voth, Krystal; Gentzler, Joshua; Sloop, Stephanie; Johnson, Melissa;
Anderson, Kyle

Subject:                                     Against rezoning

 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.

 

Attention Planning & Zoning Commission,

 

Larry & Diane Mosbacher are opposed to the rezoning request from and RR-5 to RR-2.5 (DEV-21-
046) submitted by Ronald & Barbel Grey. We are tired of seeing the county minimized more and
more every year. We understand the need for growth but when will this infringement stop? Taxes
do NOT go down because of this, our farms are shrinking, and the list goes on. Where is all the
business growth to help offset rising taxes? And why do we have "contracts" that support only one
developer? Competition is a good thing!

 

Please reconsider this rezoning. This isn't the first time we've had to deal with the Grey's as well as
their daughter from several years ago that wanted to rezone to multi family living so they could
have apartments in their home to rent to senior citizens. I believe their name is Mitchell. All
neighbors fought this and guess what? The Mitchell's have apartments in their home. Maybe this
family needs to reconsider moving to town and stop infringing on the county.

 

Thank you,

Larry & Diane Mosbacher

17004 Jamison Road

Leavenworth, KS 66048

913-727-2518

Reference Application: DEV-21-046

mailto:swimmerdlm@yahoo.com
mailto:/O=Leavenworth-CJC/OU=CJC/cn=Recipients/cn=PZ@leavenworthcounty.org
mailto:KVoth@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:SSloop@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:MJohnson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov


1

Voth, Krystal

From: Loughry, Mark

Sent: Tuesday, July 6, 2021 8:29 AM

To: Voth, Krystal

Subject: FW: 

 
 

From: B k <kelloggcattlecompany@gmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, July 5, 2021 8:24 AM 
To: bocc <bocc@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Subject:  
 
Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Renate and Brian Kellogg formally submit our denial request regarding this 2.5 acre split and all others that come before this 
board.  There is a slide show that has been created by others near the Grey's and is accurate in its content.  This split will not 
meet the 2.5 acre minimum and will stress an already large watershed affecting other residents South of the proposed split.  As 
you know,  the roads McIntyre and 171st are already being overused,  and were not built to sustain this type of development and 
the traffic that comes with it.  There are no shoulders,  and the ditches were not designed to take on the amount of water now 
being pushed through them causing additional erosion to nearby residents.  The inability for the services in this area to keep up 
with the growth this board is wanting, is only creating issues such as water pollution into tributaries from runoff,  significant 
littering,  improper road construction,  speeding on an agriculturally used road (soon resulting in tragedy),  nose pollution, and 
crime. As we have argued multiple times to this board,  we want proper growth and not model after other counties.  5 acre 
minimums are the answer to this issue as it will allow growth at a rate the county can sustain proper services while maintaining a 
rural community that a majority of the residents in Leavenworth want.  Don't cower to developers,  and work with the 
municipalities to bring in  tax base through businesses and not roof tops.  Tonganoxie appears to understands this,  so should 
the others.  Isn't this why we built the extravagant Industrial Park expansion in Leavenworth, or was this just a way  for local 
businesses to work together to pay for a subdivisions infrastructure?   
 
Thank you,  
 
Brian Kellogg 24532 Tonganoxie Rd, Leavenworth, KS 66048 
 
Renate Kellogg 24488 Tonganoxie Rd, Leavenworth,  
KS 66048 
 
Please add our names to those supporting the denial of this request and formally add us to the minutes.  



1

Voth, Krystal

From: tlp0922.tp@gmail.com

Sent: Tuesday, July 6, 2021 3:56 PM

To: PZ

Subject: Letter against zone change request #DEV-21-046

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
This letter outlines Timothy and Tamara Porterfield objection to this zoning change proposed by the Greys. 
 
This area that the Greys are requesting  the RR 2.5 zone change for  is a very  well established area of over 130 acres and 
35 plus homes all built under the RR 5 zoning regulations. This area of homes is well spaced, separated from each other. 
Allowing lot splits under newer RR 2.5 rules will lead to an imbalance in this established area and have a negative effect 
on our property values. 
 
We live directly across from the Greys proposed new home, our address 17017 McIntyre Road.  We are very concerned 
that the proposed house and driveway will add approximately 5000 square feet of hard surface adding excess runoff to 
the creek that flows onto our property. This creek is a constant problem and floods regularly. In addition to the runoff, a 
far greater concern is the possibility of SEWAGE getting into this creek, the area of the proposed new house is damp due 
to springs that flow from the east, the ground in this area does not PERK well. This creek during  periods of normal rain 
has flowed over the culvert and topped McIntyre road. It has been as high as the outbuilding and barn that are currently 
on the property. Please reference ITEM # 7 page 150 in P&Z Regulations regarding STORM DRAINAGE.  Pictures of this 
water flow problem will be sent in separate email. 
 
Also in the P&Z Regulations Article #4  Growth Management Communities, Section #2 RGA rural growth area defined, 
“  that portion of the unincorporated area of the County intended and designated for development at rural intensity. 
Includes all portions of the unincorporated area not included within the IUGA or the SUGA. Development within the RGA 
is intended for very low density, with the preservation of agriculture a primary function.” 
 
Thank you for your  consideration, please consider carefully our letter with our objections and references to the 
established regulations. 
 
Respectively,  
Timothy Porterfield 
Tamara Porterfield 
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 10 
 



1

Voth, Krystal

From: BrennaLil <antyb39@aol.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 7, 2021 9:49 AM

To: PZ

Subject: Rezoning request DEV-21-046

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 

Reference application DEV-21-046 
To whom it may concern: 
 
This letter is to inform the planning and zoning commission that we, Richard M and Brenda Little are 
opposed to allowing rezoning from R5 to R2.5. 
We have lived in this well established neighborhood for over 26 years. We want to keep the 5 acre 
minimum as we feel it would lead to an improper balance in our existing community and affect our 
taxes and property values. We think the property in which they wish to split and build on does not 
meet R2.5 regulations. And with all of the out buildings there, they do not have room to put in a 
3000sf home. Allowing this will have a ripple effect and we will soon have houses on top of each 
other which is why we built here in the first place. We do not want “lot splits” here. Leave it at the 
original R 5 please.  
Thank you 
Richard and Brenda Little 
16925 McIntyre Rd 
Leavenworth, Ks 66048 
913-683-5180 
 







































1

Voth, Krystal

From: Sid <sid3253@yahoo.com>

Sent: Friday, July 9, 2021 1:26 PM

To: PZ

Cc: Voth, Krystal; igentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov; Sloop, Stephanie; Johnson, Melissa; 

kanderson@leavenwrothcounty.gov

Subject: Reference Application DEV-21-046 for Ronald and Barbel Grey

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 

My Name: 
Sidonio P. Ramos 
24369 170th ST. 
Leavenworth, Ks 66048 
913-727-2633 
 
In reference to DEV-21-046 to rezone from 5 acres to 2.5 acres.  We are opposed to this 
change.  This would open a can of worms and anyone with the frontage and requirements? Will be 
able to do the same.  We say NO to this change. 
We were opposed to it and made it known by email just as now for the previous meeting that was 
cancelled and now rescheduled for Wednesday July 14th at 6:00pm.  Our opinion has not changed. 



1

Voth, Krystal

From: Greg Beck <beckgt@gmail.com>

Sent: Sunday, July 11, 2021 1:31 PM

To: PZ

Cc: Gentzler, Joshua; Voth, Krystal

Subject: Against Rezoning Application 21-046 (Ron and Barbel Grey)

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Our names are Gregory and Judith Beck and we are responding to rezoning Application Dev-21-046 which we oppose.  
 
Our property and home is at 24250 172nd Street, Leavenworth, KS 66048  which is across McIntyre road  from the 
Grey's property.  My phone number is 913-710-3966 (cell). 
 
The Grey's re-zoning request is to rezone their property from 5 acres to 2.5 acres.  Before buying property in this area all 
residents in this area agreed to and bought their property/plots with the understanding that plots would be 5 acres or 
more and would remain so.  The Grey's originally owned 20 acres and sold off three 5-acre plots that all now have 
houses on them. 
 
Granting the Grey's re-zoning request to 2.5 acres will establish a precedent allowing all other owners to also divide their 
properties and change the entire nature of this rural community and why we all bought into this rural area in the 
first place.    
 
This is the second time in as many years that the Grey's have asked for this re-zoning and I was under the impression 
that the matter was settled  2 years ago (before COVID) that RR-5 would remain the zoning. 
 
We oppose/(are against) this idea and their repeated re-zoning request.  This has nothing to do with the Grey's 
personally as they have been good neighbors and do a good job of maintaining their property, their home and the 
numerous buildings already on their property; but we do not want additional houses crowding or changing the nature of 
this rural community. 
 
We  oppose (are against)  the re-zoning request to reduce property sizes below the current RR-5 zoning. 
thank-you, 
 
Gregory Beck 
Judith Beck    



1

Voth, Krystal

From: Leslie Craig <craigsconfirmations@gmail.com>

Sent: Monday, July 19, 2021 12:41 PM

To: PZ

Cc: Voth, Krystal; Gentzler, Joshua; Sloop, Stephanie; Johnson, Melissa; Anderson, Kyle

Subject: Against Re-Zoning of RR-5 to RR 2.5

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
Scott and Leslie Craig  
24623 171st St, Leavenworth, KS 66048 
Leslie Cell - 913-634-3043 
DEV-21-046 









1

Voth, Krystal

From: tlp0922.tp@gmail.com

Sent: Tuesday, July 6, 2021 3:56 PM

To: PZ

Subject: Letter against zone change request #DEV-21-046

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust the sender and know the 
content is safe. 

 
This letter outlines Timothy and Tamara Porterfield objection to this zoning change proposed by the Greys. 
 
This area that the Greys are requesting  the RR 2.5 zone change for  is a very  well established area of over 130 acres and 
35 plus homes all built under the RR 5 zoning regulations. This area of homes is well spaced, separated from each other. 
Allowing lot splits under newer RR 2.5 rules will lead to an imbalance in this established area and have a negative effect 
on our property values. 
 
We live directly across from the Greys proposed new home, our address 17017 McIntyre Road.  We are very concerned 
that the proposed house and driveway will add approximately 5000 square feet of hard surface adding excess runoff to 
the creek that flows onto our property. This creek is a constant problem and floods regularly. In addition to the runoff, a 
far greater concern is the possibility of SEWAGE getting into this creek, the area of the proposed new house is damp due 
to springs that flow from the east, the ground in this area does not PERK well. This creek during  periods of normal rain 
has flowed over the culvert and topped McIntyre road. It has been as high as the outbuilding and barn that are currently 
on the property. Please reference ITEM # 7 page 150 in P&Z Regulations regarding STORM DRAINAGE.  Pictures of this 
water flow problem will be sent in separate email. 
 
Also in the P&Z Regulations Article #4  Growth Management Communities, Section #2 RGA rural growth area defined, 
“  that portion of the unincorporated area of the County intended and designated for development at rural intensity. 
Includes all portions of the unincorporated area not included within the IUGA or the SUGA. Development within the RGA 
is intended for very low density, with the preservation of agriculture a primary function.” 
 
Thank you for your  consideration, please consider carefully our letter with our objections and references to the 
established regulations. 
 
Respectively,  
Timothy Porterfield 
Tamara Porterfield 
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 10 
 



1

Voth, Krystal

From: ERIKA ARWINE <eaima@aol.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 24, 2021 3:38 PM

To: PZ

Cc: Voth, Krystal; Gentzler, Joshua; Sloop, Stephanie; Johnson, Melissa; Anderson, Kyle

Subject: “AGAINST” the re-zoning rr-5 to rr-2.5

Notice: This email originated from outside this organization. Do not click on links or open attachments unless you trust 
the sender and know the content is safe. 
 
 
Erika Arwine 
24236 170th st 
Leavenworth Ks 66048 
913-669-7062 
 
I am AGAINST the rezoning of RR-5 to RR-2.5 Reference (DEV-21-046) 
 
Sent from my iPhone 



Recipient: Leavenworth County Commissioners

Letter: Greetings,

Stop the rezoning of 5 acre parcels to 2.5. Stop adding property use
regulations.



Signatures

Name Location Date

Brian Kellogg Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Robyn Kellogg Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Andrea Strick Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-13

Garry Eberth Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Dakota Jennings Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Chris Shatto Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-13

Kevin McPherson Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Missy Simpson Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Christopher Baldridge Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-13

Tricia Panick Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-13

Emily Harford Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Michael Kreutzer Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Faith kipper Kipper Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Adam Fearing Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Robert Hacker Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Amy Hoffsett Chicago, IL 2021-05-13

Heather Marshall Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-13

Christina Martinez Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Mary Thompson Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Susan Harding Basehor, KS 2021-05-13



Name Location Date

Joe Bailey Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Bill Honey Kansas City, MO 2021-05-13

Janet Hofmeister Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-13

Tracy Lawler-White Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Caryl Billings Basehor, US 2021-05-13

Bill Kendrick Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-13

Katy Sandow Leavenworth, US 2021-05-13

B Deaver Bonner Springs, KS 2021-05-13

James Thompson Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Tammy Truax Lenexa, KS 2021-05-13

Rhonda J Chambers Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-13

Chasity Wheeler Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

adam jones Kansas City, MO 2021-05-13

Mark Lybrand Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Chad Sargent Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Sean Hannah Kansas City, MO 2021-05-13

Erin Olson McLouth, KS 2021-05-13

Kathleen Powers-LaMoe Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Isabel Egesdal Sherrard, US 2021-05-13

Sarah Farmer Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Adam Johnson Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-13

Kim Franke Basehor, KS 2021-05-13



Name Location Date

stacy Brown Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Zachary Leach Kansas City, MO 2021-05-13

Michael Spottswood Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-13

Andie Leach Kansas City, KS 2021-05-13

Jodi Johnson Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-13

Amber Wilson Bonner Springs, KS 2021-05-13

Kim Bragdon Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-13

Heather Bray Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-13

Tara Kuntz Basehor, KS 2021-05-13

Roberta Ready leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Katherine Kessel Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-13

Teresa Porterfield Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Elisha Rhoades Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Pat Dimond Lafayette, CO 2021-05-13

Zaienah Dyson Richmond, US 2021-05-13

Amanda Cigich Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Madison Moreau Kansas City, MO 2021-05-13

Brock Mick Manhattan, KS 2021-05-13

Chamlie Lingenfelser Basehor, KS 2021-05-13

Sidney Brown Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Melissa Harriss Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

April Summers Lansing, KS 2021-05-13



Name Location Date

Alberta Meredith Easton, KS 2021-05-13

William Lutz Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-13

Rhonda Vossmer Linwood, KS 2021-05-13

AJ Hutchison Kingsport, US 2021-05-13

Jeffery Armenta Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Gavan Martin Eufaula, US 2021-05-13

Jordan Yonts-skaggs Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Heath LaRue Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Holly Saunders Kansas City, MO 2021-05-13

Macei Meyer Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Kelly Meyer Albuquerque, NM 2021-05-13

Janet Martin Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-13

Baylee McBroom Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Deb Bietka Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Shannon English Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Chad English Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Katie Norman Basehor, KS 2021-05-14

Trish Finch Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Lucas Walta Bonner springs, KS 2021-05-14

Jamie Heim Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

sean hancock Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Margery Thompson Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14



Name Location Date

John Schlag Linwood, KS 2021-05-14

Malinda Tuter Prairie Village, KS 2021-05-14

Robert Jeselnik Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Cathi Burrows Louisville, KY 2021-05-14

Matt Tadlock Bonner Springs, KS 2021-05-14

henry hofmeister tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Candace Walkup Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

DIANE Larson Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Pamela Smith Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Brandon Magaha Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Christine Grimes Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Dee Goffman Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Cheyenne Sample Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Eric Quisenberry Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Sabrina Sloan Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Helen Oelschlaeger Basehor, KS 2021-05-14

Angela Gregory Springdale, KS 2021-05-14

Loren Barnett Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Karen Priest Springfield, MO 2021-05-14

Jim Dyson Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Jason McGuire Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Shannon Brandau Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14



Name Location Date

Anthony Ridder Basehor, KS 2021-05-14

James Thompson Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Leah Miller Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Danielle Jackson Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Scott Rusk Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Kristine Warhurst Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Mitch Rusk Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Carol Manis Basehor, KS 2021-05-14

Jeremy Martin Kansas City, KS 2021-05-14

David burrows Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Anne Brockhoff Saint Marys, US 2021-05-14

Brett Johnston Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

William Milhon Basehor, KS 2021-05-14

Melissa Milhon Basehor, KS 2021-05-14

maddie melander Pittsburgh, PA 2021-05-14

John Waun Lansing, KS 2021-05-14

Carol Rusk Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Sandra Saheb Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Joseph Clark Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Joshua Standiford Lake Zurich, US 2021-05-14

Stacey Lewallen Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Roy Foster Berryton, KS 2021-05-14



Name Location Date

Sherrie Rogers Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Shannon Agee Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Andrea Sams Manchester, US 2021-05-14

Sherri L Hall Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Rena Condray Basehor, KS 2021-05-14

Randal Phillips Basehor, KS 2021-05-14

Stephanie Ventura Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Nicholas Moran Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Logan Luckert Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Leslie Borden Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Kevin Finley Bonner Springs, KS 2021-05-14

Mia Gardner Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Susan Burleson Basehor, KS 2021-05-14

Michael Frye Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Brenda Miller Kansas City, MO 2021-05-14

Angela Santiago Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Jammi Gallagher Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Teresa Truman Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

John Evans Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

Chelsey Creed Eden, US 2021-05-14

Jessica Rush Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Erin Ellsworth Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14



Name Location Date

Peggy Beatty Bonner Springs, KS 2021-05-14

Justin Garner Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

William Meyer Lawrence, KS 2021-05-14

Joyce Osborn Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Mary Stanhope Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Janna Fackrell Mc Louth, KS 2021-05-14

Jessica Crupper Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Bret Yates Bonner springs, KS 2021-05-14

Richard Condray Basehor, KS 2021-05-14

Nicole Kreutzer US 2021-05-14

Gary Billings Basehor, KS 2021-05-14

Kellie Davis Lawrence, KS 2021-05-14

Mary Scheurich Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-14

Mandy Brune US 2021-05-14

Desiree Waxmonski Linwood, KS 2021-05-14

Jerry Duxbury Basehor, KS 2021-05-14

Kathleen Honey Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-14

michael cecena Lawrence, KS 2021-05-15

Brenda Little Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-15

Sarah Smith Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Donald Craig Basehor, KS 2021-05-15

Elisa Knight Bonner springs, KS 2021-05-15



Name Location Date

Jerry pruitt Tonganoxie, KS, KS 2021-05-15

Phillip Cullison Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Wendee Trieb Albuquerque, NM 2021-05-15

cynthia conklin Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

marius radulescu Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Ken Bennett Basehor, KS 2021-05-15

Kristi Stockman Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Dana Splichal Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Marilyn Millison Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Daniel Eyerly Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Amber Lentz Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Alecia Millsap McLouth, KS 2021-05-15

Kyle Boling Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-15

Pamela Plake Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Jane Roethler Bonner Springs, KS 2021-05-15

Julee Fox Linwood, KS 2021-05-15

Ashley Clark Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Michelle Elston Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Joyce Steeby Basehor, KS 2021-05-15

Kevin Reetz Reno Township, KS 2021-05-15

Cindi Wood Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Emmaly Farr Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-15



Name Location Date

Josh Whittaker Bonner Springs, KS 2021-05-15

Jason Schultheiss Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-15

Patricia Johnson Basehor, KS 2021-05-15

Ryan Theno Basehor, KS 2021-05-15

Tina Keith Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Charles Maples Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Kala Knowles Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-15

Jason Moore Berryton, KS 2021-05-15

Michael Lamb Basehor, KS 2021-05-15

Carrie Duffett Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Rachel Cullison Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Vera King Linwood, KS 2021-05-15

Rebecca Gober Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Megan Livingston Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

John Murphy Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-15

Krystal Hunter Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Dylan Haufler Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Paula Engetschwiler Bonner springs, KS 2021-05-15

Michael Fagan Basehor, KS 2021-05-15

Jill Barnaby Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-15

Anita Haufler Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Thomas Low Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-15



Name Location Date

Kelly Coulson Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-15

Trisha Zinda Harvard, US 2021-05-15

Beck Fortenberry kokomo, US 2021-05-15

Tiffany Andrews Easton, KS 2021-05-15

Michelle Smith Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-15

Jennifer Tayrien Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-15

Tamra Mortsolf Mc Louth, KS 2021-05-15

Rebecca Sutton Chicago, IL 2021-05-15

Yolanda Thomas Tomganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Tina HUnter Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-15

Daniel Foley Linwood, KS 2021-05-15

Elizabeth Johnson Brookfield, IL 2021-05-15

Brooke Rosner Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-15

Mary Whistler Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Jim Mueller Linwood, KS 2021-05-15

Daniel Griffin Basehor, KS 2021-05-15

Lora Palmer Kansas 2021-05-15

Bill Corbet Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-15

Donna Bradley Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Valerie Leonard monroe, NJ 2021-05-15

Janyah Rosario Reading, US 2021-05-15

Kenny Prince Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15



Name Location Date

Edward Clauson Tulsa, KS 2021-05-15

Melissa Comba Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-15

Rosalie goodwin Linwood, KS 2021-05-16

Donna Ogden Utica, KY 2021-05-16

Mike Small Basehor, KS 2021-05-16

Rick Caya Easton, KS 2021-05-16

Amy Miller Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-16

David Givens Lansing, KS 2021-05-16

Robin Bales Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-16

Dale & Sherry Huffman Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-16

Bonnie Sivyer Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-16

Karen Lindsay W, KS 2021-05-16

Mary Harsh McLouth, KS 2021-05-16

Jeff Marshall Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-16

Laura Stanfield Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-16

Paul Hudson Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-16

Nicole McGinnis Linwood, KS 2021-05-16

Dominic Rosner Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-16

Teresa Gregory Mclouth, KS 2021-05-16

Angela Bolia Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-16

Sam TODD Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-16

Ann Lewis Granbury, US 2021-05-16



Name Location Date

Kirk Sours Linwood, KS 2021-05-16

Dorothy Shuler Linwood, KS 2021-05-16

Kara Fabin Lawrence, KS 2021-05-16

Andrew Fabin Berryton, KS 2021-05-16

Kenneth Scillieri Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-16

John Pettengill Linwood, KS 2021-05-16

Karen Zachariasen Bonner spring, KS 2021-05-16

Megan Rauh Linwood, KS 2021-05-16

Joseph Armendariz Shawnee, KS 2021-05-16

Milissa Radke TONGANOXIE, KS 2021-05-16

Katherine Gallagher McLouth, KS 2021-05-17

Teresa Reichart-Vernon, LSCSW Kansas City, KS 2021-05-17

Holly Cooper Leavenworth, IL 2021-05-17

Dane Roberts Basehor, KS 2021-05-17

Rachèll Rowand Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-17

Megan Walkup Chicago, IL 2021-05-17

tanner Jones Shawnee, KS 2021-05-17

Scott Almsberger Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-17

Sherry Terrell Spring Hill, KS 2021-05-17

Daniel Terrell Spring Hill, KS 2021-05-17

Adam Kaluba Burleson, TX 2021-05-17

Heather Ferris Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-17



Name Location Date

Renee Chaput-Lemons Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-17

Ann Hulsey Lawrence, KS 2021-05-17

Donna Ramsey Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-17

Ayvre Vanschuyver Hays, US 2021-05-17

Ron Asher Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-17

Ashley Carpenter Easton, KS 2021-05-17

John Stalec Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-17

Janie Elson Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-17

Matthew Debauge Lansing, KS 2021-05-17

Dixie Spurlin Berryton, KS 2021-05-17

Christopher head Chicago, US 2021-05-17

Shay Partin Mansfield, US 2021-05-17

Erin Mahoney Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-17

Allison Guz Holyoke, US 2021-05-17

Shawn Wagner Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-17

Jamie S. Arwine Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-17

Sara Smith Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

Mercedes Patterson-Swanagan Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

Megan Singer Springfield, US 2021-05-18

Tara Myers Berryton, KS 2021-05-18

Cheryl Blackburn Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-18

Barbara Vaughn Vaughn Basehor, KS 2021-05-18



Name Location Date

Michael Logan Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

Corey Jones Basehor, KS 2021-05-18

Robert Robinson Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-18

Cheryl Bleam Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

Stephanie Avey Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-18

Marsha Kern Louisburg, KS 2021-05-18

Jeff Hayes Bonner springs, KS 2021-05-18

Chad Hagan Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

Suzanne Phillips Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

Zach Lee Las Vegas, US 2021-05-18

Donald Starcher Lenexa, KS 2021-05-18

Karen Maenza Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-18

Brenda Oxley Berryton, KS 2021-05-18

Alan Phillips Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

Lyndy Farr Bonner Springs, KS 2021-05-18

William Corbet Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

Danny Pickett Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-18

Monica Keller Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-18

James Pantle Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

Bob Heckman Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

Joseph Waxmonski, Jr Linwood, KS 2021-05-18

Lawrence Laven Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18



Name Location Date

Jessica Frock Lawrence, KS 2021-05-18

John Payne Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

Teresa LeClerc Mc Louth, KS 2021-05-18

Robert Trieb Oskieloosa, KS 2021-05-18

Patrick Dermann Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-18

Melony Lutz Topeka, KS 2021-05-18

Trisha Robinson Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-18

Revlee Barker Lawrence, KS 2021-05-18

Michael Holton tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-18

Theresa List Chicago, IL 2021-05-18

Diane Behne Easton, KS 2021-05-18

Wes Cackler Lansing, KS 2021-05-18

Nathan Schempp Linwood, KS 2021-05-18

Denise Jacobson Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

Joe Wilson Saint Louis, MO 2021-05-18

Willum Spree Shell Rock, US 2021-05-18

Joshua Mohan Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

Steven Fandrich Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

Rachel Weston Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-18

Wilma Plake Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-18

Rebecca Schlagel Kansas City, KS 2021-05-18

Diane Mosbacher Leavenworth, Bosnia 2021-05-18



Name Location Date

Joshua keopke Basehor, KS 2021-05-18

Retsae Miller Kansas City, KS 2021-05-18

Dee Veltum Veltum Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

COLLEEN KELLER Chicago, IL 2021-05-18

Susan Ulloa Crestline, US 2021-05-18

Autumn Flory Troutville, US 2021-05-18

Marcia Bever Palo Alto, US 2021-05-18

Hilary Scanlon Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

Chris Scanlon Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

James D Wilson Wilson Albuquerque, NM 2021-05-18

Pam Klaus Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

Bart Walkup Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-18

Christian Kenney Berryton, KS 2021-05-18

Angela Fain Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-18

Dante Maccarone Mount Royal, US 2021-05-18

Dominic Cooper Fallbrook, US 2021-05-19

Jennifer Roselli Overland Park, KS 2021-05-19

Ryan Papps Wichita, US 2021-05-19

Cheyenne Eyerly Tonganoxie, KY 2021-05-19

Ranae Sample Wichita, KS 2021-05-19

Diann Gansky New Caney, US 2021-05-19

James Fain Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-19



Name Location Date

April Ortega Asbury, MO 2021-05-19

Devin Gonzales Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-19

Kelsey Tallman Bonner Springs, KS 2021-05-19

Paul Roehl Janesville, US 2021-05-19

Isabella Carenen Milwaukee, US 2021-05-19

Tom Flack Easton, KS 2021-05-19

Gavin Roberge Colchester, US 2021-05-19

Casey Resor Norwalk, US 2021-05-19

Laura Fisher Bonner springs, KS 2021-05-19

David German Sun City, US 2021-05-19

Russell Scott Crabtree Leavenworth County, KS 2021-05-19

Larry Mosbacher Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-19

Debbie Anderson Berryton, KS 2021-05-19

jennifer valentine Massapequa, US 2021-05-19

Luanne Funk Pine Ridge, US 2021-05-19

So Cool Los Angeles, US 2021-05-19

Christy Pendlay Cummings, KS 2021-05-19

Yasmine Horton Bessemer, US 2021-05-19

Jose Ramirez Detroit, US 2021-05-20

Eeic Delich Basehor, KS 2021-05-20

Cheynet McGuire Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-20

Amanda Coffman Basehor, KS 2021-05-20



Name Location Date

Christopher Williams Sanford, US 2021-05-20

Delores Lewis Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-20

Jamie Miller Basehor, KS 2021-05-20

Ashley Farr Linwood, KS 2021-05-20

Nicole Tollett Basehor, KS 2021-05-20

Jeanette Cole Easton, KS 2021-05-20

Andy Hess Basehor, KS 2021-05-20

Dale Spurlin Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-20

Terri Blackard Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-20

Suzanne May Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-20

Amanda Freeman Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-20

Jessica Shockey Berryton, KS 2021-05-20

Christian LaPorte Warwick, US 2021-05-20

Deborah Robinson Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-20

Sharon Garner Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-20

Alex Heim Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-20

Carla Crawford Topeka, KS 2021-05-20

karissa doon West Palm Beach, US 2021-05-20

Cari Spencer Kansas City, MO 2021-05-20

Ethan Henry Mount Pleasant, US 2021-05-20

Bradley Noll Easton, KS 2021-05-20

Elijah Cote Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-20



Name Location Date

John Coffman Basehor, KS 2021-05-20

Susan Aaron Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-20

Traci Carnoali Easton, KS 2021-05-20

Lois Kurowski US 2021-05-20

Maria Miranda Brooklyn, US 2021-05-20

Deborah Pockrandt Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-20

Melissa Findley Basehor, KS 2021-05-20

Tony Spudic tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-20

ALbert BLeichert Albany, US 2021-05-20

june bullied Toronto, US 2021-05-20

Braulio Torres Mayagüez, US 2021-05-20

Shawn Brezgiel Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-20

Deborah Couch Berryton, KS 2021-05-20

Avrie Kirsch omaha, US 2021-05-20

Carolina Sandoval San Antonio, US 2021-05-20

Timmu Griffith Chesterfield, MO 2021-05-21

Kristy Stanton Troy, NY 2021-05-21

Carla Mullins Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-21

Keith Jennings Kansas City, MO 2021-05-21

Theresa Megee Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-21

Melissa Martin Basehor, KS 2021-05-21

Ryan Bartlett Basehor, KS 2021-05-21



Name Location Date

Kyle Matthees Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-21

Drew Overmiller Chicago, IL 2021-05-21

Debra Adam Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-21

Tonda Hrab Chicago, US 2021-05-21

Steven Morris Sharps Chapel, US 2021-05-21

Gary Olson Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-21

Taylor Williams Antioch, TN 2021-05-21

Ghada Sharabatee Chicago, US 2021-05-21

Laura Felty Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-21

Halie Baldwin Kansas City, KS 2021-05-21

Alicia Brown Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-21

kaylynn johnson Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-21

Jeff Field Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-21

Sabrina Porter Easton, KS 2021-05-21

Brandon Marshall Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-21

Barbara Coble Basehor, KS 2021-05-21

Judy Koch Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-21

Mike Schroder Basehor, KS 2021-05-21

Thomas Wyrick Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-21

Ryan Eberth Basehor, KS 2021-05-21

Tessa Collins Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-21

Vicki McCarty Collinsville, IL 2021-05-21



Name Location Date

Kerry Putthoff Topeka, KS 2021-05-21

Richard Little Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-21

John Reischman Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-21

Sommer Jennings Olathe, KS 2021-05-21

Zonna Hoffman Bonner Springs, KS 2021-05-21

Brian Jackson Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-21

James Mahoney Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-21

Samantha Lee Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-21

Jacob Hicklin Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-21

Scott Hoffman Bonner Springs, KS 2021-05-21

Henry Garrison Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-21

Jim Forge Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-21

Jill Guenther Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-21

Shirley Stevens Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-21

Sarah Wescott Spring Hill, KS 2021-05-21

Pete Barrett Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-21

Joyce Gregg Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-22

Julie Downes Linwood, KS 2021-05-22

Stacy Myers Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-22

Jennifer Hiltunen Olathe, KS 2021-05-22

Patti Leach Linwood, KS 2021-05-22

Racheal Haas Linwood, KS 2021-05-22



Name Location Date

Rick Rosterman Basehor, KS 2021-05-22

Kerry Eisenring Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-22

Mary Phillips Tonganoxie, US 2021-05-22

Linda Risley Bonner Springs, KS 2021-05-22

Dillon M Olathe, KS 2021-05-22

Anna Sipp Kansas City, MO 2021-05-22

Andrea Lemon Linwood,ks, MO 2021-05-22

Scott Turner Mclouth, KS 2021-05-22

Patty Kermashek Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-22

Jeanine Wallace Basehor, KS 2021-05-22

Katherine De la cruz Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-22

Buddy Rodgers Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-22

Tabitha Nelson Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-22

Barbara Nelson Lansing, KS 2021-05-22

Lexi Hargis Chicago, IL 2021-05-22

Daniel Yates Basehor, KS 2021-05-22

Jennifer Basgall Basehor, KS 2021-05-22

Kevin Seber Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-22

Russell Bontrager Kansas City, MO 2021-05-22

Kerry Mueller Linwood, KS 2021-05-22

Ruth Vega Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-22

Kim Dye Basehor, KS 2021-05-22



Name Location Date

Bob Walker Basehor, KS 2021-05-22

Stephen Pratt Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-22

Melinda Coleman Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-22

Teresa Pauley Linwwod, KS 2021-05-22

Travis Mance Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-22

Lynda Schimke Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-22

Ashley Roberts Basehor, KS 2021-05-22

Kenzie Frentrop Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-22

Kyle Holloway Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-22

Kelli Fayard Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-22

Vanessa Cowie Basehor, KS 2021-05-23

Tonya Garrett Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-23

BIlly A & Dborah K Skeet Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-23

James Hann Basehor, KS 2021-05-23

Michelle Gray Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-23

Kelly Boettcher 2176 Birch st Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-23

Kenneth Shannon Basehor, KS 2021-05-23

Alan we Webster Lawrence, KS 2021-05-23

Susan Jennaway Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-23

Kelly Manning Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-23

Jamie Istas Bonner Springs, KS 2021-05-23

George Brune Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-24



Name Location Date

joco brat US 2021-05-24

Jennifer Regn Linwood, KS 2021-05-25

Ernie and Joyce Shaw Reno Area, KS 2021-05-25

Tiffany McIntosh Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-25

Anthony Taves Leavenworth, KS 2021-05-25

Aileen Bailey Hartford, KY 2021-05-25

Gennifer Hadley Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-25

Darci Cantrell Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-25

Wendy Griffith Bonner Springs, KS 2021-05-25

Gretchen Manus Tonganoxie, KS 2021-05-25

Paula Jaskinia Bonner Springs, KS 2021-05-25









August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

Case No. DEV-21-067 
Rezoning 

***Public Hearing Required*** 
 

Staff Report – Planning Commission  August 5, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/                   Larry and Nancy Theis 
Property Owner: 18986 LeCompton Road 

Leavenworth, KS 66048 
 

Applicant Agent: Herring Surveying Company 
 315 N. 5th Street 
 Leavenworth, KS 66048 

 
Legal Description:      A tract of land in the Fractional Southwest Quarter of Section 1, Township 

8 South, Range 20 East of the 6th P.M., Leavenworth County, Kansas, as 
written by Joseph A. Herring PS-1296 on June 16, 2021, and more fully 
described as follows: Commencing at the Northwest corner of said 
Southwest Quarter; thence North 88 degrees 15'50" East for a distance of 
293.15 feet along the North line of said Southwest Quarter to the TRUE 
POINT OF BEGINNING; thence North 88 degrees 15'50" East for a 
distance of 253.37 feet along the North line of said Southwest Quarter; 
thence South 00 degrees 48'57" East for a distance of 502.62 feet; thence 
South 88 degrees 15'50" West for a distance of 253.37 feet; thence North 
00 degrees 48'57" West for a distance of 502.62 feet to the point of 
beginning.  

 
Location: 24257 Millwood Road, Leavenworth, KS 66048 

 
Parcel Size: ± 154 acres 
 
Zoning/Land Use: RR-5, Rural Residential 2.5-acre minimum size parcels 
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential land use category.   
 
Parcel ID No.:   051-01-0-00-00-006.04 

 
Planner:  Joshua Gentzler 
 

REPORT: 
 

Request   
The applicant is requesting to rezone a 2.9-acre portion of a 154-acre parcel of land from RR-5 to RR-2.5. 
 
Adjacent Land Use 
The surrounding properties are residences and farms on varying sized parcels ranging from 1 acre to 238 
acres in size.   
 
Flood Plain   
There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C0100G July 16, 2015.  
 
Utilities/Services 
Sewer: Private septic system  
Fire: Easton Township 
Water: RWD 12 
Electric:  Evergy 
 
Access/Streets  
The property is accessed by Millwood Road. This road is a County arterial with a paved surface ± 24’ wide. 



August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

 
Agency Comments 
See attached comments – Memo – Kyle Anderson – Planning and Zoning, June 16, 2021 
See attached comments – Memo – Lauren Anderson – Public Works, June 21, 2021 
See attached comments – Memo – Chuck Magaha – Emergency Management, June 16, 2021 
See attached comments – Memo – Denise Eggers – Rural Water District 12, June 21, 2021 
 
Factors to be considered 
The following factors are to be considered by the Planning Commission and the Board of County 
Commission when approving or disapproving this Rezoning request: 

1. Character of the neighborhood:  The character of the neighborhood is rural; agricultural uses and rural 
residences. 

2. Zoning and uses of nearby property:  The surrounding properties are zoned RR-5, Rural Residential 5-
acre minimum size parcels. The uses are rural residences and agricultural use.  

3. Suitability of the property for the uses to which it has been restricted:  The property is within an area 
that supports the rezoning to RR-2.5. 

4. Extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby property:  The area will not 
likely be detrimentally affected. 

5. Length of time the property has been vacant as zoned:  The property is not vacant. 
6. Relative gain to economic development, public health, safety and welfare:  The proposed use will 

maintain the agricultural usage of 150+ acres of the property  
7. Conformance to the Comprehensive Plan:  The Future Land Use Map indicates this area as 

Residential (2.5-Acre minimum). 
8. Staff recommendation is for the approval of the rezoning request. 

 
History 
According to the Leavenworth County Appraiser’s office, the home on the property dates to 1920.  
  
Staff Comments   
The proposed rezoning is located at the southeast corner of the 243rd Street and Millwood Road intersection. 
The applicants are requesting approval of a rezoning from RR-5 to RR-2.5 for less than 3 acres of the parcel 
that is over 150 acres in size. Staff is generally supportive of the request as the property is designated to 
become RR-2.5 in the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The staff recommends approval of Case No. DEV-21-067, Rezoning from RR-5 to RR-2.5. 

 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-21-067, Rezoning from RR-5 to RR-2.5, to the Board of 
County Commission, with Findings of Fact, or 
 

2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-21-067, Rezoning from RR-5 to RR-2.5, to the Board of County 
Commission, with Findings of Fact; or  

 
3. Continue the Public hearing to another date, time, and place. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Narrative 
Location/Aerial Maps 
Memorandums  
 

 



DEV-21-067 Theis Rezoning

1,200.0

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Feet1,200.00

Notes

Legend

600.00

1 in. = 600ft.

This Cadastral Map is for informational purposes only.  It does not purport to
represent a property boundary survey of the parcels shown and shall not be

used for conveyances or the establishment of property boundaries.

Parcel Number

Parcel

City Limit Line

Major Road

<all other values>

70

Road

Railroad











From:                                         Anderson, Kyle
Sent:                                           Wednesday, June 16, 2021 3:24 PM
To:                                               Gentzler, Joshua
Subject:                                     RE: DEV-21-XXX Rezoning
 

We have not had any complaints on this property.
 
Kyle Anderson
Environmental Technician/Code Enforcement
Leavenworth County Planning & Zoning
300 Walnut St. Ste. 212
Leavenworth, KS 66048
913-684-1084
 
 
 
From: Gentzler, Joshua 
Sent: Wednesday, June 16, 2021 2:25 PM
To: RWD 12 (water12@embarqmail.com) <water12@embarqmail.com>; 'Tyler.rebel@evergy.com'
<Tyler.rebel@evergy.com>; James Herken (james.herken@yahoo.com)
<james.herken@yahoo.com>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Anderson,
Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Magaha, Chuck
<CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Miller, Jamie <JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Mitch
Pleak <MPleak@olsson.com>; Thorne, Eric <ethorne@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Van Parys, David
<DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: DEV-21-XXX Rezoning
 
Good a�ernoon,
 
The Department of Planning and Zoning has received an applica�on for a Rezoning regarding a
por�on of a property located at of 24257 Millwood Road in Easton. The Rezoning will rezone 2.9
acres surrounding the farmhouse to RR-2.5, while leaving the farm land RR-5.
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by Wednesday, June
23th.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0464 or
at JGentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov.
 
Thank you,
 
Joshua Gentzler
Planner II
Planning & Zoning
Leavenworth County
913.684.0464
 

mailto:KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JGentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov
https://www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php


From:                                         Magaha, Chuck
Sent:                                           Wednesday, June 16, 2021 4:22 PM
To:                                               Gentzler, Joshua
Subject:                                     RE: DEV-21-XXX Rezoning
 

I have no comment to lend Joshua on this request
 
Charles (Chuck) Magaha
Leavenworth County Emergency Management
Director
300 Walnut
Suite 50
Leavenworth, Kansas 66048-2765
Work-913-684-0455 (Main)
Direct- 913-680-2677
cmagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov
Like us on Facebook at : www.facebook.com/lvcokansaseoc
Follow us on Twitter at: www.twi�er.com/lvcountyeoc
 
From: Gentzler, Joshua 
Sent: Wednesday, June 16, 2021 2:25 PM
To: RWD 12 (water12@embarqmail.com) <water12@embarqmail.com>; 'Tyler.rebel@evergy.com'
<Tyler.rebel@evergy.com>; James Herken (james.herken@yahoo.com)
<james.herken@yahoo.com>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Anderson,
Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Magaha, Chuck
<CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Miller, Jamie <JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Mitch
Pleak <MPleak@olsson.com>; Thorne, Eric <ethorne@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Van Parys, David
<DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: DEV-21-XXX Rezoning
 
Good a�ernoon,
 
The Department of Planning and Zoning has received an applica�on for a Rezoning regarding a
por�on of a property located at of 24257 Millwood Road in Easton. The Rezoning will rezone 2.9
acres surrounding the farmhouse to RR-2.5, while leaving the farm land RR-5.
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by Wednesday, June
23th.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0464 or
at JGentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov.
 
Thank you,
 
Joshua Gentzler
Planner II
Planning & Zoning
Leavenworth County
913.684.0464
 

mailto:CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:cmagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov
http://www.facebook.com/lvcokansaseoc
http://www.twitter.com/lvcountyeoc
mailto:JGentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov
https://www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php


From:                                         Anderson, Lauren
Sent:                                           Monday, June 21, 2021 9:34 AM
To:                                               Gentzler, Joshua
Subject:                                     RE: DEV-21-XXX Rezoning
 

This meets the Comprehensive Plan future use map, the Public Works Department has no
comment.
 
Lauren
 
From: Gentzler, Joshua <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 16, 2021 2:25 PM
To: RWD 12 (water12@embarqmail.com) <water12@embarqmail.com>; 'Tyler.rebel@evergy.com'
<Tyler.rebel@evergy.com>; James Herken (james.herken@yahoo.com)
<james.herken@yahoo.com>; Anderson, Kyle <KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Anderson,
Lauren <LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Magaha, Chuck
<CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Miller, Jamie <JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Mitch
Pleak <MPleak@olsson.com>; Thorne, Eric <ethorne@leavenworthcounty.gov>; Van Parys, David
<DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Subject: DEV-21-XXX Rezoning
 
Good a�ernoon,
 
The Department of Planning and Zoning has received an applica�on for a Rezoning regarding a
por�on of a property located at of 24257 Millwood Road in Easton. The Rezoning will rezone 2.9
acres surrounding the farmhouse to RR-2.5, while leaving the farm land RR-5.
 
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by Wednesday, June
23th.
 
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0464 or
at JGentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov.
 
Thank you,
 
Joshua Gentzler
Planner II
Planning & Zoning
Leavenworth County
913.684.0464
 

mailto:LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
mailto:JGentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov
https://www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php


From:                                         RURAL WATER DIST
Sent:                                           Monday, June 21, 2021 12:16 PM
To:                                               Gentzler, Joshua
Subject:                                     Re: DEV-21-XXX Rezoning
 

No�ce: This email originated from outside this organiza�on. Do not click on links or open a�achments unless you trust
the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Mr. Gentzler,
Jefferson County Rural Water District has no problem or comments on this
rezoning.
Thank you,
Denise Eggers
 

From: "Gentzler, Joshua" <JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov>
To: "RWD 12 (water12@embarqmail.com)" <water12@embarqmail.com>,
"Tyler.rebel@evergy.com" <Tyler.rebel@evergy.com>, "james"
<james.herken@yahoo.com>, "kanderson"
<KAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>, "Lauren Anderson"
<LAnderson@leavenworthcounty.gov>, "Magaha, Chuck"
<CMagaha@leavenworthcounty.gov>, "Miller, Jamie"
<JMiller@leavenworthcounty.gov>, "Mitch Pleak" <MPleak@olsson.com>,
"Thorne, Eric" <ethorne@leavenworthcounty.gov>, "Van Parys, David"
<DVanParys@leavenworthcounty.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, June 16, 2021 2:25:17 PM
Subject: DEV-21-XXX Rezoning
 
Good a�ernoon,
The Department of Planning and Zoning has received an applica�on for a Rezoning regarding a
por�on of a property located at of 24257 Millwood Road in Easton. The Rezoning will rezone 2.9
acres surrounding the farmhouse to RR-2.5, while leaving the farm land RR-5.
The Planning Staff would appreciate your wri�en input in considera�on of the above request.
Please review the a�ached informa�on and forward any comments to us by Wednesday, June
23th.
If you have any ques�ons or need addi�onal informa�on, please contact me at (913) 684-0464 or
at JGentzler@LeavenworthCounty.gov.
Thank you,
Joshua Gentzler
Planner II
Planning & Zoning
Leavenworth County
913.684.0464
 
 
--
Denise Eggers, Bookkeeper/Office Mgr.
Jefferson County RWD #12
216 Winchester St.
Winchester, KS 66097
(913)774-2872 phone
(913)774-2875 fax
Email water12@embarqmail.com

mailto:water12@embarqmail.com
mailto:JGentzler@leavenworthcounty.gov
https://www.leavenworthcounty.gov/departments/planning___zoning/index.php


August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 1 

Case No. DEV-21-100 
Proposed Amendment to the 2006 Leavenworth County Zoning and 

Subdivision Regulations 
***Public Hearing Required*** 

 
Staff Report – Planning Commission  August 5, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant:                   Leavenworth County Planning and Zoning Department 

 
Planner:  Krystal A. Voth 
 

REQUEST: 
 
This is a request to consider a proposed amendment to the 2006 Leavenworth County Zoning and 
Subdivision Regulations. Proposed amendment is for the following Articles: 
 

Article – 19 Table of Uses 
 
Current Table of Uses includes:  
 

 
 
Proposed amendment:  

 
 

The proposed changes would allow contractor’s yards in B-3 and I-1 zoning, while remaining a Special Use 
Permit for Rural Residential zoning. The proposed change clarifies that a Special Use Permit is only needed 
for the distillation of alcohol if conducting sales and services on site. Finally, the proposed change would 
allow Event Centers in B-2 zoning, while continuing to require a Special Use Permit in the Rural Residential 
zoning district.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of Case No. DEV-21-100, proposed amendment to the 2006 Leavenworth 
County Zoning and Subdivision Regulations. 

 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 

1. Recommend approval of Case No. DEV-21-100, proposed amendment to the 2006 Leavenworth 
County Zoning and Subdivision Regulations, to the Board of County Commission, with Findings of 
Fact; or 

S = Special Use Permit            R-2.5/5

R-1/ R-2/ R-

3/ R-4 B-1 B-2 B-3 I-1 I-2 I-3

PR-1/PR-

2/PR-3 MXD PC PI

A = Allowed Use Rural

(One Fam/ 

Two Fam/ 

Apt)

Neighborh

ood 

Business

Limited 

Business

General 

Business

Limited 

Industry

Light 

Industry

Heavy 

Industry

Planned 

Residentia

l District

Mixed 

Land Use

Planned 

Commerci

al

Planned 

Industrial

Contractor’s yard (as defined in

Article 3) S S S A A A

Distillation of alcohol from grain 

including mixing, bottling or retail 

sales S  S A A A A A  A A A

Event Center/Meeting Space or any 

enclosed building used for 

receptions, gatherings, meetings, or 

other social or business functions  S S S S A A A A A A A

S = Special Use Permit            R-2.5/5

R-1/ R-2/ R-

3/ R-4 B-1 B-2 B-3 I-1 I-2 I-3

PR-1/PR-

2/PR-3 MXD PC PI

A = Allowed Use Rural

(One Fam/ 

Two Fam/ 

Apt)

Neighborh

ood 

Business

Limited 

Business

General 

Business

Limited 

Industry

Light 

Industry

Heavy 

Industry

Planned 

Residentia

l District

Mixed 

Land Use

Planned 

Commerci

al

Planned 

Industrial

Contractor’s yard (as defined in

Article 3) S A A A A A

Distillation of alcohol from grain 

including mixing, bottling if 

conducting retail sales on premises S  S A A A A A  A A A

Event Center/Meeting Space or any 

enclosed building used for 

receptions, gatherings, meetings, or 

other social or business functions  S S S A A A A A A A A



August 5, 2021                                             Leavenworth County Planning Commission 2 

 
2. Recommend denial of Case No. DEV-21-100, proposed amendment to the 2006 Leavenworth County 

Zoning and Subdivision Regulations, to the Board of County Commission, with Findings of Fact; or  
 
3. Continue the Public hearing to another date, time, and place. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Memorandums 
 

 



August 5, 2021                                            Leavenworth County Board of Zoning Appeals 1 

Case No. DEV-21-070 
Variance from Minimum Required Road Frontage 

***Public Hearing Required*** 
 

Staff Report – Board of Zoning Appeals August 5, 2021 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
Applicant/ Kimberly & Robert Kolman 
Owner: 21187 Evans Road 

Tonganoxie, KS 66086 
  
Legal Description: The Northwest Quarter of Section 15, Township 11 South, Range 21 East in 

Leavenworth County, Kansas   
 
Location:     21187 Evans Road, Tonganoxie, KS 66086. 
 
Parcel Size:  ± 6.5 acres 
 
PID No.:     195-15-0-00-00-005.01 
 
Zoning: RR 2.5, Rural Residential, 2.5-acre minimum lot area.  
 
Comprehensive Plan: This parcel is within the Mixed Residential land use category.   
 
Floodplain:  There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel. 
 
Planner: Joshua Gentzler 
 

REPORT: 
 

Request 
The applicant is requesting a variance for the required 200’ of road frontage.  
 
Utilities/Services  
Sewer: None 
Fire: Stranger Township Fire Department 
Water: Suburban Water 
Electric: Evergy 

 
Access/Streets 
Access to Evans Road is provided via a shared driveway from the adjoining property to the north. 
 
Factors to be considered 
A request for a variance may be granted in such individual case, upon a finding that all of the following 
conditions have been met (KS Statutes 12-759): 
 

(A) The variance requested arises from such condition which is unique and which is not ordinarily found in 
the same zoning classification, and is created by the zoning regulations and not by an action or actions 
of the property owner or the applicant;  
 
The parcel was created, by deed, either immediately before a building permit for a single-family home 
was obtained, or soon after the permit was issued.  
 

(B) The granting of the variance will not adversely affect the rights of adjacent property owners or 
residents;  
 
The property has been a landlocked single-family parcel for over 20 years. The property has shared a 
driveway with the adjoining parcel owner since the home to north was built over 30 years ago. Granting 
the variance will not change the use of the property.  
 



August 5, 2021                                            Leavenworth County Board of Zoning Appeals 2 

(C) The strict application of the provisions of the zoning regulations of which variance is requested will 
constitute unnecessary hardship upon the property owner represented in the application; 
 
The strict application of the zoning regulations would result in the applicant not being able to rebuild 
the home in the event the home were destroyed by fire, flood, or any other means.  
 

(D) The variance desired will not adversely affect the public health, safety, morals, order, convenience, 
prosperity or general welfare; and  
 
The requested variance would not adversely affect the public health, safety, morals, order, 
convenience, prosperity or general welfare of the community.   
 

(E) Granting the variance desired will not be opposed to the general spirit and intent of the zoning 
regulations.  
 
The parcel was established over 30 years ago and has functioned as a residential home for over 40 
years. Granting the variance will allow the parcel to continue functioning as a single-family residence. 
 

Variance Background  
The property has been occupied with a single-family home for more than 40 years. The parcel has been in the 
current configuration for more than 30 years and the current owner was not responsible for any of the previous 
land divisions. The multiple land divisions ultimately stripped the road frontage from the parcel resulting in less 
than the required 200’ of frontage. The applicants state that they wish to sell the property and want to be able 
to assure the buyers that they will be able to rebuild the home on the property in case of a catastrophe.  
 

ACTION OPTIONS: 
 
1. Approve Case No. DEV-21-070, variance from the required road frontage. 
 
2. Deny Case No. DEV-21-070, variance from the required road frontage. 
 
3. Continue the public hearing on the variance at another date, time, and place. 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

Aerial Picture 
Narrative 
 



DEV-21-070 BZA Kolman

400.0

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Feet400.00

Notes

Legend

200.00

1 in. = 200ft.

This Cadastral Map is for informational purposes only.  It does not purport to
represent a property boundary survey of the parcels shown and shall not be

used for conveyances or the establishment of property boundaries.

Address Point

Parcel Number

Parcel

City Limit Line

Major Road

<all other values>

70

Road

Railroad











LEAVENWORTH COUNTY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – REQUEST FOR VARIANCE FOR PROPERTY AT 

21187 EVANS ROAD, TONGANOXIE, KS. 

                                                                             Robert L. and Kimberly D. Kolman, property owners 

 

 

 

A variance is requested for this property, purchased in 1984 without road frontage, to address 

conditions in place at the time of sale/deed which have bearing on the future use of this property.   

It is a ‘non-compliant’ parcel as it has no road frontage, therefore no building permits for new building 

(ie: in case of loss)  may be issued on it in its current status. 

Access to the property is through a shared driveway, with a driveway easement recorded with 

Leavenworth County and does not/will not impact adjacent property owners. 

 

 

 

 


	June 9, 2021
	12021.08.05 PC BZA Agenda.docx.pdf
	LEAVENWORTH COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
	Agenda for the Regular Meeting of 6:00 P.M., Thursday, August 5, 2021
	County Courthouse - 300 Walnut Street - Leavenworth, Kansas 66048
	www.leavenworthcounty.gov
	1. Call to Order
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3.  Oath of Office – New Members
	4.  Election of Chairman and Vice Chairman
	6. Approval of Minutes
	7. Secretary’s Report
	8. Approval of Agenda
	9. Declarations: (if necessary)
	A. Declarations of receipt of communications by Planning Commissioners
	B. Disclosure of ex-parte communications for each hearing item
	C. Declarations of abstention from specific agenda items by a Commissioner

	2021.08.05 DEV-21-059 & 060 PC Packet.pdf
	Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential land use category.
	REPORT:
	Request
	Adjacent Land Use
	Flood Plain
	Utilities/Services
	Access/Streets
	Staff Comments
	12021.07.14 DEV-21-059 & 060 PC Report.docx.pdf
	Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential land use category.
	REPORT:
	Request
	Adjacent Land Use
	Flood Plain
	Utilities/Services
	Access/Streets
	Staff Comments

	12021.08.05 DEV-21-059 & 060 PC Report.docx.pdf
	Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential land use category.
	REPORT:
	Request
	Adjacent Land Use
	Flood Plain
	Utilities/Services
	Access/Streets
	Staff Comments


	2021.08.05 DEV-21-081 & 082 PC Packet.pdf
	1DRAFT 2021.08.05 DEV-21-081 & 082 PC Report.docx.pdf
	Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential land use category.
	REPORT:
	Request
	Adjacent Land Use
	Flood Plain
	There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C300G July 16, 2015.
	Utilities/Services
	Access/Streets
	Staff Comments


	2021.08.05 DEV-21-063 PC Packet.pdf
	12021.08.05 DEV-21-063 PC Report.docx.pdf
	Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential land use category.
	REPORT:
	Request
	Adjacent Land Use
	Flood Plain
	There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C0345G July 16, 2015.
	Utilities/Services
	Access/Streets
	Factors to be considered
	Staff Comments


	2021.08.05 DEV-21-067 PC Packet.pdf
	12021.08.05 DEV-21-067 RZ PC Report.docx.pdf
	Comprehensive Plan:  This parcel is within the Residential land use category.
	REPORT:
	Request
	Adjacent Land Use
	Flood Plain
	There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel per FEMA Firm Map 20103C0100G July 16, 2015.
	Utilities/Services
	Access/Streets
	Factors to be considered
	Staff Comments


	2021.08.05 DEV-21-070 BZA Packet.pdf
	12021.08.05 DEV-21-070 Variance for Kolman Report.docx.pdf
	Comprehensive Plan: This parcel is within the Mixed Residential land use category.
	Floodplain:   There are no Special Flood Hazard Areas on this parcel.
	REPORT:
	Request

	Utilities/Services
	Access/Streets
	Access to Evans Road is provided via a shared driveway from the adjoining property to the north.
	Factors to be considered
	Variance Background
	ATTACHMENTS



	1DEV-21-100 Text Amendment PC Report.docx.pdf
	REQUEST:  This is a request to consider a proposed amendment to the 2006 Leavenworth County Zoning and Subdivision Regulations. Proposed amendment is for the following Articles:

	22021.08.05 PC BZA Agenda - Amended.docx.pdf
	LEAVENWORTH COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
	AMENDED AGENDA Agenda for the Regular Meeting of 5:30 P.M., Thursday, August 5, 2021
	County Courthouse - 300 Walnut Street - Leavenworth, Kansas 66048
	www.leavenworthcounty.gov
	1. Call to Order
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3.  Oath of Office – New Members
	4.  Election of Chairman and Vice Chairman
	6. Approval of Minutes
	7. Secretary’s Report
	8. Approval of Agenda
	9. Declarations: (if necessary)
	A. Declarations of receipt of communications by Planning Commissioners
	B. Disclosure of ex-parte communications for each hearing item
	C. Declarations of abstention from specific agenda items by a Commissioner


